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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A& EERER A 7

ABBREVIATIONS

A8

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the following meanings unless otherwise specified:

RAFHRA  BRXEZBMEIN

“BCFC” or “Club”
[BCFCJ gk [ Bk |

“Board”
==
“Cambodia”
[RIEZE ]
“Company”

[ARRA]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Group”
[R&EE]

“Hong Kong”
[& %]

“Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”

[&EBRAED

“Listing Rules”
[ Em Al

“PRC” or “China”
[ B

“SFO”
(7875 KR R B)

“Share(s)”
[ A& 17 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bgk 52 P

“UK?
[5EE ]

IO EA AT R

Birmingham City Football Club PLC, the principal subsidiary of the Group
Birmingham City Football Club PLC * &"N&EE 7 Z EH B A A

the Board of Directors of the Company
RKRAIZESRE

the Kingdom of Cambodia
RIEREE

Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited
HAHEBEERERAF

the director(s) of the Company

ARBICEF

the Company and its subsidiaries
RAT REMER A

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R BB R RTT B2

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BB EDIE622F R ARG

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B3 Prag 7 AR A

the People’s Republic of China
HEE A RILA

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EREVENMEC(CEF RAEED)D

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RRAFIRAHEREEC.ONVET 2 EER

the holder(s) of the Shares
Mz F5E A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EABMARIMARLDR

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland
KA EE K A6 & /R B B A £ 2



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

I am pleased to take this opportunity to present to the Shareholders
the annual report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021.

PERFORMANCE AND RESULTS

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 30 June 2021 was
approximately HK$165.0 million (2020: approximately HK$231.5
million), representing a decrease of approximately 28.7% as
compared with the corresponding period in the previous year. The
loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2021 was approximately HK$74.2 million (2020: approximately
HK$260.5 million).

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING FORWARD

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group in principal engaged
in four business segments, namely (i) operation of a professional
football club in the UK; (ii) investment in properties; (iii) provision of
lottery system and online payment system service solutions (“System
Service Solutions”); and (iv) healthcare and medical related business.

(i) Football club

Following a finish at the 20th position in the English Football
League Championship Division for the season 2019/20, the
Club continued to play in the highly competitive Championship
Division in the season 2020/21. It was the 10th season in which
the Club was playing in the Championship Division and was
finished at the 18th position. The results of the Club were far
from management’s expectation in recent years. During the year
under review, the Group disposed of approximately 21.64% of
the Club and all its interests in the football stadium. After the
disposals, the Group continues to maintain 75% interests in the
Club and can consolidate its resources and focus on improving
the overall game play performance of the Club. The Group will
continue to provide support to the Club with an aim to achieve
better ranking in the league in the season 2021/22.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

(Continued)

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING FORWARD (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Investment in properties

The Group has invested in certain residential and commercial
properties in Phnom Penh, Cambodia. The investment of
properties secured a stable stream of income for the Group.
Though the real estate market in Phnom Penh was adversely
impacted by the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic (the “Outbreak”), the management is optimistic to
upcoming recovery in local economy and believes the long-
term appreciation in value of the investment properties can
bring values to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
The management will continue to explore investment potential
opportunities in properties-related business segment.

Provision of System Service Solutions

The Group acquired this System Service Solutions business
in 2019 with an aim to promote such business in PRC and
South East Asia countries. However, the slowdown of business
activities around the world caused by the Outbreak adversely
affects the growth of the business segment. The performance
of the business failed to meet the target of the Group. In
June 2021, the Board has decided to cease the business and
disposed of the operating units to an independent third party.
After the disposal, the Group will focus on the promotion and
development of its other business segments.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

(Continued)

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING FORWARD (Continued)

(iv) Healthcare and medical related business

During the year under review, the Group acquired a medical
service group in Japan. The medical service group principally
comprises the provision of medical consultation and healthcare
and wellness referral related services in Japan. With the
impact of China’s growing aging population becoming more
pronounced and the proportion of middle-class families in China
increases, the market demand for high-end medical products
and services will set to arise. The Group believes that there is
enormous potential for future growth in the medical services
market. The management is keen on gradually building a new
medical service segment in the future based on medical industry
resources, supported by high-end medical services, and with its
own technologies and talents as the core, and bring favourable
returns to the Shareholders with reputable business.

Since early 2020, the Outbreak has created significant disruption
and uncertainty to the business operations and livelihood of people
throughout the world. The Outbreak has resulted in government
authorities implementing various precaution measures, including
travel restrictions, quarantines, lock-down orders, business
limitations and shutdowns. These measures have negatively
impacted business activities generally, and have significantly
contributed to deteriorating macroeconomic conditions. The
Outbreak has had a negative impact on our businesses during the
year ended 30 June 2021.

Looking forward to 2021/22, it is expected that the Outbreak
will continue to pose a major challenge to the global economy
as the emergence of the coronavirus variants and the new wave
of Outbreak in some countries may add new uncertainties to
the pandemic and its impact to the world economy. With rapid
implementation of contingency measures and the availability of
vaccines, it is hoped that the Outbreak will in due course cease to
be a significant health risk. The Group will review the situation and
adopt flexible, effective countermeasures as needed. On the basis of
protecting the physical and mental health of all employees, the Group
will strive to maintain stable work and operation so as to attend to
both smooth operation and epidemic prevention.

The management will continue to look for investment opportunities in
around the world so as to expand the development portfolio of the
Group in the future. In this regard, investment opportunities which
offer satisfactory returns to the Shareholders within the acceptable
risk profile of the Group and expected return will be considered. As a
result, the Group will strive to identify suitable projects with potential
for development and satisfactory returns across various sectors.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank all Shareholders, investors, bankers and business partners for
their continuing trust and support. | would also like to express my
sincerest gratitude to my fellow Directors, the management team and
all staff members for their strenuous efforts and contribution during
the past year.

Zhao Wengqing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 September 2021
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PERFORMANCE AND RESULTS

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the revenue of the Group was
approximately HK$165.0 million (2020: approximately HK$231.5
million), representing a decrease of approximately 28.7% as
compared with that for the year ended 30 June 2020.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$74.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2021,
representing a decrease of approximately 71.5% as compared to the
loss of approximately HK$260.5 million for the year ended 30 June
2020. The decrease in loss was mainly due to (i) the profit arising
from transfer activities of players which amounted to approximately
HK$276.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020:
approximately HK$115.5 million); and (i) the Group disposed of the
football stadium in the UK and the business of provision of System
Service Solutions from which a gain in aggregate of approximately
HK$74.2 million was recorded (2020: nil).

The basic loss per share was approximately HK0.40 cent (2020:
approximately HK1.47 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group was principally
engaged in four reportable business segments, namely (i) operation
of a professional football club in the UK; (ii) investment in properties;
(iii) provision of System Service Solutions; and (iv) healthcare
and medical related business. Pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement dated 4 June 2021 entered into between the Company
and an independent third party, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Power Super Limited (“Power Super”) and the
total amount of loan outstanding and owing by Power Super to the
Company at a total consideration of approximately HK$4.6 million.
Upon the completion of disposal of Power Super on 18 June 2021,
the Board decided to cease the business of provision of System
Service Solutions in June 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group encountered
a very challenging business environment. Since early 2020, in
contemplation of curbing the Outbreak, governments around the
world imposed stringent measures, including travel restrictions,
quarantines, lock-down orders, business limitations and shutdowns.
These measures negatively impacted business activities generally,
and have significantly contributed to deteriorating macroeconomic
conditions, which caused a different degree of impact across the
Group’s business during the year ended 30 June 2021.

(i) Football club

The Group operates Birmingham City Football Club (i.e. BCFC
or the Club) in the UK. Revenue streams of BCFC comprised
(i) match day receipts which consisted of season and match
day tickets; (i) broadcasting income, including distributions of
broadcasting revenue from the English Football League (the
“EFL”), cup competitions, solidarity payment from the Premier
League and revenue from the media; and (i) commercial
income which comprised sponsorship income, corporate
hospitality, merchandising, conferences and events and other
sundry income.

During the season 2020/21, the Club continued to play in the
EFL Championship Division and finished at the 18th position.

F 3, ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EEEN R DT

(%)

£

EER AR (E)

RE E2021F6 8308 It FEHIMK - KEE

g

ZEERFEBRBRK - 520205 71 A

K RBHRE - SEBFRIREEER
BIERERS - REER  H#HS  BER
BN FE - ZERBER L HEBTBEK

™|

FE O URARESIREZBLERER

W RE E2021F6 A308 IHF & H R $ A
SESEEBEXNTRRBEZEE -

U

BHRRE

N5 [ 208 i 7 B A {1 B B 38 R BR
ke (BI[BCFC|sk[#k&]) - BCFCZ
WARRBEENEEREEAPIE 2K
EBHBA : (VEFEBA - BIEREEE
HREKME ((EEHEREBE]) T
BEEBRAZDIR - REEEEBRE
KB 7 fEMN RN B EEZ /A
K (i EWA - BIEEBKRA - REIR
e AREE  2REED - UREM
FEIERA ©

R2020/218F @ R #EFERIZHT
BERHBEMERZE - WIAB18MITTMR
BE o



BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED B SEEEREMR AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT (Continued)

(i)

Football club (Continued)

Since the Outbreak, the UK government has implemented
public health measures and taken various drastic actions in
order to slow down the spread of the Outbreak. All football
matches were required to be carried out behind closed doors
during the season 2020/21. The sales performance of BCFC,
match day receipts and commercial income in particular, was
adversely affected as a consequence. With the commencement
of the use of vaccines for COVID-19, the Outbreak is expected
to be under control, and the global economy is expected
to recover steadily. On 19 July 2021, the UK government
announced lifting a number of coronavirus related restrictions.
Fans are allowed to attend football matches in the season
2021/22. The management is keen to improve the overall game
play performance of the Club and will continue to provide
support to the Club with an aim to achieve higher ranking in the
league in the season 2021/22.

The Birmingham City Football Academy (the “Academy”) has
been awarded to operate at Category 1 Academy for season
2021/22 under the Elite Player Performance Plan. The Academy
has a clear aim of providing a place to pursue and achieve
success through a first class coaching environment for all the
young players registered in its system. Through a clearly defined
strategy, strong culture and age specific coaching curriculum,
the Academy staff will utilise all available resources to progress
players through the development phases and meet the goal.

10

EEENWE DN

(%)

%
(i)

EERAS (Z)

ERBE ()

BRIEREE  BERFNEEHALE
EHEERZERBITE - EFEIEE
By o TA2020/21BZF  FiAE RHEBEY
BBIFIER - BCFCT I E %8 (L H
EREHRARBERA)EBMEZ T
FEE - BEECOVID-19E H L @ &
BZEAE  EHEHEBEFNKES
EF o N2021F7 A19H » HERFE
MRk ZEREEMRRS ZRH - BRek
R2021/22B8F ] AGEBERIKELE -
EREBGNESRG 2 BRELERR
W EERRERERE NTE - BN
2021/22BFMSE R o BEHS -

R2021/228 ZF - A B C Bk 2R
(2R ]) DERER BB RIBT2
PEEF RSB AR - BIREE
B BEEEBIEANIREANBE
H RGPz FE kB IRME KR
WEIRIBAEMMTT o BEEBAERE 5
[E 30 LA R &t 8 S B 4F B2 &8 A9 3| R AR
2oBERETIBER—YHMEER &
RRREBRIEERETHES W BHHE
KB AR -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT (Continued)

(ii)

Investment in properties

The Group holds certain residential apartments and commercial
properties in Phnom Penh, Cambodia. All the properties are
leased out to secure a stable stream of income for the Group.
During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$28.2 million from the investment
properties.

The Outbreak and the global lockdown continued to affect
many nations including Cambodia, and its real estate market
has been slowed down. During the year ended 30 June 2021,
the Group recorded a loss arising from changes in fair value
on its investment properties of approximately HK$48.7 million.
The unrealised fair value change is a non-cash item and will not
affect the cash flow of the Group.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s investment properties were
stated at fair value and amounted to approximately HK$482.0
million (2020: approximately HK$530.6 million) representing
approximately 44.8% (2020: approximately 50.0%) of the
Group’s total assets.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED B SEEEREMR AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Investment in properties (Continued)

On 21 April 2021, a subsidiary of the Company entered into
a supplemental agreement with a substantial Shareholder
renewing a master lease agreement leasing the properties of
the Group in Cambodia to the latter for a term of three years
commencing from 1 July 2021. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 April 2021 and the
circular of the Company dated 28 May 2021.

Provision of System Service Solutions

The Group operates a system service solutions business which
primarily provides system and management support to lottery
and third-party payment industry players. During the year
ended 30 June 2021, the Group recorded service income of
approximately HK$3.5 million from the System Service Solutions
business. The slowdown of business activities around the world
caused by the Outbreak adversely affects the growth of the
business segment. In June 2021, the Group decided to dispose
of its entire equity interest in Power Super as detailed below and
ceased the involvement in such business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT (Continued)

(iv) Healthcare and medical related business

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group acquired
a medical services business in Japan. The medical services
business principally comprises the provision of medical
consultation and healthcare and wellness referral related
services in Japan. Customers are mainly from oversea seeking
medical services such as health checks, medical diagnosis
and treatments in Japan. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 31 July 2020. During
the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group recorded income of
approximately HK$5.9 million from this business segment.

Disposal of interest in subsidiaries

On 9 October 2020, the Company and Oriental Rainbow Investments
Limited (“Oriental Rainbow”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the disposal to Oriental Rainbow of
approximately 21.64% of the total issued capital of Birmingham City
PLC (“BCP”), 25% of the total issued capital of Birmingham City
Stadium Ltd (“BCSL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as at the date of sale and purchase agreement, and the assignment
of approximately 21.64% of the shareholder’s loan outstanding and
owing by BCP to the Company as at the completion of which (the
“Disposal”). Oriental Rainbow is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr.
Vong Pech, a substantial Shareholder and hence a connected person
of the Company, and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The sale and purchase agreement was approved by the
independent Shareholders on 8 December 2020 and the Disposal
was completed on 31 December 2020. Details of the Disposal are
set out in the circular of the Company dated 17 November 2020
and announcements of the Company dated 9 October 2020 and 31
December 2020.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A& EEZERER AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEN@®E DN

(Continued) (#&)
BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT (Continued) EREERAS(E)
Disposal of interest in subsidiaries (Continued) HEWB ARG Z#Ez (&)

On 31 March 2021, the Company and Achiever Global Group M20214E3A31H @+ AAREBEBIRER
Limited, an independent third party of the Company, entered into a BEQAG (AR ZBIE=H)I L EEH
sale and purchase agreement in relation to the disposal of 75% of 3 ' WA A B H EBCSLE BHITR B8 2
the total issued capital of BCSL and the amount of loan outstanding  75% &BCSLA B & 5ok B R E 8 & 4 K A
and owing by BCSL to the Company as at the completion of which A& > &% 4% ([BCSLEEEIE]) - BCSL
(the “BCSL Disposal”). BCSL is the owner of St. Andrew’s Trillion % 5 B 28 22 & & Hi Bk 35 (St. Andrew’s Trillion
Trophy Stadium (the “Stadium”) in the UK. Upon completion of the  Trophy Stadium) ([¥35 1) 2 % ¥ - ®BCSL
BCSL Disposal, the Stadium continues to be leased to the Club as HEZEIETKE  HEEEHE TR RAER
its football stadium. The completion of the BCSL Disposal took place  E¥i5 - BCSLE & £ 1B 2 W2021E6 A7H
on 7 June 2021. The BCSL Disposal by the Group resulted in loss £k o A~ &£ B #ETBCSLIH & FEE B H %
of control of BCSL by the Group. Following the completion of the A& ¥BCSLZ %4 - MBCSLY M 5 £ &R
BCSL Disposal, the financial results of BCSL is deconsolidated from  BCSLH & HER K & THHARER o %
the Group. The Company no longer hold any interest in the shares of A% @ A& A &~ B BBCSLZ (F ] & 5
BCSL upon the completion. Details of the BCSL Disposal are set out  ##5 - S@BCSLEE B B HA AR
in the announcements of the Company dated 31 March 2021 and 7 &l B HiA2021E3 318 K2021E6 470 2
June 2021, NI

On 4 June 2021, the Company and an independent third party HM2021F6A4H KA B HE—ZAQAF 2
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement in BV E=H:IVEEHH NABBELE
relation to the disposal of Power Super and the total amount of loan  Power SuperlA &Power Superii(&i& & 4
outstanding and owing by Power Super to the Company. Following KARAZ ER4%E - H2021F6H18H 5%
the completion of the disposal on 18 June 2021, the financial results % £ & E 1818 - Power Superf £t E 2 &
of Power Super and its subsidiaries (collectively “Power Super  (%:#%[Power Superfe @ |) 2 S 2 E T B
Group”) is deconsolidated from the Group. The Company no longer HfAREE - NTEKE > XA THBEHE
hold any interest in the shares of Power Super upon completion. The  Power Super” {EfAl i H iz - EHEE Bk
Board has decided to cease the business of provision of System  FER2021E6 AR ILIRHEGRBHAFTE
Service Solutions in June 2021. 2T o

1111}

14



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 was
approximately HK$165.0 million (2020: approximately HK$231.5
million), representing a decrease of approximately 28.7% over the
corresponding period last year.

The revenue from the Club for the year ended 30 June 2021 was
approximately HK$127.4 million (2020: approximately HK$204.4
million), representing a decrease of approximately 37.7% compared
with the corresponding period in 2020. The decrease was due to a
significant reduction in match day receipts and commercial income
as a result of the Outbreak and the lockdown in the UK.

The revenue derived from the investment properties for the year
ended 30 June 2021 was approximately HK$28.2 million (2020:
approximately HK$24.8 million), all of which was the rental income
from the premises of the Group.

The revenue derived from the provision of System Service Solutions
business for the year ended 30 June 2021 was approximately
HK$3.5 million (2020: approximately HK$2.3 million).

The revenue derived from the healthcare and medical related
business for the year ended 30 June 2021 was approximately
HK$5.9 million (2020: nil).

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses incurred during the year ended 30 June
2021 were approximately HK$427.1 million (2020: approximately
HK$449.9 million), representing a decrease of approximately 5.1%
over the same period last year.

The decrease in operating expenses was mainly attributable to
lower operating expenses of the Club. Due to the Outbreak and the
lockdown in the UK, business activities were much reduced during
the year ended 30 June 2021. The overall decrease in operating
expenses of the Club was partially offset by the additional operating
expenses of the healthcare and medical related business segment
consolidated by the Group as the business was acquired in July
2020.

Other Income

Other income during the year ended 30 June 2021 was
approximately HK$16.3 million (2020: approximately HK$14.6 million)
which was approximately 11.4% higher than that during the year
ended 30 June 2020. The increase mainly represented government
subsidies received by the Group’s various operating units.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEN@®E DN

(Continued) (#&)
FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B ERE ()
Other Gains and Losses, Net Bt REE  FEE

Other gains and losses for the year ended 30 June 2021 recorded &, Z2021E6A30A IFEE - Hl = RIE
a loss of approximately HK$3.7 million (2020: loss of approximately — 38§%153 E518 493,700,000/ 7T (20204 : &5 18
HK$19.4 million). The loss mainly represented (i) loss arising on  #919,400,000 7T) © %GB F B AHREY
changes in fair value of investment properties; and (i) loss on ERNFEZESHAES ZEE  R)AKAT
extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments; but partially EiKES@maE s miE BB EEN B
offset by gain on disposal of subsidiaries. NElZ W E AT o

Profit on Sales of Players’ Registration HEFREFMZEF

Profit on sales of players’ registration for the year ended 30 June & £2021%6A30R IFEE @ HEKE i+
2021 was approximately HK$276.9 million (2020: approximately it 7 & Fl| £9276,900,0007% JT (20204 : 49
HK$115.5 million). The increase was mainly because higher revenue 115,500,000/ 7T) * /5 NF EZ BN E
from sales of players were generated during the year ended 30 June  ZE202146 300 LF4F & HI RS Fr s A4 & Bk

2021. B 2 W g hNFTE ©
Administrative and Other Expenses TEREMBS

Administrative and other expenses for the year ended 30 June 2021, & ZE20214E6A30H IFEE 2 1TH & H 105
which included mainly depreciation charges, professional fees, staff & EERHI D 47.8%ZE £950,100,0007
costs and office overheads, decreased by approximately 7.8% to 7T (20204 : #]54,400,0005 1) » £ &
approximately HK$50.1 million (2020: approximately HK$54.4 milion) BIFNEL Y - BEXEBH B THRARHEA
as compared to that of the corresponding period in the previous EHY o &1 [E S B BRI ENIZH LT
year. The management will continue to adopt stringent measures on  IE¥E5E A TTE R B X RN A K
control and management so as to maintain the administrative and 3 o

other expenses at a reasonable level.

Finance Costs o E KA

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group incurred finance A&, £20216F6F830H (It FE 8 - NEH
costs of approximately HK$30.7 million (2020: approximately 2 4 §h& 5 7 £930,700,0005% 7T (20204 :
HK$33.2 million), representing a decrease of approximately 7.6%  #733,200,000/ 7t) » & £ F @ H#5 4 4
as compared to the corresponding period in the previous year. The  7.6% & = E RN E 2 L1 &8 £ F R EH
decrease was primarily due to the decrease in average balance of D ATE o

borrowings as compared to the corresponding period last year.

Contingent Liabilities BHEE

Other than disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial PBRARIRE 4GS M B HRMTT46TIHEE
statements of this report, the Group did not have any material  4p » 72021468300 & A &£ B I =T a] &

contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2021. R REE -

Capital Commitments B RIE

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no significant capital 720214643008 & /£ B I & & K & A &
commitment (2020: nil). ¥& (2020%F « #&) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Financial Ratios

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s current ratio (calculated as current
assets divided by current liabilities) was approximately 51.2%
(2020: approximately 16.3%) and the gearing ratio (calculated as
total borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company plus total borrowings) was approximately 35.4% (2020:
approximately 59.9%). The ratio of total liabilities to total assets of
the Group was 71.7% (2020: approximately 71.7%).

Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows, bank borrowings, loans from substantial Shareholders
and from independent third parties, and through the capital market
available to listed companies in Hong Kong. As at 30 June 2021, the
Group’s bank balances and cash (including bank deposits, pledged
bank deposits, and cash and cash equivalents) were approximately
HK$44.8 million (2020: approximately HK$38.8 million), which were
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Pound Sterling,
Renminbi and Japanese Yen. As at 30 June 2021, the Group
had total borrowings of approximately HK$293.8 million (2020:
approximately HK$487.4 million), with approximately HK$184.4
million repayable within one year or on demand, approximately
HK$80.2 million repayable after one year and within two years,
approximately HK$29.0 million repayable after two years and
within five years and approximately HK$0.2 million repayable after
five years. About 16.7%, 80.0%, 2.9% and 0.4% of the Group’s
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Pound Sterling,
Renminbi and Japanese Yen, respectively. All borrowings were at
fixed interest rates.

The management endeavours to enhance the Group’s financial
strengths so as to pave the way for future business development.
Cost control measures have already been put in place to monitor the
day-to-day operational and administrative expenses.

The management closely reviews the Group’s financial resources in
a cautious manner and continues to explore opportunities in external
financing and equity funding. The Company will take proactive
actions to improve the liquidity and financial position of the Group
by way of equity fund raising exercises. The Company will closely
monitor the market situation and take prompt actions when such
opportunities arise.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
(Continued)

Directors’ Opinion on Sufficiency of Working Capital

As at 30 June 2021, the current liabilities of the Group exceeded
current assets by approximately HK$267.0 million (2020:
approximately HK$573.5 million). The Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern depends on the financial resources presently
available to the Group. Taking into account the expected financial
performance, net cash expected to be generated from the operation
of the Group and the available loan facilities, the Directors believe
that the Group is able to fully meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due and to carry on its business without a significant curtailment of
operations for the foreseeable future.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk mainly relates to the
Group’s operation in the UK, the PRC and Japan and its investment
in Cambodia, in which transactions, assets and liabilities are mostly
denominated in Pound Sterling, Renminbi, Japanese Yen and US
dollars. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risks. The management will continue
to monitor its foreign exchange exposure and take appropriate
measures if needed.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2021, certain bank credit facilities made available to
BCFC were secured by a fixed charge over a specific bank deposit
account of BCFC held with the bank. The balance on this bank
deposit account was GBPO0.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$8.6 million) (2020: GBPO0.8 million which was equivalent to
approximately HK$7.6 million). In addition, the Group’s transfer
fee receivables from other football clubs with a carrying amount of
GBP15.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$161.3 million) as at
30 June 2021 (2020: nil) were pledged to secure bank borrowings of
the Group.

Save for the above, the Group had not charged other assets to
secure its borrowings.

Capital Structure

On 22 December 2020, for the purpose of raising additional funding
for the business operations of the Group, strengthening the Group’s
financial position, and enlarging shareholders’ base of the Company
which may in turn establish and strengthen the existing and future
business of the Group, enhance the liquidity of the shares, and
provide working capital to the Group, the Company completed the
placing of 516,400,000 ordinary shares (the “Placing Share(s)”)
of aggregate nominal value of HK$5,164,000 under the general
mandate at the placing price of HK$0.135 per share to not less
than six placees who are either an individual, professional or an
institutional investor procured by the placing agent (the “Placing”).
The closing price of each Placing Shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the placing agreement (i.e. 8 December
2020) was HK$0.162 and the maximum net price per Placing Share
was approximately HK$0.133. For details of the Placing and the
completion of which, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 8 December 2020 and 22 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
(Continued)

Capital Structure (Continued)

On 21 January 2021, pursuant to the two share subscription
agreements (the “Subscription Agreements”) entered into between
the Company and (i) Global Mineral Resources Holdings Ltd (“Global
Mineral”) and (i) Join Surplus International Ltd. (“Join Surplus”)
respectively dated 15 January 2021 and under the general mandate
granted by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 30 December 2020, the Company allotted and
issued in aggregate 1,062,576,000 ordinary shares of aggregate
nominal value of HK$10,625,760 at HK$0.13175 per share (the
“Subscription”) to Global Mineral and Join Surplus to offset the
outstanding loan due to Global Mineral and Join Surplus, including
interest, which as at the date of the Subscription Agreements
amounted to approximately HK$140 million in aggregate. The closing
price of each share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of
the Subscription Agreements was HK$0.14 and the net subscription
price per share was approximately HK$0.13164. The fair value
of the Shares on 21 January 2021 was HK$0.157 per share. The
completion of the Subscription took place on 21 January 2021. For
details of the Subscription, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 15 January 2021 and 21 January 2021.

As at 30 June 2021, the Company had an issued capital
of 19,288,998,508 shares of HK$0.01 each in issue (2020:
17,710,022,508 shares).

Use of proceeds

(i)  On 22 December 2020, the Company completed the Placing
and the total funds raised are approximately HK$69.7 million.
The net proceeds from the Placing are approximately HK$68.5
million. Approximately HK$61.7 million, or 90.0% of the net
proceeds, was planned for repayment of external debts and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$6.8 million, or 10.0%
of the net proceeds, was planned as general working capital
of the Group. As at the date of this report, the proceeds from
the Placing were fully utilised and were applied in accordance
with the planned use as disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 8 December 2020 and 22 December 2020.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
(Continued)

Use of proceeds (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

On 31 December 2020, the Company completed the Disposal.
The net proceeds from the Disposal were approximately
HK$52.7 million, of which (i) approximately HK$31.7 million,
or 60.0% of the net proceeds, was planned for repayment of
external debts; (i) approximately HK$10.5 million, or 20.0% of
the net proceeds, was planned as general working capital of the
Group; and (iii) approximately HK$10.5 million, or 20.0% of the
net proceeds, was planned for future investment.

On 12 May 2021, the Company resolved to change the use
of the unutilised net proceeds of approximately HK$10.5
million for repayment of debts. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 12 May 2021. The net
proceeds had been fully utilised as follows:
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Reallocation

during the Actual usage

year ended for the year

30 June 2021 ended

REZ 30 June 2021

Planned use of 20214 HE2021%

proceeds 6H30H 1t 6A30H 1t

Fri8 =8 FEHE FEHBZ

ZRERE EFOE BERAR

HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’ million

A& BEBT B&EEr

Repayment of external debts (BN SBE TS 31.7 10.5 42.2
General working capital —REEES 10.5 - 10.5
Future investment RIREE 10.5 (10.5) -
Total HET 52.7 - 52.7

On 21 January 2021, pursuant to the Subscription Agreements
and under the general mandate granted by the Shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company on 30
December 2020, the Company allotted and issued in aggregate
1,062,576,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.13175 per share to
offset against the outstanding loan due to Global Mineral and
Join Surplus, including interest, which as at the date of the
Subscription Agreements amounted to approximately HK$140
million in aggregate. No proceeds arose from the Subscription
as the aggregate subscription price payable were offset by the
outstanding loan amounts upon completion of the Subscription.

20

(i)

B2021F1H218 - REZERE R H
N % R 2020912 8308 817 2 AR
AIRERAFAG ERHZ —RIRE - A
NRIEEFR0.131758 LBl 3 R &ETE
$£1,062,576,0000% & i@ A% - LA K 45 FE
fFGlobal Mineral & 2 K EEE
(BEFE)  BRFRERZERERZ
B 54 49 4140,000,000/ 7T > AR
JEERBENR TN RBEREFEARE
BERSEMEE  AUBHERESEE
7 4 2 A R FT 1S 5RE ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
(Continued)

Use of proceeds (Continued)

(iv)  On 7 June 2021, the Company completed the BCSL Disposal.
The net proceeds from the BCSL Disposal were approximately
HK$116.0 million. Approximately HK$92.8 million, or 80.0% of
the net proceeds, was planned for repayment of external debts
and the remaining balance of approximately HK$23.2 million,
or 20.0% of the net proceeds, was planned as general working
capital of the Group. As at 30 June 2021, details of the use of
the net proceeds from the BCSL Disposal are as follows:
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IR R S 4

RBES WBERRERRER(E)

FrEREFZ ()

(iv) HR2021F6/7H » A QA FEHBCSL
HEEH -BCSLEEFTHEMBXK
TH F 58 49 £116,000,0008 7T © 49
92,800,000/ JT 3 FT 1§ NI F R 2
80.0%#t {EEEINFRER - MET
45 8424923,200,000/8 JT 8k T 15 51 185
B 220.0%A 8 AEASEE 2 — K&
BEBE S o HN2021F6H30H - BCSL
HEFEMESRBEFERAE ZHEBR
FanTR

Actual usage
for the year

ended 30
June 2021 Amount
REBZE unutilised as
Planned use 20214 Amount at the date of
of proceeds 6A30H L unutilised  this report
FsRIE FEHBZ HAk RAHZEAH
ZRER®E BRAR BASE MABALE
HK$’'million HK$’million HK$ million HK$’'million
BEET AEET BEET BEET
Repayment of external debts BEINTEE 92.8 92.8 - -
General working capital —REEES 28.2 10.7 12.5 -
Total #st 116.0 103.5 12.5 -

As at the date of this report, the net proceeds from the BCSL
Disposal were fully utilised and were applied in accordance
with the planned use as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 7 June 2021.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group employed on
average approximately 320 full time employees and approximately 60
temporary staff members in Hong Kong, the PRC, the UK and Japan
(2020: approximately 340 full time employees and approximately 470
temporary staff members). The Group recognises the importance
of high calibre and competent staff and continues to provide
remuneration packages to employees mainly based on industry
practices and individual performance. In addition, the Group provides
other employee benefits including medical insurance, training
subsidy, discretionary bonus and participation in the Company’s
share option scheme.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEN@®E DN

(Continued) (#&)

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES TERBRRTRERE

-

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of a football club AREF2RFEE —RRERKKE
in the UK, properties investment in Cambodia and healthcare and RR\FEFHRBEERR BREZRE
medical related business in Japan. The management has identified X & BMEBIRTS - BERERBE TIHER
the following factors that could affect the result of the Group's M ® & BIANRERZ R o B T XAIIIR
business. In addition to those shown below, there may be other risks EIN > RBAEEHRFGEZEMEAR - X
which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now ARERFHAEA  HARNAREREX

but could turn out to be material in the future. e

Outbreak of Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) #7 & 7 A 5 & (COVID-19) K 15

Due to the Outbreak, many countries have imposed travel HRER @ ZEBEREEMEEITRE - A%
restrictions, public health measures, quarantine requirement of WA - IREREART AR BER
travellers and even “lockdown” policies in order to contain the SRS BREHHEBRASRE © 78
Outbreak which resulted in weakened consumer sentiment in the — HIZ B ASRE O E ERFH R T THEE B
world. The lingering the Outbreak have brought uncertainties in R WAREEARENEERMERR
the Group’s operating environment and might impact the Group

operations and financial position.

Business Risk FHEE

The Group is exposed to the change in global economic conditions 2~ B 1E T ¥ 2 BRAC AR S e AR & AT 1T 3%
as well as the industrial and geographical markets in which it g hig 2 #40 o B - A5 E 2 B F5R
operates. As a result, the Group’s financial condition and results ~ JURAEE RENE X2 2 HREAEKERIT S
of operations may be influenced by the fluctuation of the global NEERTIRZRE - 2 IR IR N E B AE
economy or a specific market or economy. Any significant adverse /A f2 Z AL BN A ERIEXRTFIES) - Ha]ae

Ve

change in the economy in the global or regional or a specific SUARKEZMBRRIEERBERNER
% .

RS
Il

economy could materially affect the Group’s financial condition or
results of operations.

Financial Risk MR R

The Group is exposed to financial risks relating to interest rate, ARBEERFRGEEP EEERENE - Hh
foreign currency, credit and liquidity risk in its ordinary course of % EREERADESRRETEAMZIME
business. Moreover, the Group is also exposed to potential impact R 350 AEETEHEAGEREES
of currency fluctuations on translation of its principal operating units’ UG (REREURARERETETR)
results which are denominated in currencies different to the Group’s MEMELRARERDZEERE - Al
reporting currency. For further details of such risks, please refer to WHRRZFHIE  FEHAREZEEME
note 6 to the notes to the consolidated financial statements of this ~ #tz< Fif &t Z M a6 °

report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet
obligations of the loan agreements. Any failure to comply with
the terms and conditions of the loan agreements may constitute
events of default. If an event of default occurs, lenders may declare
any commitment under the loan agreements to be cancelled and/
or declare all outstanding amounts together with interest accrued
thereon and all others sums to be immediately due and payable or
payable on demand. To reduce the risk, (i) the Group pays attention
and monitors closely to ensure the compliance of the terms and
conditions of the loan agreements; and (ii) actively monitors cash
flows and ensures sufficient cash level is in place to meet operation
needs and commitment.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year ended 30 June 2021, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 30
June 2021, there had been no significant dispute between the Group
and its employees, customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. In order to reduce
the degree of environmental damage when developing the Group’s
business, the Group strictly complies with the local laws, rules and
guidance in relation to environmental protection.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had the following significant event subsequent to 30 June
2021 and up to the date of this report:

In July 2021, a subsidiary of the Group lodged a claim for losses
arising on business interruption caused by COVID-19. In August
2021, the insurer confirmed that the Group shall be entitled
a compensation of approximately HK$26,875,000 (equivalent
to approximately GBP2,500,000) in relation to such business
interruption.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of Directors as at the date of this annual

report, are set out below:

Mr. Zhao Wenqing
Executive Director and Chairman of the Board

Mr. Zhao, aged 54, joined the Company as an Executive Director
on 15 October 2016 and is the Chairman of the Board. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhao holds
a Bachelor of Engineering degree from Beijing University of Iron
and Steel Technology (now known as “University of Science and
Technology Beijing”) and a Master of Engineering degree from
University of Science and Technology Beijing in the PRC. Mr. Zhao
had worked as the head of risk management department and the
chief accountant in Beijing Centergate Technologies (Holding) Co.,
Ltd. (dERFBANRIER () BHBRLF) (Shenzhen stock
code: 000931), the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock

Exchange.

Mr. Huang Dongfeng
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Huang, aged 62, joined the Company as an Executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer on 27 January 2017. Mr. Huang
graduated with a major in management engineering from the Central
South University of Technology (8 L% K2 ) (now known as
“Central South University”) in the PRC and is a senior economist.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Huang was the company secretary
(deputy general manager) of Jiangxi Copper Company Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 358), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and was the director and
general manager of its group companies. Mr. Huang has extensive
experience in corporate management, corporate finance, merger and
acquisition as well as strategies formulation, and has been awarded
the Gold Medal Board Secretary Award (& H2ZE %) by New Fortune

Magazine ( ¥781 & #5% ).

Mr. Yiu Chun Kong
Executive Director

Mr. Yiu, aged 36, joined the Company as an Executive Director on
15 October 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Yiu holds a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accountancy degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has rich experience in auditing, accounting

and finance.

Mr. Yiu is an executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (“EPI”)
(Hong Kong stock code: 689), the shares of which are listed on the

Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng

Executive Director

Mr. Hsiao, aged 58, joined the Company as an Executive Director on
14 June 2017. Mr. Hsiao graduated from the Tamkang University in
Taiwan with a Bachelor of Business degree in Banking and Finance.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Hsiao held senior management
positions in certain commercial banks. Mr. Hsiao has extensive
experience in strategies formulation, corporate management, risk
control and internal control in multinational corporations, and in
financial institutions in particular.

Dr. Guo Honglin

Executive Director

Dr. Guo, aged 53, joined the Company as an Executive Director on
3 May 2019. Dr. Guo graduated from Renmin University of China
in the PRC and holds a Doctorate in Economics degree. Dr. Guo
has served as the assistant lecturer, lecturer, associate professor
and tutor of postgraduate of master degree in Renmin University
of China and has been engaged as the assistant to the Principal
and the chief of the office of human resources management, and
the executive vice president of the School of Education of Renmin
University of China. Before joining the Company, Dr. Guo was a part-
time professor of the School of Education of Renmin University of
China. Dr. Guo possesses extensive knowledge in education sector
and has over 20 years of experience in institutional management,
strategic development and human resources management. Dr. Guo
is an independent director of Metro Land Corporation Ltd. (Shanghai
stock code: 600683), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Sue Ka Lok

Non-executive Director

Mr. Sue, aged 56, joined the Company as an Executive Director on
15 October 2016 and was re-designated as a Non-executive Director
with effect from 1 May 2017. Mr. Sue holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree from The University of Sydney in Australia and a Master of
Science in Finance degree from the City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Sue is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a certified practising accountant of the CPA Australia,
a fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute,
and a chartered secretary, a chartered governance professional
and a fellow of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as “The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries”) and The Chartered Governance Institute. He has
extensive experience in corporate management, finance, accounting
and company secretarial practice. Mr. Sue is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and a director of Trillion Trophy Asia
Limited, a substantial Shareholder.

Mr. Sue is an executive director and the chief executive officer of
China Strategic Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 235); and
an executive director of EPI. Both of the aforementioned companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS EEER

(Continued) (%)
Mr. Pun Chi Ping BRERE
Independent Non-executive Director BIIHTEE

Mr. Pun, aged 54, joined the Company as an Independent Non- &4 4 - 545% © R2016F10815H N A &K
executive Director on 15 October 2016, and is the Chairman of the ABHEBIIENTES HFHEES T /F
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee URBZEESRIELRESERE o ELE
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Pun holds a Master of Science A EBH M A2 LR EIEEE+ REAM
in Finance degree from the City University of Hong Kong and a TWETIEE (BEAIEBHM AL o5&
Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy degree from the City Polytechnic of X E+ 47 « FAE LR ARFEF AR E:
Hong Kong (now known as the “City University of Hong Kong”). Mr.  BiR&@ & FeENEBEBSTMAE 2 &5t
Pun is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Bl o SEE A NP ERE @t LB HEA L

i}

and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Pun has extensive experience in
corporate finance, accounting and auditing.

Mr. Pun is an independent non-executive director of EPl and China &4 ARBERTPHEEZEEBAR AR (A
Huajun Group Limited (formerly known as “Huajun International fE[ZEZBEEEBRERAA]) (FHERDAR
Group Limited”) (Hong Kong stock code: 377). He is also the % :377) 2B IEHNTESE  BHNARHNES
financial controller of Poly Property Group Co., Limited (Hong Kong % &%EER AR (FEKRMHRYE - 119) 26t
stock code: 119). All the aforementioned companies are listed on the 42 8 o it A BB ER 17 -
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REELZL

Independent Non-executive Director BN TESE

Ms. Leung, aged 52, joined the Company as an Independent 2%+ - 525 * HN20165FE10815H i1 A K
Non-executive Director on 15 October 2016, the Chairlady of the AFIHEBILIERNITES - RLEESTH
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee URERZEeNFWEESKE - BL+
and the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Leung holds a Bachelor of 5B & BN AEBTHEIREE{ &y 2
Business Administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong T+ RBIT RS MRS EEEL s L£% 0
Kong. Ms. Leung has extensive experience in banking and financial ZRETEE© BMEETE  SFELERT
services industries and had worked at several international financial — (F#) - ZBETT - PETEETT (M) A
institutions including Citibank, N.A. Hong Kong, Bank of America, PR AGINEFHIRT(EL)BRAT -
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited and Fubon

Bank (Hong Kong) Limited.

Ms. Leung is an independent non-executive director of EPI, the Ru+ARZE GZATKRMNAREZMMERE
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. ™) 2B IEHITES
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Yeung, aged 51, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee on 8 November 2019. Mr. Yeung holds a Master’s
degree in Professional Accounting with distinction from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from The University of Hong Kong. He is
a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Senior International Finance Manager of the International Financial
Management Association. Mr. Yeung worked at a major international
accounting firm for over 10 years and then worked for various
Hong Kong listed companies as vice president, chief financial
officer, financial controller and/or company secretary. He possesses
extensive experience in auditing, corporate restructuring and
corporate finance. Mr. Yeung is currently the Deputy President of the
Hong Kong Independent Non-executive Director Association and a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong.

Mr. Yeung is an independent non-executive director of Sitoy Group
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1023) and Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 1296), and an independent director of New Hope
Dairy Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen stock code: 002946). All aforementioned
companies with Hong Kong stock code are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, and New Hope Dairy Co., Ltd. is listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Yeung was an independent
non-executive director of ANTA Sports Products Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 2020) from February 2007 to June 2018 and an
independent non-executive director of Boer Power Holdings Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 1685) from September 2010 to June 2020.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the ZEFERARRZEHZE2021F6 830 ILFE 2
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year &E&FfEERAEE Y LEZGESTER
ended 30 June 2021. *xo

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW TEERR LKL E

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal A&~ ARA—EIFEZRAT - HTEWEA
activities of its major subsidiaries are the operation of a professional FZIEE B ANSEHBERSLE - ©
football club in the UK, properties investment in Cambodia, provision  RIFEM S EIRE NIZEHZG RIS RS
of System Service Solutions and healthcare and medical related ZERRENEZEBER -

business.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as required IZBEB A TIEOIN RSB EEBAEE
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including 7 ¥ 7 —$itm kol » BIEANEEFT
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the ®E®H 2T ER[f@&THEBAREZ  BHHFE
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that have #E HEfEA YN RKERERFE L EES
occurred since the end of the financial year and an indication of {FsHEANRNEBER AR ZERFE - 55
likely future developments in the Group’s business, can be found |EHARNERFSEE23E Z[EFMwE I M
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management [EIEE:Iwm MO IMEEA o Fill Z 6
Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 5 to 23 of this annual KAEZEEZFEREN—ZLH

report, which form part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND E¥BENKRE

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 are AEEEHZE2021FE6H30R IFFE 2 ¥ EH,
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other AE68E £69B viSBEREMEEIZ
comprehensive income on pages 68 to 69. x o

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for ETEE& T EEHIKEH 2202168308 1F45
the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: nil). B2 RHIAL B (20204F : #) o

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME - BERSZE

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the RFER > AEEWE BWEMZEZEHE
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated [S# A 4&GE B BMEM 19 -
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYWE

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group HREEBEZEREMENRKRFEE ZEFHFFEHN
during the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial 434 M IS REM sTo3 R AL E ~ > B4
statements and summary of the principal properties of the Group is ZF|EFH N FE167E E1688E.

set out on pages 167 to 168.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS IR K% B IR A

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company and ZAABIRERNZ RN RERE S5 D
share options during the year are set out in notes 37 and 38 to the  RIE AR 4R 4 B 75 8 3= M 3537 %38 ©
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

RESERVES #1E

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company AEBRAQABRFERNZ EEEEFIED R
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes #HNE7T2E VAR EH K REA T IER
in equity on page 72 and note 37 to the consolidated financial &K 5#37

statements, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 30 June 2021
amounted to approximately HK$193,562,000 (2020: approximately
HK$127,240,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company, is set out on page
166. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group’s sales to the five
largest customers accounted for less than 30% of total revenue.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group’s purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 75.7% of total
purchases and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 20.1%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the
year 30 June 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year ended 30
June 2021 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Wenqing (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Dongfeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yiu Chun Kong

Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng

Dr. Guo Honglin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Sue Ka Lok

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Pun Chi Ping

Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out on pages 24

to 27 of this annual report.

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng, Dr. Guo Honglin and Mr. Pun
Chi Ping will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“2021 AGM”) of the Company by rotation and, being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election in the 2021 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
2021 AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

As at 30 June 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director and the Director’s connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 30 June 2021 or at any

time during the year ended 30 June 2021.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject to the
statutes, every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance coverage for the Directors and other
officers of the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following is updated information of the Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Sue Ka Lok resigned as executive director of PT International
Development Corporation Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 372), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
with effect from 6 July 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under the section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company:

EEERE

(%

ESRRG - AEROREEZ ZBHERHK
B (#)
RAR BB AR D WFE -

Approximate
percentage of the
Company’s issued

share capital

(Note (i)

Number of HARRAFE

underlying 2817

Capacity and shares held Bz

Name of director nature of interest Fris1ER8 Note BABEDE

EEEB SORESEME BB E Kzt (HtaE(i))

Mr. Zhao Wenging Beneficial owner 66,804,124 (i) 0.35%
HXOE R E EnEAA

Mr. Huang Dongfeng Beneficial owner 66,804,124 (i) 0.35%
\mRESLAE EmEBA

Notes: Bat -

(i)

(i

The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share capital
was calculated on the basis of 19,288,998,508 shares in issue as at
30 June 2021.

This represented the interest in the underlying shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of the share options granted by the
Company to the Directors on 6 December 2018 pursuant to the
share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders on 30 December
2016 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The consideration paid by each
Director on acceptance of the share options granted was HK$1.00.
The exercise price of the share options was HK$0.1084 per share.
The share options shall be vested and exercisable in three tranches
in accordance with the following dates: (1) approximately one third
of the share options granted was vested on the date of grant and
exercisable within the period of five years thereafter, i.e., from 6
December 2018 to 5 December 2023 (both dates inclusive); (2)
approximately one third of the share options granted shall be vested
on the first anniversary of the date of grant and exercisable within
the period of four years after being vested, i.e., from 6 December
2019 to 5 December 2023 (both dates inclusive); and (3) the
remaining one third of the share options granted shall be vested on
the second anniversary of the date of grant and exercisable within
the period of three years after being vested, i.e. 6 December 2020
to 5 December 2023 (both dates inclusive).

Upon completion of the rights issue on 23 April 2019, the number of
share options owned by each of Mr. Zhao Wenqing and Mr. Huang
Dongfeng was adjusted to 66,804,124 to subscribe for 66,804,124
shares, exercisable at an adjusted price of HK$0.09736 per share.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 30 June 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
person or corporation (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have an interest or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

EEERE

(&

#£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ESRRG - AEROREEZE ZBHERHK

B (#)

B XX PR EEE SN

R2021F6A30H @ K

RAZEFLABZRRTRAERERRNRF K
HEMMBBZEE (Ex LR S LMEENE
XVER) Zz Bty ~ BB MEREFEER
BESMAERDFEI2MG 2 REIXR
SARBIRE ST R Z R E M A E AR R KRB
RFrz EmSEAE -

REBHRPEBRARATREZRRERZR

KA

M2021F6H30H F gEESA - AT AT
SEE (BRESHARBNSRITEABIN)
RAR B Z R AR ) B S AR
BAEARRBAREEF S G0 E3361%
REFEMELMADENERIAE

Approximate

Number of percentage of the
Shares Company’s issued
interested in share capital
(Note (i) (Note (v))
Capacity and EEER HARQNTE BT
Name of shareholder nature of interest ZBRBEE Notes BREZBABSLE
RERERB BORERME (Bata)  Hra (HtEE(v))
Trillion Trophy Asia Limited (“Trillion Beneficial owner 5,425,000,000 (ii) 28.12%
Trophy”) EREEA
Wealthy Associates International Limited Interest of controlled corporation 5,425,000,000 (ii) 28.12%
(“Wealthy Associates”) ARG EE
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul (“Mr. Suen”) Interest of controlled corporation 5,425,000,000 (ii) 28.12%
FAE L A ([FREED AR ER
Ever Depot Limited (“Ever Depot”) Beneficial owner 4,5639,161,000 (iii) 23.53%
KEBEHRAR([KE]) EmEEA
Graticity Real Estate Development Interest of controlled corporation 4,539,161,000 (iii) 23.53%
Co., Ltd (“GRED") RS EE
Mr. Vong Pech Interest of controlled corporation 4,539,161,000 (iii) 23.53%
Vong Pech%t 4 RAEGEE
Dragon Villa Limited (“Dragon Villa”) Beneficial owner 3,294,366,000 (iv) 17.08%
REBRAR ([ZREED Em#EEA
Mr. Lei Sutong Interest of controlled corporation 3,294,366,000 (iv) 17.08%

EERLE

REHEE R
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO (Continued)

Notes:

(ii)

(iv)

All the above interests in the shares were long positions.

Trillion Trophy is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wealthy Associates
which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Suen. Accordingly, Wealthy
Associates and Mr. Suen are deemed to be interested in the
5,425,000,000 shares held through Trillion Trophy under the SFO.

Ever Depot is a wholly-owned subsidiary of GRED which in turn is
wholly-owned by Mr. Vong Pech. Accordingly, GRED and Mr. Vong
Pech are deemed to be interested in the 4,539,161,000 shares held
through Ever Depot under the SFO.

Dragon Villa is wholly-owned by Mr. Lei Sutong. Accordingly, Mr.
Lei Sutong is deemed to be interested in the 3,294,366,000 shares
held through Dragon Villa under the SFO.

The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share capital
was calculated on the basis of 19,288,998,508 shares in issue as at
30 June 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the Company’s shares
or underlying shares as at 30 June 2021 as required pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2016.
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing on
the date of adoption. As at the date of this report, the remaining life
of the Share Option Scheme is approximately five years. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to provide
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Participants of
the Share Option Scheme comprise of Directors, employees of the
Group; and any advisors, consultants, business partners, agents,
customers, suppliers, service providers, contractors of any member
of the Group or any company or other entity in which the Group
or any member of it has a shareholding interest, who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group or any member of it. The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted until the 30th day inclusive of, and from, the date of
grant, provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after
the expiry of the period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date of the Share Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme
has been terminated. The amount payable by each grantee of
options to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
options is HK$1.00.
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(Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise of options
under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price as determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the
relevant option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but in any case the subscription price shall
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares (if any) on the date of grant.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board but in any event, not longer than ten years from the date of
grant. At the time of grant of the options, the Company may specify
a minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company in any 12-month period up to the proposed date of grant
(including exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
proposed date of grant. Any further grant of options to a participant
in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to the Shareholders’
approval with such participant and his/her close associates (or
associates if the participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting.

The limit on the total number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company (excluding lapsed and cancelled
options) must not exceed 30% of the total number of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. In addition, the total number
of the shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme, together
with all options to be granted under any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (excluding lapsed options), must not represent more
than 10% of the total number of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or as at the date of the approval of the refreshed
Scheme Mandate Limit as the case maybe.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at the date of this report, a total of 1,771,002,250 shares
(representing approximately 9.18% of the existing issued Shares), as
refreshed by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on
31 December 2019, may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and a total of 278,350,515 shares (representing approximately
1.44% of the existing issued Shares) may be issued upon exercise of
all options which had been granted and yet to be exercised under the

Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, a total of 2,049,352,765 shares,
representing approximately 10.62% of the issued Shares at the date of

this report, were available for issue under the Share Option Scheme.

Details of movements in the number of share options during the year
ended 30 June 2021 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

EEERE

(%

BRESE (2)

RATRE B AR - RIRIERAEST 8T 5 48 5T
1,771,002,250 8% 10 (FHER AR R ZRE
BEITIRID#419.18% » &R M2019F 124
SIEBRITZREBEFRS LEH) - MR
BT ZIE R M ARITE 2 AR
111 - BRI 2174 278,350,515 % (5 (48
ERBBHEEEHITRME.44%)

RARSEBE - RIEERETETHETE
2,049,352, 7658 ik 17 - IHE R ARE H
B2 BT 4910.62% °

HZE2021F6A30H (- FE HR - BT
ENETHEREZEBESFBOT

Number of
share options
outstanding

Number of
share options
outstanding

as at as at
1 July 2020 30 June 2021
Name or 2020 20215
category of Exercisable period Exercise price 7R1A8 6A30A
participant Date of grant (both dates inclusive) per share HARITHEZ W RTEZ
SHEERERER REAH TS (BEERWX) BRTEE BREHA BREHE
HK$
BT
Directors:
=
Mr. Zhao Wenqing 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.09736 22,268,042 22,268,042
HIELE 201812 A6H 2018F 12 A6HE2023F 12 A5H
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.09736 22,268,041 22,268,041
201912 A6H £2023F12A50
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.09736 22,268,041 22,268,041
202012 A6E £2023F 12 A5H
Mr. Huang Dongfeng 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.09736 22,268,042 22,268,042
HERESE 2018F12A6H 201812 A6HZ2023F 12750
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.09736 22,268,041 22,268,041
201912 A6B Z£2023F12A5H
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.09736 22,268,041 22,268,041
202012 A6E £2023F 12 A5H
133,608,248 133,608,248
Employees 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.09736 66,804,123 66,804,123
& 201812 A6H 201812 A6H£2023F 12 A5H
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.09736 66,804,124 66,804,124
2019F 12 A6H Z£2023F 12450
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.09736 66,804,123 66,804,123
202012 A6HE2023F 12 A5H
200,412,370 200,412,370
334,020,618 334,020,618
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(Continued) (&

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRESE(E)

Notes: Bzt -

()  The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant () HBEREZFBESHI T HRTABBEREZTE
until the commencement date of the exercise period. MpEE B AL -

(i)  During the year 30 June 2021, no options were granted, exercised, (i) &= 202146 A 30 BILFE - BEER
lapsed or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme. RERIBERAERT SR L - 1718 « RBEGE

(i) As a result of the rights issue which was completed on 23 April (i) MAEKRER 20194 4 A 23 B%xK @ B
2019, the exercise price of the share options was adjusted from RiEzITEEDIREBRESEI R ETH
HK$0.1084 to HK$0.09736 under the Share Option Scheme and AIZ 17.03(13) X BRAARERE 2 &7
the supplementary guidance regarding adjustment of share options 55|/ 0.1084 B TLH = 0.09736 BT °
under Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules. The number of shares RITEEREEITEERE TEITZART
of the Company that will fall to be issued upon exercise of the MR8 E IMEE LB ETEE -

outstanding share options were also adjusted accordingly.

Additional information in relation to the Share Option Scheme are set BT EIM#E — S ERE NG AT EHRER
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. Bf5E38 °

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES EERBEAAATARHEBIEROSEREZTZ
OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION EF

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS K FX[EEZRNRM - HERO REEZ 2
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES KA R | — & RirE M5 MK M E38
AND DEBENTURES” above and the “SHARE OPTION SCHEME”  [EERZ#EstE| | FATHE > BB - # %2021
disclosure in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, at 4“6 H30H |t F EE @R - AR 7 EM
no time during the year ended 30 June 2021 was the Company or HtERARMET LT LH  BEEST
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable to the &8 B 7N A &) s (T fa] H 5K A B 48 ~ BeH 5k
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares ([EREZMERFNZ @ TESEHHE 2 E
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and S AKF FLBERERBARARTES  SRE
none of the Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights 202146 8308 I FE{TEEMZ ST -
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any

such rights during the year ended 30 June 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS 58 89 1

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in note 38 to the  BRAERA B S TRER W 38T I 58 2 B AR AE 51
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were  Z|4h - & 202146 A30H It F Z A &£ B
entered into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 30 June  #EE] X I N FAET AR ZH T

2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS BEEEHN

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company had not entered A& £20219F6 308 [t FE » &NA AW &
into any contract in respect of the management or administration of AR BT EHBNE IR RITH TIER T
any business of the Company. Al &4 o

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S BE HEIEOALNR 2 LTRSS
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2021, to the best knowledge of FLEEFTAZ  RE £2021F6H30H It
the Directors, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had € * A A B EE @AM B AT MERE - &
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities. &3k BB AN QA & {E{1] B % o
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 30 June 2021 and up to the date of this
report, none of the Directors, or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any material interest in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

EENFEMERE2ER

REZE2021F6 A0B L FEREEARE
BH EFdFAEESAECHEAL(CE
ER EWRA) - MERNEAREBEBER
NAIRE AR F CEB PR A ERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 46 to 61 of this annual B[P EERHREIAN-
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

REXZRBERERS

FR-AEEEBEAT(EER LR

During the year, the Group entered into the following connected E
TEANTHERSREERERS

transaction and continuing connected transactions with connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules):

HEXS

(a) Connected Transaction (a)

Disposal of 21.64% interest in BCP and 25% interest of
BCSL

On 9 October 2020, the Company, as vendor, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Oriental Rainbow, a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Vong Pech, a substantial Shareholder interested in
approximately 25.63% of issued share capital of the Company
through a controlled company, Ever Depot, as at the date
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, (i) the Company agreed to sell and
Oriental Rainbow agreed to acquire approximately 21.64% of
issued share capital of BCP; (i) the Company agreed to sell
and Oriental Rainbow agreed to acquire 25% of issued share
capital of BCSL; and (i) the Company agreed to assign and
Oriental Rainbow agreed to accept the assignment of a loan,
representing approximately 21.64% of the total amount of
the shareholder’s loan outstanding and owing by BCP to the
Company at the date of completion. The total final consideration
of the Disposal was approximately GBP5.4 million.
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(Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Connected Transaction (Continued)

Disposal of 21.64% interest in BCP and 25% interest of
BCSL (Continued)

As Oriental Rainbow is wholly-owned by Mr. Vong Pech, a
substantial Shareholder and hence a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules, the Disposal therefore
constituted a connected transaction of the Company and
is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
The transaction was approved by the independent Shareholders
at an extraordinary general meeting held on 8 December 2020
and was completed on 31 December 2020.

Details of the above transaction were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 9 October 2020 and
31 December 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 17
November 2020.

Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group had entered
into the following continuing connected transactions which
are exempt from the reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the disclosure of which is on
a voluntary basis in order to enhance the transparency of the
Group’s transactions:

Revolving loan facility from Trillion Trophy

On 21 December 2016, the Company and Trillion Trophy
entered into a revolving loan facility (as supplemented
by supplemental facility agreements dated 21 December
2018 and 31 December 2020 respectively) pursuant to
which Trillion Trophy provided a revolving loan facility up to
HK$250,000,000 to the Company at an interest rate of 4.5%
per annum (collectively the “Trillion Trophy Facility”). As at the
date of this report, Trillion Trophy is a substantial Shareholder
holding approximately 28.12% interest of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the Trillion Trophy Facility constitute
financial assistance for the Company under the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, such financial
assistance received by the Company from Trillion Trophy is fully
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A to the
Listing Rules as it is conducted on normal commercial terms or
better and it is not secured by the assets of the Group. As at 30
June 2021, a total of approximately HK$49,200,000 had been
drawn from the Trillion Trophy Facility.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

REXZRBEBERS (A7)

(b) Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued) (b) HEBRERS (&)
Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued) EBEREEEAEXS (&)
Long-term lease agreement with GRED HAGREDFT Y 2 RHIHE =

On 30 June 2017, Celestial Fame Investment (Cambodia)
Co., Ltd. (“Celestial Fame Cambodia”), currently a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a long-term lease
agreement with GRED to lease the right of use of a piece of
land at Phnom Penh, Cambodia for an initial term of 50 years.
At the sole option of Celestial Fame Cambodia, the term may
be extended for another 50 years. The rent payable for the
total lease term shall be US$3,000,000 which shall be paid
by 50 equal instalments each year during the initial term. As
at the date of this report, GRED is a substantial Shareholder
holding approximately 23.53% interest in the Company through
a controlled company, Ever Depot, and hence a connected
person of the Company. The transactions contemplated
under the long-term lease agreement constitute a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A to
the Listing Rules. As all the percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) are less than 5% and the annual lease payment
for the lease is less than HK$3,000,000, pursuant to Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, the long-term lease agreement
is fully exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A to the
Listing Rules. During the year under review, the total amount
paid to GRED under the transactions was approximately
HK$468,000 (equivalent to US$60,000).

Revolving loan facility from Oriental Rainbow

On 31 December 2020, the Company and Oriental Rainbow
entered into a revolving loan facility pursuant to which
Oriental Rainbow provided a revolving loan facility up to
HK$300,000,000 to the Company at an interest rate of
4.5% per annum (the “Oriental Rainbow Facility”). As at the
date of this report, Oriental Rainbow is wholly-owned by Mr.
Vong Pech, a substantial Shareholder who indirectly holds
approximately 23.53% interest in the Company and hence
a connected person of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the Oriental Rainbow Facility constitute
financial assistance for the Company under the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, such financial
assistance received by the Company from Oriental Rainbow is
fully exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A to the
Listing Rules as it is conducted on normal commercial terms or
better and it is not secured by the assets of the Group. As at
30 June 2021, there was no outstanding principal amount under
the Oriental Rainbow Facility.
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(Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)
Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the year ended
30 June 2021 required to be disclosed in the annual report are
as follows:

Master lease agreement with Ever Depot

On 28 August 2018, Celestial Fame Investments Limited
(“Celestial Fame BVI”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into
a master lease agreement (the “Master Lease Agreement”)
with Ever Depot, a substantial Shareholder and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GRED, to lease certain of its properties
in Cambodia to Ever Depot at a rent of US$15 per s.q.m.
per month, to regulate the terms of proposed continuing
connected transactions and their respective proposed caps of
the transactions and thereunder for the period commencing
from 1 December 2018 to 30 June 2021. The transactions
contemplated under the Master Lease Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules. The Master Lease Agreement
was approved by the independent Shareholders on 6 December
2018. The approved annual cap of the continuing connected
transactions under the Master Lease Agreement for the year
ended 30 June 2021 was US$3,613,000. During the year under
review, the Group recorded rental income under the Master
Lease Agreement of approximately US$3,613,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$28,179,000). Details of the transactions
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
28 August 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 19
November 2018.

On 21 April 2021, Celestial Fame BVI entered into a
supplemental agreement with Ever Depot, pursuant to which
Celestial Fame BVI and Ever Depot conditionally agreed to
renew the Master Lease Agreement for a term of three years in
relation to the above properties at a rent of US$15 per s.q.m.
per month commencing from 1 July 2021. The proposed annual
caps for the years ending 30 June 2022, 2023 and 2024 of
US$3,613,000 were approved by the independent Shareholders
at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
23 June 2021. Details of the transactions were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 21 April 2021 and the
circular of the Company dated 28 May 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED HEXGREBERERS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued) (b) BEBEXRS (&)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)
Shareholders’ agreement with Oriental Rainbow

On 9 October 2020, the Company and Oriental Rainbow
entered into a shareholders’ agreement (the “Shareholders’
Agreement”) which provides the rights and duties and further
regulates the respective responsibilities of the Company and
Oriental Rainbow towards the management of the business
and affairs of BCP and its subsidiaries. The transaction
contemplated thereunder constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company and is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. The transaction
contemplated under the Shareholders’ Agreement was
approved by the independent Shareholders at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 8 December 2020 and was completed
on 31 December 2020. The approved annual cap in respect
of the compensation of the continuing connected transaction
under the Shareholders’ Agreement for the year ended 30
June 2021 and the years ending 30 June 2022 and 2023 are
GBP25,000,000 while the approved annual caps in respect of
the bonus are GBP30,000,000 for the years ending 30 June
2022 to 2024. For the year ended 30 June 2021, there was
no compensation amount receivable/received by the Group
from Oriental Rainbow under the Shareholders’ Agreement.
Details of the Shareholders’ Agreement were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 9 October 2020 and
31 December 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 17
November 2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)
Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)
Varied lease agreement with BCSL and BCFC

On 31 December 2020, the Company, BCSL and BCFC, a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a deed of variation
to vary certain terms of the lease agreement dated 31 May
2019 (the "Varied Lease Agreement”) in relation to the lease
of St. Andrew’s Trillion Trophy Stadium including the variation
of the term and the release and discharge of the Company’s
guarantee in the lease agreement dated 31 May 2019. The
Stadium is used as the football stadium and for ancillary uses of
BCFC. Following completion of the Disposal, BCSL became a
connected subsidiary of the Company under Rule 14A.16 of the
Listing Rules by virtue of Oriental Rainbow being a connected
person of the Company and its 25% shareholding in BCSL.
Accordingly, the Varied Lease Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder will constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. The transactions were approved
by the independent Shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 8 December 2020. Details of the Varied
Lease Agreement were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 9 October 2020 and 31 December 2020 and
the circular of the Company dated 17 November 2020. The
approved annual cap of the continuing connected transactions
under the Varied Lease Agreement for the year ended 30 June
2021 was GBP840,000.

On 31 March 2021, the Company and Achiever Global Group
Limited, an independent third party of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the disposal
of 75% of the total issued capital of BCSL (i.e. BCSL Disposal).
BCSL is the owner of the Stadium. The Stadium is leased
to BCFC as its football stadium. Following the completion of
the BCSL Disposal, which took place on 7 June 2021, BCSL
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and its financial
results also is deconsolidated from the Group. Upon completion
of BCSL Disposal, BCSL ceased to be a connected subsidiary
of the Company. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated
under the Varied Lease Agreement no longer constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company. Upon
completion, BCSL and BCFC entered into a new deed of
variation to vary certain terms of the Varied Lease Agreement
in relation to the lease of the Stadium. Pursuant to the Varied
Lease Agreement as varied by the new deed of variation, BCSL
(as landlord) shall continue to lease the Stadium to BCFC (as
tenant) for a term of twelve years commencing from 31 May
2019 for use as the football stadium and for ancillary uses
by BCFC. Details of BCSL Disposal and completion of BCSL
Disposal were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 31 March 2021 and 7 June 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

REXGRFERERS (&)

(b) Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(b) FHHEBEXS (#)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the total amount
payable/paid to BCSL under the Varied Lease Agreement
was approximately GBP542,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,657,000).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules. The letter
states that nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Board, were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group,
were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions, and
have exceeded the respective annual cap amounts. The
Company provided a copy of such letter to the Stock Exchange.
The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the unqualified letter
from the auditor and are in the opinion that the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group were in the
ordinary and usual course of its business, on normal commercial
terms or better, and according to the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and within their
respective annual cap amounts.
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In relation to the connected transaction and the continuing
connected transactions of the Group, the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules during the year ended 30 June
2021.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“related parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Save for
the connected transaction and continuing connected transactions
disclosed under the section headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” above, the other
related party disclosures as disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements did not constitute connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on their competence,
performance, experience and prevailing market terms. Other
employee benefits included provident fund scheme, medical
insurance, share option scheme as well as discretionary bonus.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
confirmed that it has maintained a sufficient public float in the market
as at the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
and the external auditor, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
(“ZHONGHUI ANDA”), the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2021 have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA.

A resolution will be proposed at the 2021 AGM to re-appoint
ZHONGHUI ANDA as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhao Wenqing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 September 2021
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board believes that good corporate governance is crucial
to improve the efficiency and performance of the Group and to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders. The Company aims to

achieve good standard of corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company had complied with all the applicable provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report will
be available no later than five months after the year ended 30 June
2021, on the websites of both the Company (www.bshl.com.hk) and

the Stock Exchange.

The following sections set out how the principles in the CG Code

have been complied with by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
for securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry with the existing Directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code

during the year ended 30 June 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The Board members are fully committed to their roles
and have acted in good faith to maximise the Shareholders’ value in
the long run, and have aligned the Group’s goal and directions with
the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily operations and

administration are delegated to the management.

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Directors are kept informed on timely basis of major

changes that may affect the Group’s business,

including relevant

rules and regulations. The Directors can, upon reasonable request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide
separate appropriate independent professional advice to the
Directors to assist the relevant Directors discharge their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises a total of nine
members including five Executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhao
Wenging, Mr. Huang Dongfeng, Mr. Yiu Chun Kong (“Mr. Yiu”),
Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng and Dr. Guo Honglin, one Non-executive
Director, Mr. Sue Ka Lok (“Mr. Sue”), and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Pun Chi Ping (“Mr. Pun”), Ms. Leung
Pik Har, Christine (“Ms. Leung”) and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat. Members
of the Board have different professional and relevant industry
experiences and background and have a balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company complied
with rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, at least one independent non-executive Director with
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise, and a sufficient number of
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third
of the board, respectively.

The Company considers all existing Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors” on pages 24 to 27 of this annual report.

As disclosed in that section, Mr. Sue is an executive director of EPI
of which Mr. Yiu is an executive director, Mr. Pun and Ms. Leung
are independent non-executive directors. Save for the aforesaid,
there is no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between members of the Board and senior management.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction to each newly appointed Director on his/her first
appointment in order to enable him/her to have appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A& EERER A 7

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEERRE
(Continued) (#&)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) BEEg(F)

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional ARG EEFfAEE ELMEEELERE - I
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The B RIGERS 2 M LG - EF15EE
Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory IE2MHEFERESHEREKIBEREY
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the &HHFER @ BB SEITHEE - AR F 10
discharge of their responsibilities. The Company has provided timely  i#Eb A ESIRHSHORMEER - B85 &
technical updates, including the briefing on the amendments on the M RBHEE] 2 B R E P 2 S o« K
Listing Rules and the news release published by the Stock Exchange ARIRETBRE AE SLHBENRL B ¥
to the Directors. Continuing briefing and professional development & o

for Directors are arranged where necessary.

The Directors have participated in continuous professional ZEDFBBRMFTE @ NEEIRLEEH
development by attending seminars, in-house briefings and reading RBEIFE 2B - FEHDEFEHEERE - LA
materials on the related areas to develop and refresh their knowledge — BI ¥R K 383 1 25 > 50 5% R H AL &L 220214
and skills. During the year ended 30 June 2021, all existing Directors 6 A30H It FEHIRE  2ERTES (85
(including Mr. Zhao Wenging, Mr. Huang Dongfeng, Mr. Yiu Chun SUB4%E4 ZHEEEAE hEBELE  BEER
Kong, Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng, Dr. Guo Honglin, Mr. Sue Ka Lok, Mr.  BE4c4 -~ SPstARiE + « aR K44 4 - ER T
Pun Chi Ping, Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat) %4 «  2EEL+REBELEESXE)DETD
have complied with Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code and have & AR SFANEX EA6.5E 2 HE « I
provided the Company with their respective training records pursuant S AREN 2 EATAIAA A GIREFHEE &
to the CG Code. b=l >

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis and meets on other ZBEEZ@TFTH NN ESERENESEELES
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is EREHEITEE EFENERGEEAK
required. The Board also monitors and controls financial performance &£ B ERFBE M B 2 BB R o

in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Company held four regular Board meetings, an annual general 7N SR & £202146 A30H I FE #

B17
meeting and two extraordinary general meetings during the year PUXATHIEEZE& 3 —ARERFEFAENK
ended 30 June 2021. MR EFFRI RS o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEERRE
(Continued) (#&)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) BEER (&)

The attendance of each Director at the meetings held during the year &% = R E £2021F6 8300 1 F /£
ended 30 June 2021 is set out as follows: THEZNEBERLHY N T -

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEBEAY FEAE
Annual Extraordinary
General General
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting

Name of director EEpHE EZggE RREFAE REBIXE
Executive directors: BITESE:
Mr. Zhao Wenqing (Chairman) WXOB L (L /E) 4/4 1/1 1/2
Mr. Huang Dongfeng (Chief Executive Officer) & R R\ %4 (7T B#E#) 3/4 1/1 2/2
Mr. Yiu Chun Kong kEETE 4/4 11 2/2
Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng BRRAE 4/4 1/1 2/2
Dr. Guo Honglin MBAMEL 3/4 1/1 2/2
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BRR&ELE 4/4 1/1 2/2
Independent non-executive directors: BIYFHITESE:
Mr. Pun Chi Ping BRFRE 4/4 11 2/2
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REEL L 4/4 1/1 2/2
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat mRELE 4/4 1/1 2/2
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE FERTHAR

The Company adopts a dual leadership structure in which the role  ZARATIAEEAERERE EEeFFEHAN
of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of RIZ{THAHBITRATEE FFEEE
the Company are assumed by different persons. The Chairman is EBEEZS€7FEEE MBTESLIRLE
responsible for overseeing all Board functions, while the Executive B A BH AR A ZITERAELESE - LLEBEA
Directors and senior management are under the leadership of the EBEHEZYENRKITESSHENTRE LK

Chief Executive Officer of the Company to oversee the day-to-day %% o
operations of the Group and implement the strategies and policies
approved by the Board.

Currently, Mr. Zhao Wenqing is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. IREZEFEeIFABELRE  MARGEZ
Huang Dongfeng is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. THEHAEERRELE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEERRE
(Continued) (#&)
TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS kBTEESZEEH

Each of the Non-executive Directors (including the Independent ®BEIEHTES (BHEBYIEHNTES) 2L
Non-executive Directors) is appointed for a term of 12-month period FHlA+ =18 - TR IEFEM —F RTEE
which automatically renews for successive 12-month periods unless mAIAZEEREL I BRI XEREEE
terminated by either party in writing prior to the expiry of the term. B)EH+—@A - FIEEBRTEE (BIEB
All the Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non- YV IFH{TEH) M BARB ARG 2 EE SR
executive Directors) are also subject to retirement by rotation and MABIRARAGTREAFEAS FHERTRE
re-election at least once every three years at the annual general &:&E(f  WEAZLE=FHERT L o
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of

Association of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES EEZEY

A number of committees of the Board, namely the Audit Committee, ARNATEKILZREBEEREIREFT 2
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, have been TFTHREHZE EEEZEE  HHAEXKEE
set up by the Company, with specific terms of reference relating & - FHEESeRIELZEE S HMiNAEE
to authority and duties, to strengthen the Board’s functions and E& e RIEFHE A -

enhance its expertise.

AUDIT COMMITTEE ERZEEE
The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference thatis in  BZZEB SR G A EEATARE Y
compliance with the CG Code. HrTEmBEaE -

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three RARELDH  EZEZELIREBFE =S
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Chi Tat, Y 3ERITESHEELXE - FRFEER
Mr. Pun Chi Ping and Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine, who among REEL+ JFKERSGTEENEETE
themselves possess a wealth of management experience in the HELEEE&KR BERZESTFEALE
accounting profession and in commercial fields. The Audit Committee  3E % 4 o

is chaired by Mr. Yeung Chi Tat.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing financial BZZES@IFXZASEHAQNTZHHER
statements of the Company, discussing the risk management & - st AEE 7 AR S I8 & A EpELHE & &
and internal control of the Group and meeting with the auditor of ARNAGZEEESH - BEREE € 2 (T ER
the Company. Any findings and recommendations of the Audit REFEEE2XxEFTSUHZEE-
Committee will be submitted to the Board for consideration.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any B ZLZECEEFeREATHBESEN
activity within its terms of reference. It is authorised to seek any 2 {F{i;E&) - HEEE R MEE ZNHE
information it requires from any employee. It is also authorised to  ZEZ{F A&kl - MEFRES KN Z@EZHH
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice and BV HEER  UBEREEZABEER
to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and EESEEAHEBLCHR R ELE IR A TLHE -
expertise if it considers necessary. The full terms of reference of the BWREESBMESHEZ 2 XAARA T4HIL
Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website and the  REiZFrAGuEER] -

Stock Exchange’s website.

REE2021F6A30H I FE R

o

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 30
June 2021.
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(Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

F 3, ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EEEBRE
()

BERERE"(E)
ERBZHFEBEREINAT

Attendance/

Number of

meetings

HESRIE

Name of member REHE BEAH
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat BEERE 2/2
Mr. Pun Chi Ping %5@¥%$ 2/2
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REELL 2/2

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2021:

reviewed and discussed with the management and the auditor
of the Company the annual audit plan, accounting policies and
practices which may affect the Group and the scope of the
audit;

reviewed reports from the auditor of the Company regarding
their audit on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020;

reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020
and recommended to the Board for approval;

reviewed and discussed the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the six months ended
31 December 2020 and recommended to the Board for
approval;

reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

reviewed the compliance of the CG Code by the Group;
reviewed the continuing connected transactions; and

reviewed and approved the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the Company’s auditor; and reviewed and made

recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the
Company’s auditor.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of reference

that is in compliance with the CG Code.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Christine and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Pun Chi Ping.

Ping, Ms. Leung Pik Har,

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for formulating
the remuneration policy, reviewing and recommending to the Board
the annual remuneration policy and the remuneration of the directors.
The overriding objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure
that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate a high caliber
team which is essential to the success of the Group. The full terms

TtEERHRE

(%)

FMEES

‘ﬁ@N?E\ﬁEuTZﬁ PEERTAREZ
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REARERR FMEEG I KEEE=%

Pun Chi BYIFRTESEAFLE  REELIR
SEELE -FHZES TR AEBATEL

Ao

FHZERTEABNEFMEK oz
i%’r@ﬂﬁﬁ(ﬁ&§$2 G WREEGEL

BE - FMBRcEZENAERAEERE
HWE - BB RESHRE KM - Mk TR
HAKBERY ZE% - FHNEEaBESE
ZEXAIRA R R4 R B X P vh B R o

of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year #BHZEE @ RNE E2021F6A30B LFE L
ended 30 June 2021. The attendance of each member is set out as 55%{7?@ N&E e SKEZHEBRES
follows: K
Attendance/
Number of
meetings
HEEERE
Name of member REHA BEAH
Mr. Pun Chi Ping %5@¥%$ 2/2
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REE L+ 2/2
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat BEERE 2/2
The following is a summary of work performed by the Remuneration AT A#HMEE @ E E2021E6A30H 1E
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2021: FEMETIEZBE

1. reviewed the annual remuneration policy;

2. reviewed the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Non- 2.
executive Director and the Independent Non-executive Directors
and management year-end bonus and assessed performance of

the Executive Directors;

3. reviewed and approved the services agreement of the Directors; 3.

and

4. made recommendation to the Board on the above matters. 4,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Group recognises the importance of high caliber and competent
staff and continues to provide remuneration packages to employees
with reference to prevailing market practices and individual
performance. Other benefits, such as medical and retirement
benefits, are also provided. In addition, share options may be
granted to eligible employees of the Group (including the Directors)
in accordance with the terms of the approved share option scheme
adopted by the Group.

Details of Directors’ emoluments during the year ended 30 June
2021 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
and details of the share option scheme are set out in the Directors’
Report and note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. The
total remuneration of the senior management (excluding Directors)
for the year ended 30 June 2021 is in the range of HK$500,000 —
HK$3,000,000.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Leung
Pik Har, Christine, Mr. Pun Chi Ping and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for identifying
potential directors and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. Potential new
directors are selected on the basic of his/her qualifications, skills and
experience that he/she could add value to the management through
his/her contributions in the relevant strategic business areas. The full
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEERRE
(Continued) (#&)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued) RBEZEG (&)

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 1IZEZZE8 @NEE2021F6A30HILFE L
30 June 2021. The attendance of each member is set out as follows: #1T— A &% c S B 2 H BB &5 1

™
Attendance/
Number of
meetings
HEEERE
Name of member REHER BERE
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REELL 11
Mr. Pun Chi Ping = it 1/1
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat BRERERE 1/1

The following is a summary of work performed by the Nomination AT AIR&ZE 8 € RE £2021468308 I
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2021: FEETIEZHE

1. assessed and confirmed the independence of the Independent 1. =ik M FEIE T IEHITE BB
Non-executive Directors;

2. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the 2. HitBESHE - AHNARK (BIER

skills, knowledge, diversity and experience) of the Board; BE A Znlb RER)
3. reviewed the board diversity policy; 3. BMENEBBFELZILILEUR:
4. reviewed the appointment and re-election of directors, and 4, EREZEREEES N
5. made recommendation to the Board on the above matters. 5 Blri=mEmEelRHEEEE -
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEEL LR

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board ZAARHAZEESKEZT/LEEFALARN
to enhance the quality of its performance and adopted the board EKREBHWERVEMNAIATEETSZ (L
diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The W& ([BEeLntEsl) B85 e% ik
Board Diversity Policy sets out that in determining the optimum KEFBBAETEEeMELALN  EZ
composition of the Board, differences in skills, regional and industry  Efge - i@ RITELR &= &k -t
experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of RINHEMEZEZEMNER - ZEREER
directors shall be considered. All Board appointments are made on J/BESS{/ELRBENEN  WEESEES
merits, in the context of skills and experience the Board as a whole Tt HiEEe TR  FTEES T ELL
requires, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, B AMA ARE| UNIREEZECETFR
and the Nomination Committee shall review and assess the Board =R EBZSMERNENEK - BETS
composition and its effectiveness on an annual basis. When there  HIRZeHbE IEEZEeRIBREEZEEEN
is vacancy on Board, the Nomination Committee will recommend BE#E&E @ WHEEZEAQNGTHNE FEMN -
suitable candidates for appointment to the Board on merits, based A AMA ARAAESESRLZESFEA
on the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, with due  PAft{F#p o

regard to the Company’s own circumstances.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy REZZE€EIARHEARAANNESTESZ /LK

from time to time to ensure that the policy will be implemented  S{EHHE - IR ZBUS LA MM 1T o
effectively.
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(Continued)

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy of the Company
(the “Nomination Policy”) setting out the principles which guide
the Nomination Committee to identify and evaluate a candidate
for nomination to (i) the Board for appointment; and (ii) the
Shareholders for election as a director of the Company. According
to the Nomination Policy, in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate, the Board shall take into account among other things,
the following factors: (i) qualifications, professional experience, skills
and knowledge which are relevant to the businesses of the Group; (ii)
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest; (iii) in
case of independent non-executive directors, regulatory requirement
for appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors and the
independence criteria as set out in the Listing Rules; (iv) diversity
perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy; and (v) any
other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

For filling a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. On making recommendation, the Nomination
Committee may submit to the Board a proposal comprising, inter
alia, the personal profile of the proposed candidate for consideration.
The personal profile should contains at least the candidate’s
information required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51 of the Listing
Rules. The Board shall be vested with power to make the final
decision on all matters relating to the recommendation of candidates
(i) for appointment; and (i) for standing for election at a general
meeting as Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy

from time to time to ensure that the polices will be implemented
effectively.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEERRE

(Continued) (#&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS TEERRBE

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate EEE@BEEBETAATIZEEABENE
governance of the Company and performing the corporate {7/ EGBEINT ¢

governance duties as below:

—_

1.  to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on

corporate governance and make recommendations;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on

BE R ANEE 2 EEEABRNE
o WIRHEE

2. R MEREFERSNEEAE ZH
RESEEEER

3. R MERAKEEETHBEERNE

compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements; ERMETEZBREGE

BIE - B REFEARAKEZER
REEZRTEAREATM: &

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and 4.
compliance manual applicable to the employees and directors
of the Group; and

R AREETREERTAZERR
EEEEARTSAZIREEL -

5. to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and 5.
disclosure requirements in the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ESpAAMBRRARENEL

EEmANSHEZEE£2021F6A30A 1E
FEZYBHRERNET  UBERREEMA
Fih AR R RAEERZANEBHARR
UERAEBHEZALFENEERRSR
2 WIREATERE BB ERIZE

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group at that date and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the
year then ended and are properly prepared on the going concern

basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable B4 & H AT A8l o
accounting standards.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL RBEEERAIPEE

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and ZHZ€2EEEH#STETERNERSER
MEPES T - I 28 B E AR AUA R R AR R 5 &
REBEE - BBEERAETHESE
EEMIEERAEERERBIZNRAR - I
REEEMIEBEMRE L EEAKRE Rl
BR -BERBEHNREAEBE 20K 28R

BB -

effective risk management and internal control and reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and the
Group’s assets. The risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The review
covers financial, operational and compliance controls of the Group.
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(Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The Group does not have an internal audit function in view of the
size of the Group and consideration for cost effectiveness. During
the year under review, the Company engaged an independent
consultant to conduct review on the risk management and internal
control systems once for the year ended 30 June 2021 to identify
and evaluate significant risks of the Group’s business operations. The
Board believes that the involvement of an independent consultant
could enhance the objectivity and transparency of the evaluation
process. During its review, the consultant has performed an
assessment of selected financial procedures, systems and internal
controls in order to identify significant findings in the relevant internal
controls of the Group. Certain aspects of their review include
corporate governance and listing rules compliance. The consultant
has also conducted interviews with the Group’s management,
staff members and key process operators, and inspected relevant
documentations in order to understand the Group’s processes and
controls. The consultant has performed tests to determine whether
the controls have been properly implemented and operated, and
finally identified certain findings based on their results of tests
and developed relevant recommendations and suggestions for
improvement.

For the risk management perspective, the consultant has also
performed an assessment on the Group’s financial, operation,
compliance and strategic aspects and identified certain risk areas.
A written risk assessment report with the identified key risks and
risk evaluation results have been presented to the Board. The Board
will implement appropriate measures to continue to minimise the
identified risks and control them within acceptable levels. In order to
manage risks effectively, the management will continue to monitor
the identified risks and the respective control measures, and arrange
adequate resources for the effective control measures undertaken.

In order to assess the importance and materiality of the identified
risks, the management ranked the risks based on the level of
likelihood and impact from a scale of 1 to 5 (56 being the highest
level), the highest the level of likelihood and risk impact, the more
important and material the risks are, which the management will put
more effort and resources in managing those risks.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEERRE
(Continued) (#&)
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued) BREERAIEIE(Z)

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Board has conducted an #E2021F6A30H IFFEE £ @ 2K
annual review of the effectiveness of the risk management and EEHERE I & A EEES HE 698 W& 1T
internal control systems of the Group by, including but not limited FE®ER > SHEFE(BTRER)ZEHER
to, considering the internal control and risk assessment report  [AZARRQ B FTAREURE Filt 7 E &) N EPES 1 &%
prepared by the consultant to the Company covering the above A (RS - EE2 NP ELEFEZEED
aspects. The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, ANEBEEETLRIHERENETEHNER
staff qualifications and experience, and training programmes of the BI&FENRKEBUNLIEIZEEERE - R
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function during the year & ZE2021FE6A30R IFFE EE€ WA
under review. The Board is not aware of any significant internal B EARNEPEIE R AR EIRIHE - LT
control and risk management weaknesses nor significant breach of HMFEEHBEREHISEMSIERE @ ¥R
limits or risk management policies, and considers the existing internal ~ &IR G ALEILHIE M AR B IR HIE B A K
control and risk management systems effective and adequate for RE%# - KA D ETREEETETEN
the year ended 30 June 2021. The Company has complied with the  E[&E B & RSP ESIE 9t R <F RIS S -
relevant code provisions of the CG Code relating to risk management

and internal control.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION EEREHAREEE

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and ZAARBREREREHBRNENSKE  EF
dissemination of inside information which sets out the procedures & HBRELEHABSEHENERF KRN EPE
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside 5 + {8 (R &5 B 12 LU B g 38 [ 364 - i it
information in a timely manner in such a way to avoid placing any S®EB8HFRATEZTEFTH EERNEED
person in a privileged dealing position. The inside information policy — #bfi7 © RNE M B I E I AN E B E B 14t i5
also provides guidelines to employees of the Group to ensure 3| HIRZAESHEMEATERN KR RERE
proper safeguards exists to prevent the Company from breaching TR EFRAIZEERTE - X2 GEEEE
the statutory and listing rule disclosure requirements. The Company BN ZPEEHE R ESRHIE - AR M EHHE
has appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify HIREHEE - 1B EHRABRE - NAQ 7
and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of inside  #RE Y S 2 5 AR A D B &5 FT 480,
information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing the — TIE(HEEHEE

relevant information on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEMEREZ

Financial Reporting B % iR

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and EZ=€EEBERAQTFEERLRTHERSE @K
understandable assessment of the Company’s annual and interim  FEHEHAE MR EMBE - H#E 8 & E g
reports, inside information announcements and other financial ERTETEELZHEFRE2H —ENRET
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory & - /S R eI B R 2 3T (H ©

requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the & BHERKEZHERADFH E£2021F68

consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30H It FE 2 5 MBHRAME T -
30 June 2021.
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(Continued)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Financial Reporting (Continued)

Save as disclosed in the “Going concern basis” in note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to any events or conditions that may
cause significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The Independent Auditor’'s Report states the
auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages
62 to 67.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Group’s external auditors are set out as follows:

Approximate fees paid/payable to

F 3, ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(ft}%%’ﬁ#&%

BMENERER(E)

MBHEE(E)

BréRE M S MERM 20 [ FE LS €
WS BEE W T AEEEMEHANE R
BRNERERTEERE - Mg
HARBMFELERNAEARE - B
PG EH Lt GNP
FAREE -

ARAINEZEEN A B AR B LR A B R
ROERBEMELNBAFNEC2ETE
B 78 3L A% B o o

BEETH 2

HE2021F6A30R L FE * AEEINE
ZEENE A EA 2Bl E T T

B ERzBHNER

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$ HK$
Services rendered for the Group [ EBiR M2 R B BT
Audit services ZEART 1,394,000 1,375,000

Non-audit services FEIZBAR TS
— Agreed-upon procedures of interim review - 3 EAHHIEERL T 130,000 120,000
— Other non-audit services - H A IEZEARTS 318,000 308,000
1,842,000 1,803,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yam Pui Hung, Robert, the Chief Financial Officer has been
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since 3 May
2019. Mr. Yam holds a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy degree
from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as the “City
University of Hong Kong”). Mr. Yam is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yam has
extensive experience in accounting, financial management, corporate
finance and company secretarial practice. Mr. Yam has taken no less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year
ended 30 June 2021.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED BB 5 R EMR A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEERRE
(Continued) (#&)
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS B% SR HE R

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company provides a AAFzREBEARe ([REBAERE]) A
forum for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. REREFIZME BRI - ZHREESE
The notice of the AGM is despatched to all the Shareholders at least A& vi@4&@LHEZREBAE NS EITH
20 clear business days prior to such AGM. The chairpersons of all HFAZF+EATELSHEBEXZIRE -TEE
the Board committees are invited to attend the AGM. The chairman ZEZE8e€ I FEHEF2MKRERAFAE -
of the Board and the chairpersons of all the Board committees, ESE€XFELMEESZE S 2 X/F (34
or in their absence, other members of the respective committees, REMRF @ BIZEE@ 7 HMKE) SNIR
are available to answer questions at the AGM. The auditor of the FEE AK® LB Z(FMIER/ o« AQ FZEHED
Company is also invited to attend the AGM to answer questions JMEESIMIREBERSUBEEBEZY
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the  #25F  RENZEMHRE 2 AND ~ @51 K E
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor’s independence.  NiZ &R 2 B M2 HRE -

Procedures to convene an extraordinary general meeting by BREFZHERFEIASRIRKREASIEZ %
Shareholders and to put forward proposals at general meeting ZHEZEF

Any one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit {EfAl—&ZERELERAHRKHE T
of requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of RAQATEHERAN(MERKRATREANE
the Company carrying right of voting at general meetings of the F2#®ZR)+5 27— KkE - REMEE
Company, shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to Y ERAES@H AT 2 A0 MEHHE
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company to require ®EZEX X ERkEEeBMAKREER RS A
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the [RIBEEERKPIERAZTFMEE BB XA
transaction of any business specified in such requisition and such E@ERIESZERKEBEWEARNETT
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such

requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to (HEEE@AENZEEREEZ _t+—HRW
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) may convene a meeting ZHHZAE W BlIEEERKATAILARET K
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by ZBEAE MEZERKATHEETEREE
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be BAEMABELZMERZERARTR
reimbursed by the Company to the requisitionist(s). REEERALEBER -

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election REEENEZEEEZNEF
as a director

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of Association, RIBEAATZAEMSGERRMANFESSE Bire
no person, other than a Director retiring at a meeting, shall, 3% FRFEZEEI  FRATHREZTEE
unless recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for & W EEREFMIREAS FESFHFT
appointment as a Director at any general meeting unless there shall ZEZE @ BRIECAAR R AR ERNELEIE
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration office of X—/HMZEBRHFEEZIRE LRR
the Company a notice in writing signed by a Shareholder (other than R E (T EIEEHEA D) EZE 7 Z2HA
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the 41+ ERHBIEZHERZA T HEIES 1L
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose RIEX—HHZATHAEERREEEDE
that person for election as a Director and also a notice in writing #7ZMEEH o FiBMEZEREASH
signed by that person of his willingness to be elected as a Director.  Hi DR R EETEHRETZ R E +UE
The said notices shall have been lodged at the head office or at the ZEBHAIEXZEANGENHERNELE ©
registration office of the Company not less than 7 clear days but ZEMEBAETARE ETHREIZE13.51(2)
not more than 14 clear days before the date of the general meeting. KR TEZZBATEREER > MiZza A+
The written notice must state that person’s biographical details as 78 1R #& & #% B @ Bk Bt & #8 All(Regulation of
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and that the person  the English Football League)pft4s =R HE
has passed The Owners’ and Directors’ Test in the UK pursuant to  @iE#H A A K E EE E(The Owners’ and
the Appendix Ill of the Regulation of the English Football League. Directors’ Test) °
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(Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Procedures to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong or email to ir@bihl.com.hk
for the attention of the Company Secretary of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. When considering
the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board takes into
account the following factors: (i) the actual and expected financial
performance of the Group, (i) the retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Group, (iii) the expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans, (iv) liquidity position, and (v) any other
factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The form and frequency of dividend declaration and payment shall
be determined at the sole and absolute discretion of the Board and
is also subject to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles
of Association.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include the annual general meeting, the annual and interim
reports, notices, announcements and circulars and the Company’s
website at www.bshl.com.hk.

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company Secretary
of the Company at 31/F, Vertical Sqg., 28 Heung Yip Road, Wong
Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, there had been no change to
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

.

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
68 to 165, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group incurred a loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$74,232,000 for the
year ended 30 June 2021 and as at 30 June 2021 the Group had net
current liabilities of approximately HK$267,024,000. These conditions
indicate a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not

modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

() INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of intangible assets for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of intangible assets of approximately
HK$140,983,000 as at 30 June 2021 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based
on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
- Assessing the valuation models used by the Group;

—  Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of
the external valuers engaged by the Group;

—  Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with
the external valuers to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgements and assumptions applied in
the valuation models;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation
models to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation models;
and

—  Obtaining market data of the intangible assets.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for intangible
assets is supported by the available evidence.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Continued)

(m

()

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group measured its investment properties at fair value
with the changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. This fair value measurement is
significant to our audit because the balance of investment
properties of approximately HK$481,962,000 as at 30 June
2021 and the fair value loss of approximately HK$48,672,000
for the year then ended are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s fair value measurement
involves application of judgement and is based on assumptions
and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of
the external valuer engaged by the Group;

— Obtaining the external valuation report and meeting with
the external valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgements and assumptions applied in
the valuation model;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation
model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in
the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of the
investment properties is supported by the available evidence.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Refer to Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of deposits, prepayments
and other receivables for impairment. This impairment test
is significant to our audit because the balance of deposits,
prepayments and other receivables of approximately
HK$275,420,000 as at 30 June 2021 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based
on estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Continued)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits
and credit periods to debtors;

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the debtors;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

—  Assessing ageing of the debts;

—  Assessing creditworthiness of the debtors;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the debtors; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for deposits,
prepayments and other receivables is supported by the available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Continued)

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s website
at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/
auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P07268
Hong Kong, 30 September 2021
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

REBEBERHEMEZERER

INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2021 B ZE2021F6H30H IFF/E
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FET
Revenue g 8 165,023 231,529
Operating expenses LR (427,136) (449,872)
Loss from operations REER (262,113) (218,343)
Interest revenue M Bz 17,896 7,803
Other income L @N 10 16,321 14,649
Other gains and losses, net HE e kg8, 55 11 (3,713) (19,447)
Profit on sales of players’ registration &8 31 2 & F) 276,854 115,543
Amortisation of intangible assets T A Y (76,854) (84,331)
Administrative and other expenses TR R EMAE (50,134) (54,370)
Finance costs BE AR 12 (30,675) (33,187)
Loss before taxation BRELATE 1B (112,418) (271,683)
Income tax credit FTEfHER 13 589 5,199
Loss for the year KEEFIR 14 (111,829) (266,484)
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 m W= (BIZ)
(expense)
Iltems that may be reclassified BENBEEF DT Bz
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH -
Exchange differences arising on BEG NGB A R ISR R
translation of financial statements of EEZIERE%E
overseas subsidiaries 11,853 (11,557)
Reclassification of translation reserve &M B A 714 BIE X i
to profit or loss upon disposal of a B EEER
subsidiary 41 8,378 =
20,231 (11,557)
Total comprehensive expense AEEEEBXEE
for the year (91,598) (278,041)
Loss for the year attributable to: EBERFERSSE :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ SN (74,232) (260,484)
Non-controlling interests eI IR fE = (37,597) (6,000)
(111,829) (266,484)

68



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (Continueq,

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

GeEaREMEZEKRER &)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 B 22021F6H30H IFF/E
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FET
Total comprehensive expense BiEAEEXmMBZ AL
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAREEB A (42,789) (272,955)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR A (48,809) (5,086)
(91,598) (278,041)
Loss per share attributable to AATEBEANELESRER
owners of the Company
— Basic (HK cent(s)) —BERCGEAM) 18 (0.40) (1.47)
— Diluted (HK cent(s)) — 5% GEN) 18 (0.40) (1.47)
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ARE B AR R &R
FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2021 R2021F6H30H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KRR 19 32,516 171,065
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 86,943 24,219
Intangible assets EREE 21 140,983 164,435
Goodwill kS 22 - 6,522
Investment properties BREMEE 23 481,962 530,634
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEMIT A 41 - 5,483
Deposits, prepayments and other R EARIEREA
receivables FEWFRIE 27 53,750 47,146
Total non-current assets JEMENEERTR 796,154 949,504
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 25 378 856
Trade receivables EUE S BRI 26 13,804 5,347
Deposits, prepayments and other £« BARIEREMm
receivables FEUL ZR I8 27 221,670 66,864
Contract assets BREE 33 - 140
Pledged bank deposits BEEARITER 8,600 7,634
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIAS 36,155 31,170
Total current assets BN B E AR 280,607 112,011
Current liabilities REBEE
Transfer fee payables ANEE == 28 17,266 28,496
Trade payables JERTE SR 29 10,104 16,420
Accruals and other payables FESTIRIE N E fth FE S 2k IR 30 75,455 143,620
Amount due to a related party e BRE 5 B 31 213,359 =
Deferred capital grants BRI B ARBER 32 - 544
Contract liabilities aHaE S8 35,326 6,671
Borrowings 'R 34 184,435 482,621
Lease liabilities HEBE 35 11,686 7,093
Total current liabilities mE B EER 547,631 685,465
Net current liabilities REBEETE (267,024) (573,454)
Total assets less current liabilities BEABERADEE 529,130 376,050
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GREMBERREK &)

As at 30 June 2021 R2021#F6H30H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Transfer fee payables ENEgE 28 19,888 -
Accruals and other payables FESTIRIE N Hfh fE S 3R IR 30 - 15,088
Deferred capital grants JRIEE AR 32 - 12,860
Borrowings B 34 109,325 4,821
Lease liabilities HEBE 35 92,526 22,260
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE 36 2,577 20,792
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERE 224,316 75,821
NET ASSETS BETHE 304,814 300,229
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital A% AR 37 192,890 177,100
Reserves fEE 37 342,411 149,647
Equity attributable to owners of the PN PN g
Company 535,301 326,747
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR 7 (230,487) (26,518)
TOTAL EQUITY g 304,814 300,229

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 165 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the
Company on 30 September 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhao Wenqing
HWXE
Director

EF
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBA &8 A #

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2021

RERAE

2 F2021F6 H30H IFF/E

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRS AEE
Share Non-
Share Share Capital  Translation options  Accumulated controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests Total
R REE  EARE  EXRE  BRERE  ZHEE &t FEREE @5t
Notes ~ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it & FiAT FAT AT FAT FiET FAT AT FAT
At 1 July 2020 202067 A1R 177,100 1,563,733 6,510 (95,390) 7,159 (1,332,365) 326,747 (26,518) 300,229
Recognition of equity-settled Hes2L gL E
share-based payments IR BER
expense 3% 38 - - - - 2,315 - 2,315 - 2,315
Issue of shares upon RAREHRTRG
share placing 37 5,164 64,550 - - - - 69,714 - 69,714
Transaction costs RAREZRFKA
attributable to
share placing - (1,230) - - - - (1,230) - (1,230)
Issue of shares upon RAREERIRG
share subscription 37 10,626 156,198 - - - - 166,824 - 166,824
Transaction costs RODEZRBRE
attributable to
share subscriptions - (151) - - - - (151) - (151)
Disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE—BMEBAR 41 - - - - - - - 25,126 25,126
Changes in ownership KB A RMAEE
interests in subsiclaries  EAEHTEHIE
without change of control A% 40 - - - - - 13,871 13,871 (180,286) (166,415)
Total comprehensive TEERERRAR
expense for the year - - - 31,443 - (74,232) (42,789) (48,809) (91,598)
At 30 June 2021 12021567308 192,890 1,783,100 6,510 (63,947) 9474 (1,392,726 535,301 (230,487) 304,814
At 1 July 2019 R2019%€7A1H 177,100 1,663,733 6,510 (82,919) 4,398 (1,071,881) 596,941 (21,432) 575,509
Recognition of equity-settled HzAL\ g E
share-based payments IR BER,
expense i3 38 = - = - 2,761 = 2,761 = 2,761
Total comprehensive TEZRERRLR
expense for the year - - - [12471) - (60484 [272959) (G088 (278041)
At 30 June 2020 R202066A30R 177,100 1,663,733 6,510 (95,390) 7,159 (1,332,365) 326,747 (26,518) 300,229
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the * ZEHEEAKGETBAART ZEE
consolidated statement of financial position. A -
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RERERER

CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE2021F6H30H IFF/E
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BRETHZ2HER
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation B B R S 18 (112,418) (271,683)
Adjustments for: EEEEE
Finance costs & pK A 30,675 33,187
Interest revenue A B U 25 (17,896) (7,803)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BENMREITE
equipment 11,389 15,875
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 9,807 4,710
Amortisation of intangible assets MG EE 76,854 84,331
Share-based payments expense ARG BERE 2 R T 2,315 2,761
Profit on sale of players’ registration HE Bk 8 s it 2 % F (276,854) (115,543)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mIVEEZRERBE 812 393
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {FR#EEE 2R EKRE 10,049 -
Fair value change on investment WEMEZ N TFEEE
properties 48,672 22,386
Impairment loss on trade receivables JEWE SRR 2 BERBE 102 3,042
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEWE 5 BR FOR B B8 2 B
receivables (61) (164)
Fixed assets written off i E B E 10 -
Reversal of impairment loss on other H b e WER BUR B B 18 2 # O
receivables (1,677) =
Impairment loss on other receivables HE AR 2 B EEE 1 1,577
Impairment loss on goodwill EE 2 REEE 5,600 2,212
Gain on termination of lease agreement #% |- 78 & 17 3% ~ Wz (3) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HE %% - FE RH &2 WS
equipment (2) -
Gain on bargain purchase of HEWEWNEQ R 2K
subsidiaries (15) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR WS (74,223) -
Loss on extinguishing financial liabilities LA#E# T E KR S /B EEE
with equity instruments 26,830 =
Fair value gain on derivative financial MESBIAEZ ATFEREZ
instruments (14,017) (5,544)
Operating cash flows before working LEESEBYA 2 LETEEM
capital changes (274,050) (230,263)
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HEHBEERERAA

mERE

D — 1 =
/ﬁi%(%)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Change in inventories FEZ# 569 2,539
Change in trade receivables EWE SRR & (7,600) (1,108)
Change in deposits, prepayments and &% - 78 5018 & H #f fE ig
other receivables RIEZ & (79,834) (39,756)
Change in trade payables BB SRR &8 (8,156) (6,298)
Change in other payables and accruals  H 1th & {5 238 & f& 51 3008 2 & &) 15,413 45,073
Change in deferred capital grants PRI A R R 2 (544) (560)
Change in contract assets EHEEZEE 140 (140)
Change in contract liabilities EHEEBEZED 27,019 (22,029)
Net cash flows used in operating KETHRAZRERFHE
activities (327,043) (252,542)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHZ2HER
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and WEEY % B K& E
equipment (3,671) (1,821)
Payment of investment properties WEYEZ R - (48,326)
Acquisition of intangible assets WIEER & E (57,899) (89,137)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE BMENLIZEZ
plant and equipment Fr{S 5038 760 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B BB A A 1,153 226
Proceeds from disposal of interest in HENE QR S 4
subsidiaries without loss of control 7= i ¥ BT 15 SR IR 56,200 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & Kff B A 7] Fr 15 5518 120,280 -
Proceeds from disposals of intangible & &F & E 1S58
assets 199,053 92,038
Interest received 2 F 2 4,762 7,803
Net cash flows generated from RETBHEE (FTA)Z
(used in) investing activities BeERBHE 320,638 (39,217)
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SGEBRERERE)

HE2021F6H30H IFF/E

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEFHZ2HER
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new borrowings SERZEFBHRIEA 468,155 310,955
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE (6,570) (4,206)
Repayment of borrowings BEEXR (515,067) (33,135)
Net proceeds from share placing DR & 2 AT 1S RIEF 58 68,484 -
Advance from a related party RERBER 2B 24,805 -
Interest paid B F & (32,940) (22,999)
Net cash flows generated from BMEEFHEECRESRFE
financing activities 6,867 250,615
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN HERBFESEEEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i CRA) F58 462 (41,144)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzRekBEEEBER
beginning of year 31,170 75,728
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EX& &) 7 & 4,523 (3,414)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZ2ESRBESEEER
the end of year 36,155 31,170
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B & IFREZEHEB 2
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Eeraw
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIE® 36,155 31,170
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2021

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. The registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of this annual
report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of its major subsidiaries are engaged
in the operation of a professional football club in the UK,
properties investment in Cambodia, provision of lottery system
and online payment system service solutions (“System Service
Solutions”) and healthcare and medical related business.

Upon the disposal of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
Power Super Limited (“Power Super”), the Group had ceased to
engage in provision of System Service Solutions business.

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars for the
convenience of users of the consolidated financial statements
as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, as modified by revaluation
of investment properties and certain financial instruments,
which are carried at their fair values. They are presented
in HK$ and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$’000) except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Going concern basis

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$74,232,000 for
the year ended 30 June 2021 and as at 30 June 2021
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$267,024,000. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. The directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the next twelve months after
taking into consideration that (i) the Company has a loan
facility from a substantial shareholder of the Company,
Trillion Trophy Asia Limited (“Trillion Trophy”) under which
an unsecured revolving loan facility up to HK$250,000,000
has been granted to the Company (the “Trillion Trophy
Facility”); (i) the Company has a loan facility from Oriental
Rainbow Investments Limited (“Oriental Rainbow”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the
Company under which an unsecured revolving loan facility
up to HK$300,000,000 has been granted to the Company
(the “Oriental Rainbow Facility”); and (i) the Company has
a loan facility with aggregate amount of approximately
HK$12,010,000 from a third party lender.

As at 30 June 2021, the total carrying amount of the
borrowings under the above facilities of the Group was
approximately HK$57,607,000. As at 30 June 2021, the
Group had approximately HK$504,403,000 undrawn
borrowing facilities available.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to the consolidated financial statements
to adjust the value of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to
its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 July 2020. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements and
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made
up to 30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income), the
amount that was recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised on the same basis as would
be required if the previously held equity interest were
disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the

acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”).
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Group’s presentation

currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or

loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are

determined.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain

or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(iiij) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

. Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of

financial position;

o Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

° All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss

on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

(e)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

1% - 10%

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease, or 20%

20% - 33%

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% — 33%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method

are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property
including property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property is measured initially
at its cost including all direct costs attributable to the

property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at
its fair value based on valuation by an external independent
valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the investment property are recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

U]

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land 1%
Buildings 10% - 50%
Equipment 33% - 50%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or
otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease term of
12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their
useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The amortisation expense is recognised
in profit or loss and included in administrative and
operating expenses.

Membership 12 years
Software 10 years

Acquired players’ registration

Costs of acquisition of players’ registration are initially
recognised at cost at the date of acquisition and amortised
over the period of the respective player’s contract,
being between one to five years. A provision is made in
accruals, where in management’s opinion, the club is likely
to achieve a contractually agreed number of first team
appearances. Where the outcome of this is uncertain, the
maximum amount payable is disclosed as a contingent
liability.

For the purposes of impairment testing, acquired players’
registration are classified as a single cash generating unit
until the point at which:

o it is made clear that the player no longer remains
as an active member of the playing squad. In these
circumstances the carrying value of the players’
registration is reviewed against a measurable net
realisable value; or

° the carrying amount of a registration will be recovered
through sale. The measurement of such registration is
at the lower of (i) fair value (less costs of disposal) and
(i) carrying value. Amortisation of such registration
is suspended at the time of reclassification,
although impairment charges still need to be made if
applicable.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

1)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following category:

()  Financial assets at amortised cost:

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if they
satisfy both of the following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.

(i) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category
if they do not meet the conditions to be measured
at amortised cost and the conditions of debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial
recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising from changes in fair values recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest
income and dividend income. Interest income and
dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(k)

U

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost and contract
assets. Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring
as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of that
financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for
trade receivables and contract assets, or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on
a financial instrument (other than trade receivables and
contract assets) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion
of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the
expected credit losses that result from default events on
that financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

88

e BRI )

£ 2202146 30H 1L F/E
4. FESTHBERGE)
(k) BEHEEBENBRRMAE

U]

7N SR B AR 3 5H K AN B BR O &
BERAHEBEMNEHREEERRE
HABRRE RHEEEER
MEFHEERE XIAZLE
MRS BIERINESE -

REREHR  SLEKE SRR
REHWEEMS  AMEBMTH
MEERR B 75 R IARKIE
g AIAKRESRASFR%ZE
BTAREFHAMAE AL
EMENEHMEIBNERES
BR(2HBEHEEERD NS
B OAEeMIANEERE -

HRMEHR - SRTHE (BKRE
FERRENEERIN WEER
[\ fez B ) 2 B R DA 2R 3 4 A 1 3R
e AIAEEERAERRRZ
ERTARBSHR T _@EAR
ARERAMENEFMSIBES
EEEENEHEREEEER
DHEREFESE T A/ ERER
=

BHREEEREBARARES
HRBEBREEMTEMER
Bl & 8 T A B 2 T R R Rl (B AR o

ReERkBETEEEHE

RREREXRME  RERBE
SEEBRERTERTFEAS &
B RTT R E AL B 548 208
TR AREHERBEZRE
(FTENES 8830 5 B MBUFRIR © FRIR
RZGEREEEBRRAR)
RehBReFERBNEREAR
EREELRSAEERBESE
B2 ZRITEX °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including contingent considerations under
business combinations) are initially recognised and
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising from changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities relate to amounts received from
sponsorships and sale of season tickets and is released
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period to
which it relates.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(s)

®

Capital grants

Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and the grants will be received.

Grants and donations received in respect of safety work
and stadium developments are initially recognised as
deferred capital grants in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the assets to which they relate.
Football Trust grants received are released to profit or loss
when the related expenditures are incurred.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference to
the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the product or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(u)

v)

(w)

Other revenue

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purpose of
allocating resources and assessing the performance of the
Group’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ij) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iiij) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of

the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw

the offer of those benefits and when the Group

recognises restructuring costs and involves the

payment of termination benefits.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(x)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees, directors and
consultants

Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s share option
scheme, the Group may issue equity-settled share-based
payments to participants including, among others,
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of
the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will continue to be held in share
options reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(v)

(@)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(2)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(@)

(aa)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (A).

(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the

Company.

If the Group is
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(bb) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not
yet available for use are reviewed annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except goodwill, investment properties, investment,
inventories and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or
cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(cc)

(dd)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are
dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the financial support of Trillion Trophy,
Oriental Rainbow, and a third party and the facilities at a
level sufficient to finance the working capital requirements
of the Group. Details of which are explained in note 2.

(b) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in determining the Group’s deferred tax for investment
properties, the Directors have rebutted the presumption
that investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered through sale.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined with reference to the fair value
less costs of disposal. Where the fair value less costs of
disposal are less than expected or there are unfavourable
events and change in facts and circumstance which result
in revision of fair value less costs of disposal, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Directors periodically review its receivables to assess
whether impairment exists. In determining whether
impairment should be provided, the Directors evaluated
individually each account for impairment after taking into
account the value of each client account’s underlying
collateral and the latest financial position of those clients in
default of settlement.

Player transfer costs

Management has to make certain judgements as to
whether a liability should be recognised under the terms of
the contracts with other football clubs in respect of player
transfers. This includes whether in the management’s
opinion, at the end of the reporting period, the football club
is likely to retain English Football League Championship
status in the next season. It also requires certain
judgements as to whether a player will continue to make
the contractually agreed number of first team appearances.
Based on these judgements, management will decide on
a player by player basis as to whether the liability should
be disclosed as a contingent liability in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements or whether it becomes
a liability and is recognised in transfer fee payable in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets - acquire players’ registration

At the end of each reporting period, the management
considers the recoverability of the acquired players’
registration based on current estimated fair values.
Management considers the economic life of the players’
registration to be between one to five years, based on the
respective players’ contracts. These are reviewed annually
on a player by player basis to determine whether there are
indicators of impairment. Determining whether the players’
registration should be impaired at the end of the reporting
period is based on management’s judgement of whether
the player will no longer remain an active member of the
playing squad and an assessment of the football club’s
likeliness to retain English Football League Championship
status in the next season as well as the current market
value of the players.

Intangible assets - trademark

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, the
Group completed its annual impairment test for trademark
by comparing their recoverable amount to its carrying
amount as at 30 June 2021. The Group has conducted a
valuation of the trademark based on its fair value less cost
of disposal. The impairment test has resulted in recognition
of impairment loss of HK$812,000 on the trademark for
the year ended 30 June 2021. The carrying amount of
trademark as at 30 June 2021 was HK$13,491,000. This
valuation uses the relief from royalty method to determine
the present worth of future after-tax royalties derived from
ownership. Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of
trademark to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
Further details are given in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair values of the investment properties.
In determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest
bearing loans, and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise funding for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities, such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors of the Company reviews and agrees
on policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below:

(a) Foreign currency risk

Certain transactions and monetary assets and liabilities of
the Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollars which
is different from the functional currency of the Group
entities, i.e. GBP, RMB, USD and JPY, which expose the
Group currency risk. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure
to currency risk. The management manages its foreign
currency risk by monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s businesses are mainly located in the UK and
are mainly transacted and settled in Pound Sterling, as
such, the Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly transacted
and settled in RMB, as such, the Group has minimal
exposure to foreign currency risk.

Celestial Fame Investment (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Celestial
Fame Cambodia”) and Deep Blue Trade (Cambodia) Co.,
Ltd. (“Deep Blue”), two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, are engaged in properties investment business
in Cambodia and are mainly transacted and settled in
US dollars. Since Hong Kong dollars is pegged to US
dollars, the risk of volatility between US dollars and Hong
Kong dollars is limited and the directors of the Company
consider that the foreign currency risk is minimal.

Medi Hub Co., Ltd. and Mirai Iryo Sango Co., Ltd. two
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are engaged
in healthcare and medical related business in Japan and
are mainly transacted and settled in Japanese Yen. The
businesses are mainly located in Japan and are mainly
transacted and settled in Japanese Yen, as such, the
Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group did not have any long-term loans with a
floating interest rate during the years ended 30 June 2021
and 2020, so the Group was not exposed to the risk of
changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of (i) bank balances and cash and (ii)
trade and other receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period by comparing the
risk of a default occurring as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following
information is used:

o internal credit rating;

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor;

. significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

° significant changes in the value of the collateral or in

the quality of guarantees or credit enhancements; and

° significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the debtor, including changes in the
payment status of debtor.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual
payment. A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 60
days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally
categorises a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor
fails to make contractual payments greater than 360 days
past due. Where loans or receivables have been written
off, the Group, if practicable and economical, continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is
determined for each of the categories. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category and adjusts for forward
looking data.

Definition

Category Loss provision

Performing Low risk of default and 12 month expected
strong capacity to pay losses

Non-performing  Significant increase Lifetime expected
in credit risk losses

All of non-trade receivables are considered to have low risk
and under the ‘Performing’ category because they have
a low risk of default and have strong ability to meet their
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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6. TREMBERGE)
(d) HEEZEME

AEBEZBRAERERB AR
BEHRDESTFE  UHEREHE
FRARSFHE BHEEHRK
BEMRBDESTE -

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEBEzeRHBERSREHRK
the end of each reporting period, based on the contractual ZEIHA BN (R A L ARBEIR
undiscounted payment, was as follows: \E)WT :
At 30 June 2021 7202156 H30H
In the
Within third to
one year fifth years,
or on In the inclusive
demand second RE=ZFZ Over
R—FR year FRF(BE  five years Total
FEER RE-F BEEME) EENE “m
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Transfer fee payables EfEes 17,266 19,888 - - 37,154
Trade payables BB ST 10,104 - - - 10,104
Accruals and other R REREAM
payables e 3R 75,455 - - - 75,455
Borrowings =5 184,435 80,180 28,946 199 293,760
Notional interest on EREeEs 4%
transfer fee payables RSN 1,381 3,182 - - 4,563
Interest portion of borrowings &3 2 1 8 £ {3 4,643 3,507 1,447 - 9,597
293,284 106,757 30,393 199 430,633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REMBRKRMEE @
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 B FE2021F6H30H 1IFFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. SRERERE)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) mEELEE(E)
At 30 June 2020 20206 A30H
In the third
Within to fifth years,
one year inclusive
or on demand Inthe ME=FZF Over
R—FR secondyear FRE (B five years Total
FIREK REZF BEME) AFUE k]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET TET

Transfer fee payables EfEe s 28,496 - - - 28,496
Trade payables ERESER 16,420 = = = 16,420
Accruals and other EATEREAM
payables e ZIE 143,620 15,088 - - 158,708
Borrowings ¢ 482,621 2,785 1,859 177 487,442
Notional interest on EEeE 4%
transfer fee payables FE 380 - = = 380
Interest portion of borrowings B3 2§ £ 24,372 - - - 24,372
695,909 17,873 1,859 177 715,818
Categories of financial instruments TATAEF
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets: SEMEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESBT A - 5,483
Financial assets at amortised cost BEEKATE e MEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREEeMREEEER) 325,265 152,468
Financial liabilities: cRasE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEKATEZEREAE 629,832 691,066
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

e BRI )

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AFEFEE)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy (@ RFEERFEE
Description Fair value measurements using Total
it FRAUTEAHRBZ ATETE #at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
E—& EoR B=H 2021%F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000

TET TET TETT T8

Recurring fair value REMQAFEFE
measurements:
Investment properties KEMZE
Commercial and residential AEREE
— Cambodia —RIH3E - 481,962 481,962
Total recurring fair value REMATLEFE
measurements B - 481,962 481,962
Description Fair value measurements using Total
fi it ERATEHAZIR 2 ATENS HET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
E—1R F F=4 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REMALEFE:
measurements:
Investment properties KREE
Commercial and residential EEREE
~ Cambodia SR % - 530,634 530,634
Derivative financial instruments  $74 &g T B - - 5,483 5,483
Total recurring fair value REMATLETE
measurements wam - 530,634 5,483 536,117
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

7.

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on

(c)

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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7. AVEIFE#E)

(b) REZE=RIZLFEFTEZEE

level 3: AR -
Derivative
financial
instruments
PTESMIA
Notes HK$’000
M it FET
At 1 July 2019 2019467 1R —
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE B B A A =
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss (#) R IBFEER Z A F(E U #) 11 5,544
Exchange realignment ME H B (61)
At 30 June 2020 7202046 H30H 5,483
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss (#) RERER 2 A FERZREH) 11 14,017
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 41 (20,709)
Exchange realignment Rk 1,205
At 30 June 2021 K202166 H30H -
(#) Include gains or losses for assets held during the year. # FIAFARAZAERZLE

8

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) AEBAERAGEREFRERF

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements

The Group’s finance team is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.
The chief financial officer reports directly to the Board for these
fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the chief financial officer and the

Board on a regular basis.

Level 3 fair value measurements

1E5F 2 BT #R A a9 14 B & K A

Eo¢ ki

FHE(

AEBOPHHBAERM B RE
ETHENEERBEBEZATE

BRF=FRVEFE) -

MHRERLEERFEFEER
MEFSER WHKEERES
SEHNREERFRAHEGER

E=MATEIE

Effect on fair value for
Unobservable inputs increase of inputs
Description Valuation technique ~ FUHE Range BAERE MY 2021 2020
#k fEER HAER gE NPENEE 2021 20208
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Derivative financial Income approach Probabilities on 4% to 25% Increase - 5,483
instruments, profit contingent -4% 10 -25% Decrease
guarantee compensation
ik WAE ARBEZBEER  4%Z225% 1
-# MER -4%Z-25% "D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements (Continued)

Level 2 fair value measurements

e BRI )

£ 2202146 30H 1L F/E
7. AVEIFE#E)

) FXEBFEAIGEREFRERF
18 51 8 BT HR 49 12 18 5 1 % B A
B IR R E (&)

E-RAFETE

Fair value
AF{E

Description Valuation technique Input 2021 2020
it i {8 B9l LD &/ 20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Commercial and residential Market comparable Price per square meter

investment properties approach
HEREEREDE 3% L BUE BEHAKER 481,962 530,634
8. REVENUE 8. W=

Revenue represents amount receivable for goods sold and
services provided to external customers in the normal course
of business and rental income from investment properties, after
deducting discounts and excluding value added tax or other
sales related taxes. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the
year is as follows:
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE2021F6H30H IFF/E
8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. Wz (&)
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Disaggregation of revenue: Wz 5 K
Recognised at a point in time RE— R EEZ
Commercial income EEKA 10,629 34,399
Match day receipts HRERA WA - 21,547
Healthcare and medical related business REE & BB REIERE TS 5,917 =
16,546 55,946
Recognised over time R—BRERHAER
Commercial income EEIZLON 16,013 14,406
Broadcasting =33 97,342 86,895
Match day receipts BREA WA - 24,198
System Service Solutions RAERIEEIAT R 3,503 2,323
116,858 127,822
Revenue from contracts with customers HEEFEH z W 133,404 183,768
Revenue from other sources H 3Rz W=
Commercial income [EESL PN 3,440 22,950
Rental income HEUWA 28,179 24,811
31,619 47,761
165,023 231,529
Revenue from contracts with customers comprise: HEFGL) 2 W
(i) Match day receipts () BEHKA

- Match day receipts for the football match are -
recognised when the match was held.

— Match day receipt for sales of season tickets are —
recognised on a yearly basis.

(i) Broadcasting (i) B
—  Television and broadcasting income are recognised -
over the contract period.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

e BRI )

B 22021F6H30H IFFE
8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. W= (E)

(i)  Commercial income

- Shop sales, catering and programme sales are
recongised when control of the products has been
transferred or when the services are rendered.

- Royalities, advertising and sponsorship are
recognised over the contract period.

(iv) System Service Solutions

- Lottery system and online payment system service
solutions are recognised over the contract period.

(v) Healthcare and medical related business

- Healthcare and medical related business are
recognised when control of the products has been
transferred or when the services are rendered.

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 4 June 2021
entered into between the Company and an independent third
party, the Company disposed of all of its interests in Power
Super Group and the total amount of loan outstanding and
owing by Power Super to the Company for a total consideration
of approximately HK$4,600,000. Upon the completion of
disposal of Power Super on 18 June 2021, the Board has
decided to cease the business of provision of System Service
Solutions in June 2021.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating segments, based on the information provided to
the chief operating decision maker representing the Board, for
the purposes of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. This is also the basis upon which the Group
is arranged and organised.

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group has four (2020:
three) reportable and operating segments as follows:

()  operation of a professional football club in the UK;

(i) investment in properties;

(iii)  provision of System Service Solutions; and

(iv) healthcare and medical related business.
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results
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9. ZEMERE)
Rl eSS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable and operating segments:

AT RSB s R RERT 2HEL

ENEWE D 2D

Healthcare
System and medical
Service related
Football Investment in Solutions business
For the year ended B 22021%6830A club properties RERHK REREER Total
30 June 2021 LtFE RERE NERE BRER HEER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET FET FET
Segment revenue 28k
External sales HINEE 127,424 28,179 3,503 5917 165,023
Results E4
Segment results DEEE 4,836 (24,249) 10,004 (4,016) (13,425)
Interest revenue B s 13
Other income Ha A 792
Other gains and H oz
losses, net RE#E - FE (36,174)
Corporate expenses TrRER (44,525)
Share-based payments Mk AEE 2
expense BEST (2,315)
Finance costs AR A (16,784)
Loss before taxation BGERIER (112,418)
Income tax credit FEHEL 589
Loss for the year AEEEE (111,829)
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9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

e BRI )

2 F2021F6 H30H IFF/E

DERER ()
DB EREE(E)

System Service

Football Investment in Solutions

For the year ended H £2020F6A30H club properties R R Total
30 June 2020 EFE BRI E MERE S B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET FHET

Segment revenue iR L6
External sales HINMEE 204,395 24,811 2,323 231,529

Results S

Segment results DEEE (186,519) (514) (8,461) (195,494)
Interest revenue N 16
Other income H b A 232
Corporate expenses TEEH (46,099)
Share-based payments expense LAR D AERE 7 4 2 H (2,761)
Finance costs BE KA (27,577)
Loss before taxation B 74 B 5 18 (271,683)
Income tax credit riEHiEs 5,199
Loss for the year AEEER (266,484)
Segment results represent the profit or loss incurred by DEFEE RS D BERDELE T EHK
each segment without allocation of certain interest revenue, o AU - HAab e REE - %

other income, other gains and losses, corporate expenses,
share-based payments expense, finance costs and income tax

credit.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segments:

#HZE202146H30

HIEFE

9. ABWERHE)
THEEREE

TIRARBEERARIKRAZ

]

ENEWE D 2D

Healthcare
System and medical
Service related
Football Investment in Solutions business Total
club properties AR RERER
RERRE NERE BRER HEER @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEn FEn FET FET FE
As at 30 June 2021 R202156A30H
Segments assets PBEE 548,606 489,007 - 5,549 1,043,162
Segments liabilities FHEE (1,470,552) (485,866) - (8,522) (1,964,940)
As at 30 June 2020 R2020F6A30A
Segments assets DHEE 454,888 530,635 37,213 - 1,022,736
Segments liabilities NEAEE (1,314,420) (508,371) (23,356) = (1,841,147)
Reconciliations of reportable assets and liabilities: AEREERBEZHE:
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AIZ2RN I EERE 1,043,162 1,022,736
Unallocated corporate assets AOEAREE 33,599 38,779
Consolidated total assets FEBEEAE 1,076,761 1,061,515
Liabilities EE
Total liabilities of reportable segments ko BEBRE (1,964,940) (1,841,147)
Elimination of payable to corporate xT iﬁfﬁ“ﬁ IS e
headquarters 1,266,869 1,611,405
Other liabilities HEMmBE (73,876) (531,544)
Consolidated total liabilities RABERE (771,947) (761,286)




BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the
Group’s (i) revenue from external customers; and (ii) non-current
assets presented based on the location of operations and
geographical location of assets respectively.

(i) Revenue from external customers

e BRI )

£ 2202146 30H 1L F/E
9. ZEMERE)
& & K

THRAREE)REINGFRS 2 Wt
R)ERBEE R - ThDHIR
BREWHNEEZWRZS -

(i) XKENBEFZ WYz

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
The UK HE
Revenue from contracts with customers: HEFPALZ W :
Recognised at a point in time R — I fal] & i 3R 10,629 55,946
Recognised over time R— BB B A HE R 113,355 125,499
Revenue from other sources Hth 3ROR 2 Uk Z= 3,440 22,950
127,424 204,395
Cambodia RIFE
Revenue from contracts with customers: HEEFALHZ W :
Recognised over time R — BRI [E] 9 57 3,503 2,323
Revenue from other sources E A 2R 2 W= 28,179 24,811
31,682 27,134
Japan =[N
Revenue from contracts with customers: HEEALHZWE :
Recognised at a point in time RF — 05[] & 57 5,917 -
5,917 -
165,023 231,529
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE2021F6H30H IFF/E
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. AWEH(E)
Geographical information (Continued) WEER (F)
(i) Non-current assets (i) FrnBEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong BB 3,458 17,679
The PRC Fh 94 30,292
Cambodia RIFE 481,962 530,634
The UK B 310,317 370,899
Japan B 323 -
796,154 949,504
Information about major customers EBRFXERF2ER
Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted for KEFBEREL(EBEMhRWKZER Z10%K
10% or more of total revenue is set out as below: PAE) ZWEsE5 T
Segment 2021 2020
2 & 20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer A Investment in properties 28,179 24,811
EFA MERE
10. OTHER INCOME 10. Hfbyg A
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Subsidies received from the Premier League B 4% B A 4% 2 BREG ZIES

(Note (1)) 2B (B 70)) 7,620 7,116
Reversal of provision for directors’ fee EEHe s BERD 4 199
Government subsidies (Note (ii)) B 4 Bh (B 22 (0i)) 8,075 6,741
Sundry income I A 622 593

16,321 14,649
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
10. OTHER INCOME (Continued)

11.

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group’s professional
football operation received funding of approximately
HK$7,620,000 (2020: approximately HK$7,116,000) from the
Premier League in the UK under the Elite Player Performance
Plan upon fulfilment of certain terms and conditions.

(i) These represent COVID-19-related grants provided by various
government to retain employees who may otherwise be made
redundant and to support businesses affected by COVID-19
respectively. The subsidies are unconditional and granted on a
discretionary basis to the Group during the year.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

e BRI )

B 22021F6H30H IFFE
10. Hfhlg A (&2)
izt -

() MREZE2021F6H30H I F E 5
M AEEZBRERKREENET
R RAGHERE  BIEBEKE
RRFEEEHRAZEEBERBAR
Bk BIE S E & 497,620,0007 7T
(20204 : #J7,116,000/ ) °

(i) ZFEWAAESMKFFREESR
COVID-1918R8 2 # B) - LAIREE A 8k
W B Z 8 T U KEHFZCOVID-19
HEZEE TR ZSEHPAE
BHERBEEFAER -

11. HRBEREE B8

2021 2020
Notes 20215 20204
Hrat HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Impairment loss on intangible assets & &E 7 R EE B (812) (893)
Impairment loss on goodwill e ZREEE (5,600) (2,212)
Impairment loss on right-of-use EREEE 2 REBEERE
assets (10,049) =
Fair value change on investment WEWMEZ AFEEF
properties (48,672) (22,386)
Fair value gain on derivative financial  $74 €&t T B 2 A FE WKz
instruments 14,017 5,544
Gain on termination of lease HEIEFRE B 2 W
agreement 3 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BERIREZ
and equipment g #& 2 -
Fixed assets written off WHEEE E (10) -
Gain on bargain purchase of HEWRENEAR 2 K=
subsidiaries 15 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z WS 41 74,223 =
Loss on extinguishing financial INRATEEESREE
liabilities with equity Instruments ZEE (i) (26,830) =
(3,713) (19,447)
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11.

OTH
Note:

(i)

ER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET (Continued)

On 21 January 2021, completion of the Subscription
Agreements took place. Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreements, Global Mineral and Join Surplus have agreed
to, among other things, subscribe for new shares by applying
the outstanding principals and interests amount in respect
of the loan due to the respective parties in aggregate of
approximately HK$140,000,000 as subscription monies.
An aggregate of 1,062,576,000 ordinary shares at nominal
value of HK$0.01 each were issued at subscription price of
HK$0.13175 each to the Global Mineral and Join Surplus
to settle the loans and accrued interests. The fair value
of the shares on 21 January 2021 was HK$0.157 per
share. The aggregate net consideration was approximately
HK$166,673,000 out of which approximately HK$10,626,000
was credited to share capital and approximately
HK$156,047,000 was credited to share premium.
Approximately HK$26,830,000 was recognised as loss on
extinguish of financial liability with equity instruments in profit
or loss.

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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£ 2202146 30H 1 F/F
1. HttsERER FEE)
Hat -

() M2021FE1H218  ZSRE M=
BEETK BIEZSRE W&
Global Mineral B &R =E (£ &
B)BARARENSHERZ KE
EBAS KA B A £ 4140,000,000
BT ERBIHRG 2 RE A -
4 #£1,062,576,0000% & A% E {E0.01
B2 EiBREESR0.13175%
Tt 2 R (B 17 T Global Mineral
RiERB LNEEERRETFE -
ZERMDN2021F1 218 2 A
FEEFKRISTE L  REFHE
& £ #) 5166,673,0008 7T+ H
#910,626,000% L&t AR A : 49
156,047,000/ ot ARBR (D5 B » 49
26,830,000/ 7t E R 1B 2 P FER A
NRATEAEESHEEZEE -

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. MERAX
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest expenses on: UT&EZHMERY
— Other borrowings —HMER 16,437 27,381
— Bank borrowings —RITEXK 6,508 -
- Imputed interest arising on — R BFootball League Limited
interest-free borrowings from ([Football League]) 2 %
Football League Limited (“Football BEREEZHERE
League”) 695 =
— Notional interest on transfer fee —EEeB EZEFNE
payables 3,465 3,714
- Lease liabilities —-HE&E 3,570 2,092
30,675 33,187
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

13.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Income tax credit in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represents:

e BRI )

£ 2202146 30H 1L F/E
13. FiIEHER

ARG MEMEERERAZMER
Hoets

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiE
Deferred taxation: REIEMIR:
Current year KEE 589 5,199

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising from Hong Kong for the
two years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the UK are subject to Corporation
Tax in the UK (“Corporation Tax”). Corporation Tax is calculated
at 19% of the estimate assessable profit for the year ended 30
June 2021 (2020: 19%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. No provision for profits
tax is made in other jurisdictions as the subsidiaries operating
in other jurisdictions have no assessable profits for the years
ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the loss
before taxation is as follows:

R A BN E £20214F £ 202046 A
308 L 8 4F [Z I SR B S BE A FE R R
A AT E BB R SR B -

NEBMPER 2 KB AR AESNHEE R
W (¥R - #HZE2021F6A30H
LIEFE 2 R EB IR AT ERE R 2
19%zst & (20204F : 19%)

Hih ek ELE 2 HBERBBEAE
PR ZBTHEE - AREEMANE
EEELEZHBRRREZ2021F K&
20206 A30R IEF E 5 & F (] R
wmAl MR IR A B AR R 2 A5
T -

PSR % BB T AT B 18 < $IRRAT -

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Loss before taxation B % A1 B 18 (112,418) (271,683)
Taxation calculated at respective BERBBERERZEEHRE

domestic statutory tax rate 82 HIE 22,457 52,694

Effect of income not taxable and BARTBIRA Bl HF

expenses not deductible THHETE (9,172) (21,371)

Tax losses surrendered for group relief AR ERIRI ZHIEEE - (480)
Tax effect of temporary differences not RIEREEE o MG &

recognised 589 4,479

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERARMEEB ZRIGTE (13,285) (30,123)

Income tax credit Frisfif 589 5,199
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE2021F6H30H IFF/E
14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 14. XFEEFE
Loss for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the RNEEBBLEMRGTA) THEE
following items: 1RER
2021 2020
20214 2020
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration): BEINA(BEEZSZHE)
— Salaries and wages (excluding share-based —TERF 2 (TREARNG
payments expense) REW 2RI H) 328,915 318,312
- Retirement benefits scheme contributions —RIRE G & Z 43K 38,621 34,162
367,536 352,474
Share-based payments expense: AR BERZ R
— Directors -5= 1,002 1,214
- Employees —E8 1,313 1,547
2,315 2,761
Total staff costs BT A#AG 369,851 355,235
Auditors’ remuneration % A B & 1,394 1,375
Amortisation of intangible assets A EE 76,854 84,331
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BEREETE 11,389 15,875
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREBERE 9,807 4,710
Litigation claim settlement AR (B R - 510
Expenses related to short-term lease RHEERERSY 4,127 5,446
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRABRAIZFEERAR 576 15,452
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEEZRERE 10,049 -
Impairment loss on goodwill BRZHEER 5,600 2,212
Impairment loss on account receivables, net EWE FRTRERR « F58 4 2,878
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment loss Hh e W FIE CREBIEZ
on other receivables, net BE) CRERSE  FE (1,676) 1,577
Impairment loss on intangible assets BRAE RMBEBE 812 393
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net SNERIE, (Ms) @ FE 31 488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REMBRKRMEE @
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 B FE2021F6H30H 1IFFE
15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 15. EE@ £
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors, R IRE A LR B R BB R mEGI AT #
disclosed pursuant the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong B ENXENTESZHME0T ¢

Companies Ordinance, were as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2021

EZ202156530R LEE
Salaries,
allowances Share-
and benefits Retirement based
inkind  Discretionary scheme  payments
Fees  (Note (iv)) bonus  contribution expense
(Note (iv) %% RHR (Note (v)) BikctE MRHAER Total
He  BUEF BEEA % ZARXHE @t
(H&w)  (Biv) (W)
Name of director Notes ~ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EZ2R i FET FE7 FE7 FEx Tz FE7
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Zhao Wenging (Chairman) ~ #X5 % 4 (£/) - 2,048 620 189 501 3,358
Mr. Huang Dongfeng BRELE
(Chief Executive Officer) (1TB#%) - 2,048 - - 501 2,549
Mr. Yiu Chun Kong hERLE - 294 - 14 - 308
Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng BRRELE - 940 - - - 940
Dr. Guo Honglin FeMEL (i) - 1,200 - - - 1,200
- 6,530 620 203 1,002 8,355
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BRE%4 273 - - - - 273
273 - - - - 273
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Pun Chi Ping i Ym it 208 - - - - 208
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine ~ 2ZZ4+ 208 - - - - 208
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat SELA (i) 208 - - - - 208
624 - - - - 624
Total “am 897 6,530 620 203 1,002 9,252
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FREMBHRRHME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE2021F6H30H IFF/E
15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 15. EEM< (&)
For the year ended 30 June 2020
EZ202056A30A L FE
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement  Share-based
in kind Discretionary scheme payments
Fees (Note (iv)) bonus contribution expense
(Note (iv)) #& - 2HR (Note (v) BIREE URHAER Total
e ENEA BEEa (oS AN S i @it
(i) (W) (W)
Name of director Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ4R it T AT FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Zhao Wenqing (Chairman) #3085 % (£ /&) - 2,048 - 75 607 2,730
Mr. Huang Dongfeng BRELE
(Chief Executive Officer) (TT##) - 2,048 - - 607 2,655
Mr. Yiu Chun Kong HhERLE - 294 - 14 - 308
Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng BERERS - 940 - - - 940
Dr. Guo Honglin PEMEL (i) - 1,143 - - = 1,143
- 6,473 - 89 1,214 7,776

Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BRers 273 = = = = 213

Independent non-executive BYFHTEES

directors

Mr. Pun Chi Ping EAT L 208 - - _ _ 208

Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine ~ 2Z&4+ 208 - - - - 208

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat BEELE () 127 - - - - 127

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond ~ ftBIE%A (i) 32 = = = - 32

575 - - - - 575

Total k] 848 6,473 = 89 1,214 8,624

Notes: Kz -

()  Appointed on 8 November 2019. () TF2019F11A8HEZE -

(i)  Passed away on 28 August 2019. (i) M2019F8H28H Bt -

(i)  Appointed on 3 May 2019 (i) MA2019F5H3HEZ T -

(iv) The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board and (ivy, EZFENHNESVEEFESRAQ[H
the Remuneration Committee of the Company with reference MEEELERSHNAEBHNBE
to their duties and responsibilities with the Group, the Group’s LB AREEHRBRERTR
performance and the prevailing market situation. i & 5E e

(v)  Discretionary bonus is determined with reference to the annual v) BBREADNBEASEEFEEER
results of the Group and the employees’ performance. EEMIEREME °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
16. THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

17.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group do not include any
directors and member of senior management of the Company
during the year and last year. The emoluments of the highest
paid individual are set out as below:

e BRI )

2 F2021F6 H30H IFF/E

16.

hEEEFMAL
RAEERLEEER  AEERLARS
HWALTH T BREEMNEARREZEE RS
WEREKE - 2S5 H25 AL ZEH
£

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Basic salaries and allowances BEARF S KERL 59,632 53,245
Discretionary bonus B 5 EAL 5,506 3,329
Retirement benefit scheme contribution BRI 9,633 7,749
74,771 64,323

The emoluments of the 5 highest paid individuals during the
year (2020: 5) fall within the following band:

RAFEARARS (20206 : L) &e
FHALZBMEN FUTEE :

Number of individuals

AE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$12,000,001 - HK$12,500,000 12,000,001 7¢ —12,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$12,500,001 — HK$13,000,000 12,500,0017% 7T — 13,000,000 7T 1 3
HK$13,000,001 — HK$13,500,000 13,000,0017% 7t — 13,500,000 7T 1 —
HK$14,000,001 — HK$14,500,000 14,000,0017% 7T —14,500,0007% 7T 2 1
HK$20,000,001 - HK$20,500,000 20,000,001 7t —20,500,0007% 7T 1 =

During the year ended 30 June 2021, no emoluments were paid
or payable to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join the Group or as a compensation for loss of office (2020:
nil).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended 30 June
2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

18. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Basic loss per share

Loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R RS AR M R ()

£ 2202146 30H 1 F/F
18. ARFAHEEARLERER

BREXER
BREBREARBERARGAFES
BERIAREZ B BT 04 T 19 5 B

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. Ehg-1
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss: B8
Loss attributable to owners of the Company for =t E SR ERNEIE 2
the purpose of calculating basic loss per share 7R X T B A fE(L E B (74,232) (260,484)
2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of shares: BHh#E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares SFEARRN A A AEN
for calculating basic loss per share attributable G RRE A EIB 2
to owners of the Company 5 R N AE 39 2 18,448,946,168 17,710,022,508
Diluted loss per share FREEE B

For the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, the computation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of share
options as they would decrease the loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company and have anti-dilutive effect.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

e BRI )

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥ BERRME
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold office
buildings improvements equipment Motor
TR BEME B #E vehicles Total
BT %% R AR "E ag
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
izt FAT THET FET AT FET
COSTS KA
At 1 July 2019 ®201957A1A 239,367 9,602 84,761 6,212 339,942
Avising on acqisition of a REENEARREE

subsidiary - 315 42 - 357
Additions NE = = 1,821 = 1,821
Written off s (392) (767) (60,759) (2,731) (64,649)
Exchange realignment ERRE (8,749) 1) (1,165) (92) (10,027)
At 30 June 2020 and 2020664308 &

1 July 2020 2020F7R1H 230,226 9,129 24,700 3,389 267,444
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 41 (219,733) (350) (352) - (220,435)
Disposal HE - - - (1,567) (1,567)
Additions A - - 1,709 1,962 3,671
Written off i - - 22) - (22)
Exchange realignment AR 34,125 35 2,409 231 36,800
At 30 June 2021 1820214564308 44,618 8,814 28,444 4,015 85,891

ACCUMULATED ZARERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2019 1201967 A1H 67,951 5,689 70,604 4,563 148,807
Charge for the year REELH 5,388 4,295 5,604 658 15,875
Written off i (392) (767) (60,759) (2,731) (64,649)
Exchange realignment R (2,630) (18) (922) (84) (8,654)
At 30 June 2020 and 1202066 A30A K

1 July 2020 2020%7A1H 70,317 9,129 14,527 2,406 96,379
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR 41 65,529) (350) (99) - (65,978
Disposal e - - = (809) (809)
Charge for the year REELH 5,352 - 5,287 750 11,389
Written off s - - (12) - (12)
Exchange realignment S 10,561 35 1,589 221 12,406
At 30 June 2021 12021456308 20,701 8,814 21,292 2,568 53,375

CARRYING VALUE REE
At 30 June 2021 420214564308 23,917 - 7,152 1,447 32,516
At 30 June 2020 7202066 A30H 159,909 - 10,173 983 171,065
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE2021F6H30H IFF/E
20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. EAEEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 30 June: K6 7308
Right-of-use assets EREEE
- Land - i 7,996 7,191
— Buildings -EF 78,514 14,538
— Equipment - &fE 433 2,490
86,943 24,219
The maturity analysis, based on AEEHEARER
undiscounted cash flows, of the RMBFBEEREZ
Group’s lease liabilities is as follows: FHER AT :
— Less than one year -—FR 21,322 9,476
— Between one and two years - —FEWF 19,280 8,235
- Between two and five years -MEERF 44,621 7,883
- After five years - A& 149,837 77,840
235,060 103,434
Year ended 30 June: HZE6AI0HLFE
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FAEEEZITEEH
— Land - i 102 96
~ Buildings _gE 7,400 2,129
- Equipment - k1B 2,305 2,485
9,807 4,710
Lease interests HEF S 3,570 2,092
Expenses related to short-term leases %2 BATH SR R B X 4,127 5,446
Gain on early termination of lease AT IE T & K W 3 -
Total cash outflow for leases HEZBRE ML L5 14,895 11,744
Additions to right-of-use assets FREEERE 79,174 19,268
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ERAEEEZREERE 10,049 -
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e BRI )

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. B EE
Player’s
Registration ~ Trademark Software Membership Total
RE [ g4 2 @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iiri3 FET FET FET FET FET
Cost B
At 1 July 2019 R2019%7A1H 251,492 456,306 = - 707,798
Addition NE 103,429 - - - 103,429
Acquisition of a WE—MIEAR
subsidiary - - 18,953 - 18,953
Disposal T & (86,947 - - - (86,947)
Exchange realignment M 5 58 (9,675) (16,700) (29) - (26,404)
At 30 June 2020 and 1202056 H30H
1 July 2020 %2020%7A1H 258,299 439,606 18,924 - 716,829
Addition B 63,500 = - - 63,500
Acquisition of a hE-HEHRBAR 39
subsidiary - - - 348 348
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEK B A 41 - - (21,047) - (21,047)
Disposal HE (21,028) - - - (21,028)
Exchange realignment  [E 538 % 33,929 55,627 2,123 (18) 91,661
At 30 June 2021 12021456 H30H 334,700 495,233 - 330 830,263
ACCUMULATED R BERAE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2019 R2019%7A1H 122,348 442,707 - - 565,055
Amortisation for the year 7N Z# 5 82,737 - 1,594 = 84,331
Impairment losses AEEE - 393 - - 393
Disposal HE (76,498) - - - (76,498)
Exchange realignment &5 A% (4,656) (16,214) (17) - (20,887)
At 30 June 2020 and #2020%6 H30H
1 July 2020 %2020%7 /1A 123,931 426,886 1,577 - 552,394
Amortisation for the year 74 & 6 44 74,975 - 1,851 28 76,854
Disposal of subsidiaries & i B A 7] 41 = = (3,683) = (3,683)
Impairment losses AEEE - 812 = = 812
Disposal & (9,008) - - = (9,008)
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% 17,613 54,044 255 (1) 71,911
At 30 June 2021 7202156 A30H 207,511 481,742 - 27 689,280
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 30 June 2021 1202156 H30H 127,189 13,491 - 303 140,983
At 30 June 2020 20206 A30H 134,368 12,720 17,347 - 164,435

128



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(il)

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Based on respective players’ contracts
terms from 1-5 years

Players’ registration

Software 10 years
Membership 12 years
Trademark Not amortised

The players’ registration is considered to have a useful life
ranging from 1 to 5 years and is tested for impairment at the
end of the reporting period.

Any players whom BCFC, a subsidiary of the Company, do not
consider to be a long-term part of the first team squad and
who will therefore not contribute to future cash flows earned
by BCFC are assessed for impairment by considering the
carrying value with BCFC’s best estimate of fair value (being
post year-end sales proceeds or expected sales proceeds)
less costs of disposal. No impairment was made for the year
ended 30 June 2021 (2020: nil).

The trademark was acquired in the business combination
of Birmingham City PLC, which is considered to have an
indefinite useful life and was tested for impairment as at the
end of the reporting period.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of the trademark for the year ended 30 June 2021. The
recoverable amount has been determined based on its fair
value less costs of disposal, with reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent professional valuer, JP Assets
Consultancy Limited. The fair value less costs of disposal of
the trademark falls within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
valuation technique used to measure the fair value less costs
of disposal is the relief-from-royalty method, which determines
the present worth of future after-tax royalties derived from
ownership. Indication of value is developed by discounting
future after-tax royalties attributable to the trademark to their
present worth at market-derived rate of return appropriate
for the risks of the trademark. The valuer adopted a pre-tax
discount rate of 25.77%.

The impairment test has resulted in impairment loss on

trademark of approximately HK$812,000 in the year ended 30
June 2021 (2020: approximately HK$393,000).
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EMBRE) REEXRANZ HEM
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R 1Z J5 7 Birmingham City PLCZ ¥
BEHRIKE  WEEEERAE
FIE 8 30 R R4 8 R 1T R E R
o

NEE D EHEIRE E202146 A
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ZHIBITERREIREHIRE -
HEMERBZBRB AT ZE XA
25.77% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED mEMBEHRERME 2
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
22. GOODWILL 22. HE
Notes HK$’000
i3 FET
COSTS 29N
At 1 July 2019 ®2019%7 A1H =
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary RUEBK B R R E £ 8,724
Exchange realignment ME 2 (14)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 202096 A308 &2020F7 A 1H 8,710
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEB AR 41 (9,687)
Exchange realignment ME W H 977
At 30 June 2021 H2021F6A30H =

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSS At EEEE

At 1 July 2019 M2019F7H1H =
Impairment loss AR E 11 2,212
Exchange realignment BE 5 A (24)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 720206 A30H K2020F7A1H 2,188
Impairment loss HEEE 11 5,600
Disposal of subsidiaries & T8 A Al 41 (8,270)
Exchange realignment s 482
At 30 June 2021 ®2021F6A30H -
CARRYING VALUE fREE
At 30 June 2021 #202156H30H -
At 30 June 2020 120206 430H 6,522
The net carrying amount represented goodwill allocated to the REFER D EERERFREEIRT
cash generating unit (“CGU”) for provision of System Service RHSELEMN ([BeELEEN])
Solutions. ZHEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

22.

23.

GOODWILL (Continued)

During the year, the management of the Group recognised an
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$5,600,000
(2020: approximately HK$2,212,000) based on a value in use
calculation by an independent professional valuer, who has
staff members with appropriate experience and qualifications.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period
based on the estimated production capacity of the CGU with
a pre-tax discount rate of 34.65%. Another key assumption
for the value in use calculation is the budgeted revenue and
gross margin, which is determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, provision of System
Service Solutions business was disposed and the goodwill was
derecognised.
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22.

BE(E)

RERN AEEEEEREBEAGAEL
BELEREINBYEXEMGEMGE
ZEREBEEAERRFEREERY
5,600,000/ 7T (20204F : #J2,212,000
BIL) o AET ERAAE R B ER M
BREREMNBESRERR - ZUB
BERHAF  ERREELBMNG
ot A EE BE 0 4% B T AT RE 3R R 34.65% 4R
H-EREEFENS TERRARE
BWHERENE - HREZEMBER
BEMEEEBHMSERRNBEHEE -

HE2021566A30H IEFE - DHER
HEGRISHR T RET - WRIEFER
P o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 23. BEYHE
Note HK$’000
k3 FET
FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 July 2019 R2019%7 A1H 553,020
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIEZHRER 2 A FEEH 11 (22,386)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 7202046 A30H KX2020%7 A 1H 530,634
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss Rz HER 2 A F(E & 11 (48,672)
At 30 June 2021 R2021F6A30H 481,962

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties as
at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020 were stated based on the
valuation conducted by JP Assets Consultancy Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer, on market value using
the existing use basis. The loss arising from changes in fair
value of investment properties of approximately HK$48,672,000
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 30 June
2021 (2020: approximately HK$22,386,000).

As at 30 June 2021, investment properties of the Group

with fair values of approximately HK$481,962,000 (2020:
approximately HK$530,634,000).
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
24. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

e BRI )

HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
24, TEMBAA

KRN Al R20214F K%2020F6 A30H 2
TEMBARFEBOT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30
June 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued attributable to the
Name of company registration and operation and paid-up capital Company Principal activities
AGIEL HMRY/ EaRCEhY BRORBREAFE ARQAEEEREAIN FTEEH
2021 2020
20215 20205
Directly hold
E#RE
Birmingham City PLC the UK (GBP8,150,000 ordinary 75% 96.64%  Investment holding
5 8,150,000% & & &k REER
Birmingham City Stadium Ltd (note (j)) the UK GBP100 ordinary N/A 100% Properties investment
(Hiz() 5 100E & EBR TER nERE
Birmingham Finance Holdings Limited Samoa US$1 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
R ERERERAA EED 1ETEBER REER
Cosy Lane Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
ZRARAT EERNES 1ETEBR RERR
Topgame Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
EERNES IETEBR REER
Indirectly hold
BiEkE
Banana Entertainment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
REGRERAH Bk 1008 T &R RERR
Birmingham City Football Club PLC the UK (GBP6,252,838 ordinary 75% 96.64% Football club
i 6,252,838 & L Bk iz 87 e
Birmingham City Women Football the UK GBP1 ordinary 75% 96.64% Football club
Club Limited 3G 1RELRR BiHe
Birmingham Finance Limitied Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100% 100% Money lending
REABHBERAA BB 1008 T E &R Hf&
Birmingham Investments (China) Limited  Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
{REABRE (RE) AR, BB 1008 T E &R REER
Celestial Fame Investment (Cambodia) Cambodia US$1,000,000 ordinary 100% 100% Properties investment
Co., Ltd. REE 1,000,000 T &AMk NERE
Deep Blue Trade (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. Cambodia US$ 1,000,000 ordinary 100% 100% Properties investment
RER 1,000,000% 7T & & % NERE
Celestial Fame Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 ordinary 100% 100% Properties investment
EERENES 1ETEBR NERE
Medi Hub Co., Ltd.* Japan JPY85,000,000 ordinary 100% - Healthcare and medical
B 35,000,0008 Bl & &R related business
REREREAXS
Mirai Iryo Sango Co., Ltd.* Japan JPY5,000,000 ordinary 100% -~ Healthcare and medical
B 5,000,0008 Bl £ &K related business
REREREAXR
Dooboo Tech Limited (note (i) Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary N/A 100% Provision of System
SEREERDA (W) E% 1008 T EBK TER Senvice Solutions
REZGRBERADR
Wangmei Online (Beijing) Information & the PRC RMB16,925,926 N/A 100% Provision of System
Technology Co., Ltd.* (notes () and (i) s AR %16,925,9267C TEA Service Solutions
BIgER (LR B RHARA REZGRBERADR
(Bat0) &)
Notes: k=3
()  Disposed during the year ended 30 June 2021. (i) E RE £202166 H308 IEFEH
(iy A limited liability company established in the PRC (solely iy MRPBKIZHERETAR (FER
funded by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate bodly). EANBE) °
* The English translation of the company name is for reference & B ZFE R 2 -

only.
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24.

The following table shows information of the subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations.

ERMEAR(A)
TREJNGEAHARBBEAZ FFER
e ([JFERERD) 2HBARZE
£ M EMBERR A B R HR 2
T e

Birmingham City PLC

2021 2020
20214 20204
Principal place of business and FELEMBRFEMALER the UK the UK
country of registration T i
% of ownership interests and JEFE NS R (R A R &
voting rights held by NCI ks sas 25% 3.36%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 30 June A6 H30H
Non-current assets EMENE E 310,317 233,521
Current assets mENEE 238,288 289,286
Current liabilities mEBAE (1,290,000) (1,281,553)
Non-current liabilities JEMEBEE (180,553) (30,480)
Net liabilities BEFH (921,948) (789,226)
Accumulated NCI 2t FERER (230,487) (26,518)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Year ended 30 June HZ6H30BLLEE
Revenue Y25 137,869 224,042
Loss for the year KEEEE (53,230) (178,570)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEEHABERE (58,897) (151,369)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEEFERER 2 EE (38,931) (6,000)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBAZIRE F5E (185,159) (166,081)
Net cash generated from (used in) wEEESEE (FTA) 2
investing activities RE)F5E 141,154 (28,297)
Net cash generated from financing MEEHELE RS FE
activities 39,596 182,589
Net decrease in cash and ReRBFEEBEEHB B FE
cash equivalents (4,409) (11,789)
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25.

e BRI )

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
INVENTORIES 25. 78
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Finished goods and goods for sale RIpk mm & S5 E M 378 856

26.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

26. EWEZRM

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables FE B 5 BR 3K 16,579 8,227
Less: impairment loss recognised (Note (i) & : & W25 A €18 (#177 (i) (2,775) (2,880)
13,804 5,347
Notes: Htat -

(i) In general, the Group grants a credit period of about 14
days to 90 days to its customers. The aging analysis of trade
receivables (net of provision for impairment) based on the

() AEEGETEPHNEEH-—KRA/LH
148 £90H - & 5 B W R K (F0 k5
BEER) RER A PNRKR DTN

invoice date is as follows: T
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30B A 6,237 96
31 days to 90 days 31HZE90H 5,176 2
91 days to 180 days 91HZE=180H 2,160 1,185
181 days to 365 days 181 H£365H 231 4,064
13,804 5,347
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R RS AR M R ()

B Z22021F6H30H IFFE
26. EWE SRR (Z)
Bz - (&)

(i)

FARKE ZRFMELEIT -

2021 2020

20214F 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

At 1 July R7HA1H 2,880 898
Written off during the year FANFEH (497) (805)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised  [B11 2 #3203 (& £ 18 (61) (164)
Impairment loss recognised B ERREEE 102 3,042
Exchange realignment HE 5 R B 351 (91)
At 30 June MR6H30H 2,775 2,880

(i)  The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward

looking information.

(i)

REBERBE B BRELERFNR
AT ZBEREnRABEEERE
HEE - YA RKE SRR ER
EHITEMERRE - Rt ERME
EER BRUEESRFERELR
EERBREERBMEHESH - A
HEEBBETESAELEEY -

Less than Over 90
90 days days past
past due due
Current gt g Total
BN &R 4 A90H R0 H st
At 30 June 2021 20216 H30H
Weighted average expected T8 HA &5 18 3 hn e
loss rate EHE - 0.0% 92.3%
Receivables amount (HK$’000) e &g (FEr) 11,413 2,160 3,006 16,579
Loss allowance (HK$’000) EsERE (FET) - - 2,775 2,775
At 30 June 2020 7®2020%6 H30H
Weighted average expected 8 HY &5 48 = g
loss rate EHE - 1.7% 41.3%
Receivables amount (HK$’000) KSR (FErT) 98 1,205 6,924 8,227
Loss allowance (HK$'000) E B (FET) - 20 2,860 2,880
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27. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
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27. BE BENKEAREMEKRRE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$°000 HK$’000

F#ET FH#ET

Other receivables H b fE U SRR 27,734 6,945

Transfer fee receivables (Note (i) el & (f20) 175,669 102,904

Amount due from a former subsidiary (Note (i) F& U 51 Bt /B A &) 2 k18 (K1 52(i)) 63,304 =

Deposits and prepayments Ze RIENFIE 8,714 5,693

Less: impairment loss recognised (Note (iii) & : B ¥ 2R E B8 (477 (i) 1) (1,532)
Less: transfer fee receivables o ElEeE

— non-current (Note (i) — 3B E) (A1 7E(3)) (53,750) (47,146)

Amounts shown as current assets TERBIBEE &5 221,670 66,864

Notes:

(0

(i)

(il)

Included in other receivables are amounts of approximately
HK$53,750,000 as at 30 June 2021 relating to transfer
fee of players which are classified as non-current (2020:
approximately HK$47,146,000). In addition, the Group’s
transfer fee receivables from other football clubs with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$161,250,000 (equivalent
to approximately GBP15,000,000) as at 30 June 2021 (2020:
nil) were pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group.

Amount due from a former subsidiary, Birmingham City
Stadium Ltd, is unsecured, interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

The movements in the impairment loss on other receivables

Wiz -

() M20214E6H308 @ H # fE U 3k 18
B 4% #953,750,0007 7T - SH Rk B
e B 5 58 A IE R (2020F ¢

#4947,146,000/875) ° LIk

REHE

R2021F6 A308 2 fiE W E fib & Bk
eEes 2 REEL161,250,000
7 7T (8 % R 4915,000,0003 £)
(20204 : &) BEMIEARNEBR
TERZHER -

(i)  F& Y B B /&8 A RIBirmingham City
Stadium LtdZ KIEREER - 5T E
RIZREKERER -

(i) FAEAMERRIAZREBREZ

during the year are as follows: m
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F&ET
At 1 July R7A1H 1,532 =
Impairment loss recognised BRI B 1R 1 1,577
Reversal of impairment loss recognised  [B1% 2 #E 2R E /&5 18 (1,677) -
Exchange realignment ERECE 145 (45)
At 30 June 6 A30H 1 1,532

136



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

28.

29.

TRANSFER FEE PAYABLES

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R RS AR M R ()

B Z22021F6H30H IFFE
28. ENEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Transfer fee payables: EREeE
— Within one year ——F R 17,266 28,496
- Due after one year ——F &5 5 19,888 -
37,154 28,496
All transfer fee payables are stated at amortised cost that FrERENEeEEZENTEEE 28

approximately equal to their fair value.

TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date
is as follows:

B AR B

29. ENEZRM

JERE B RRITEE
T

R8I0 2 ARk D

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 30 days 30H A 3,188 4,169
31 days to 90 days 31H E90H 3,966 1,769
91 days to 180 days 91H £180H 1,212 5,857
181 days to 365 days 181H £365H 1,738 4,625
10,104 16,420

The credit periods of the Group’s trade payables normally
granted from suppliers averaging at 90 days (2020: 90
days).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REMBRKRMEE @
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
30. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EFRERAEMENKIE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Braz FET FET
Accruals JE 5T RIA 64,312 124,268
Consideration payable ERRE - 21,944
Agent’s fee payables &L ANER 11,143 12,496
75,455 158,708
Less: Amounts due after one year o R —F R EIH 2 5RIB (i) - (15,088)
Amounts shown as current liabilites FI{ERBBEZ £ 58 75,455 143,620
Notes: B e
(i) Included in accruals are amounts of approximately (i) EAZEAREEBEEIZERENE
HK$2,514,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,317,000) relating to R IE #92,514,0000% 7T (20204 : 4
accrued directors’ remuneration. 1,317,000/ 7T) °
(i)  Agent’s fee and selling fee of HK$Nil (2020: approximately iy MKBHREENSLAEBRAREE
HK$15,088,000) payable for the acquisition of football players B AZ BT (20204 : 415,088,000
is due after one year according to the transfer agreement of BID) C DIRBIRE vEe W HN —
players. FIREHE -
(i) Accruals and other payables are all non-interest bearing. (i) FERTRIE REAMMENRIES DL
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY 31. RIS =B
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Amount due to a related party JE 1<F B8 Bt O SR IE 213,359 -
The carrying amount of approximately HK$213,359,000 as at R2021%6H30H * Rk HEE X

30 June 2021 represented amount due to Oriental Rainbow,
a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company. The
balances are denominated in Pound Sterling and are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REMBHmRME )
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE2021F6H30H IFF/E
32. DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS 32. EELEERER
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
To be released: 1 45 7 Bl 2 FRIE
— Within one year ——F R - 544
- After one year —— 1% - 12,860
- 13,404
Deferred capital grants relate to the redevelopment of the BEEARER T EERERMNERR
football stadium located in Birmingham, the UK. The grant has Bm 2 RIS AR o BT RIERIER
been treated as a deferred grant and is being amortised in line o BHEHEB A TINEEERS#
with the depreciable assets to which it relates. 8H o
During the year ended 30 June 2021, Birmingham City N E202156H30H 1IEFE -
Stadium Ltd, a subsidiary which holds the stadium located in Birmingham City Stadium Ltd (%5 iz
Birmingham was disposed and the deferred capital grants was REBEAB 2 RHS 2 MBRAR)E
derecognised upon the completion of disposal. HE - WHEA LSRR IEERELEER
IR o
33. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 33. EHNEERER
Disclosures of revenue-related items: Was R IE B # 5% ¢
At At At
30 June 30 June 1 July
2021 2020 2019
®2021F  72020%F  R20194F
6H30H 6H30H 7A1H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T FET

Contract assets - System Service BB E— R RB A

Solutions business FHER¥ER - 140 -
Contract liabilities - football club business & 48 & — BB & %£75 (35,326) (6,671) (29,136)
Revenue recognised in the year that REGEFARNEEZ

was included in contract liabilities at FEEBRZWE

beginning of the year 172 24,244 24,969
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 B FE2021F6H30H 1IFFE

33. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 33. EHNEBEREE(Z)

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations
unsatisfied at end of the year and expected to be recognised as

DEEFRHARTRABHEEL RS
RIIFEERRRENZ ZER

revenue in:

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Year ended 30 June 2021 B E2021F6H30H LFE - 6,671
Year ended 30 June 2022 B E2022F6H30H ILFE 35,326 =
35,326 6,671

Significant changes in contract assets during the year: AKEEEHNEEZERNE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#ET
At 1 July M7A1H 140 -
Increase due to operations in the year B €5 PR 2E 7% 1 4 0 - 140
Transfer of contract assets to receivables #4494 &= & fE Y 5518 (140) -
Exchange realignment ME 3, 38 B - =
At 30 June 6 H30H - 140

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for products or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer.

BRBERARBURIKERNER - A
ERAEFPEREMIRBTHRS -

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: REEEHNEEZERNEH
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FiET
At 1 July i YO=RE= 6,671 29,136
Increase due to operations in the year ESESNE TR 27,191 2,282
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue  ##% 4 4B EE K= (172) (24,311)
Exchange realignment PE 7 38 1,636 (436)
At 30 June 768308 35,326 6,671

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
products or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE2021F6H30H IFF/E

BORROWINGS 34. EX
2021 2020
20214 202045
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hat FET FET
Bank borrowings, secured RITER - HEA (i) 154,229 =

Other borrowings, unsecured: Hih B - MR

— Loan from Football League — K BFootball LeagueZ &% (i) 80,460 5,571
— Loan from substantial shareholders - REETERRZER (i) 49,200 66,197
— Loan from third parties —-RBE=FZ2EX (iv) 9,672 415,497
— Other loan —HER 199 177
293,760 487,442

At 30 June 2021 and 2020, total borrowings were repayable as

follows:

20214 20206 A30H @ B 42
FRR AT EHEE

Bank Other Other
borrowing borrowings Total  Dborrowings
RITER Hitt &% @t HER
2021 2021 2021 2020
20215 20214 2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Carrying amounts repayable:* [EEEZIREE

— On demand or within one year —EEXH—FRN 103,992 80,443 184,435 482,621
- Between one and two years ——FEEWE 50,237 29,943 80,180 2,785
- Between two and five years -MEERF - 28,946 28,946 1,859
- Qver five years —RFEMNE - 199 199 177
154,229 139,531 293,760 487,442

Less: Amounts due within one year BoRBBEMIIN—F
shown as current liabilities W28 2 78 (103,992) (80,443) (184,435) (482,621)
Amounts shown as non-current liabilities 5 {ESE R BN B B 2 © % 50,237 59,088 109,325 4,821

out in loan agreements.

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayable dates set
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34. BORROWINGS (Continued)

£ 2202146 30H 1L F/E
34. ER(E)

e BRI )

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Carrying amounts are denominated in SREE L T 5 & ¥ 5H1E :

the following currencies:
Hong Kong dollars BT 49,200 473,905
Pound Sterling 7 234,888 5,748
Renminbi AR 8,407 7,789
Japanese Yen H &l 1,265 =
293,760 487,442
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Effective interest rates per annum: BERFERE:

Hong Kong dollars I 4.50% 4.50% - 8.00%
Pound Sterling g 0.00% - 5.56% 0.00%
Renminbi AR 5.00% 5.00%
Japanese Yen H 0.46% N/AT i

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group
has obtained new bank borrowings amounting to
approximately HK$186,104,000 (equivalent to approximately
GBP17,312,000), which were used for repayment of loans
from third parties. All the new bank borrowings bear fixed
interest at the rates ranging from 4.29% to 5.56% per annum.
The bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s transfer fee
receivables from other football clubs. As at 30 June 2021,
approximately HK$154,229,000 (equivalent to approximately

Hiaz -

() MEZE2021F6H30H8 Ik F E &
M AEBENEHFHETER
47186,104,000%8 Tt (BE R 4
17,312,000 &) - ARNEER A
EFE=FZEXR FIBFBITERY
BN F4.29%%E5.56% < B F F 7
R B BITERTIUAEEE
WEMERNEZHEHSEEARK
o A2021F6H30H * Z&EEH 2

GBP14,347,000) of the Group’s borrowing was secured bank B 7 49154,229,000% 7T (HHE R4
borrowing. 14,347,000% £8) A EERRTE

e
A °
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
34. BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(il)

(iv)

On 29 March 2021, Birmingham City Football Club (“BCFC”
or the “Club”) and the Football League entered into a loan
agreement, pursuant to which the Football League will provide
a loan up to approximately HK$89,548,000 (equivalent
to GBP8,330,000) (the “2021 Football Loan”). During the
year ended 30 June 2021, approximately HK$78,357,000
(equivalent to approximately GBP7,289,000) of the Group’s
borrowing was from the 2021 Football Loan, which were
used for operating expenses of BCFC in the UK. The loan is
unsecured and interest-free, pursuant to the loan agreement,
BCFC agreed to repay the 2021 Football Loan by six equal
instalments in cash from August 2021 to January 2024.
The fair value of the 2021 Football Loan was measured by
computing the present value of estimate future cash flows
at the effective interest rate of 5.0%. As at 30 June 2021,
the fair value of the 2021 Football Loan was approximately
HK$74,182,000 (equivalent to approximately GBP6,901,000).
As at 30 June 2021, approximately HK$80,460,000
(equivalent to approximately GBP7,485,000) of the Group’s
borrowings were provided by the Football League.

As at 30 June 2021, approximately HK$49,200,000 of the
Group’s borrowing was from a revolving loan facility provided
by Trillion Trophy, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The loan amount is unsecured and bears fixed interest rate of
4.5% per annum.

As at 30 June 2021, approximately HK$9,672,000 of the
Group’s borrowings were provided by external lenders. The
loan amounts are unsecured and bear fixed interest at the
rates ranging from 0.46% to 5.0% per annum.

As at 30 June 2021, the total carrying amount of the
borrowings of the Group was approximately HK$293,760,000
(2020: approximately HK$487,442,000). As at 30 June 2021,
the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$504,403,000 available to it (2020: approximately
HK$279,261,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
35. LEASE LIABILITIES

e BRI )

B 22021F6H30H IFFE
35. HEEE

Present value of
minimum lease

Minimum lease payments payments
REHEE REHESEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20204 20215 20205
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FrET FE FHET
Within one year —F R 21,322 9,476 11,686 7,093
After one year but within five years —FEBERTERA 63,901 16,118 28,815 10,375
After five years T 149,837 77,840 63,711 11,885
235,060 103,434 104,212 29,353
N/A N/A
Less: Future finance charges W RREE E A (130,848) (74,081) TEA T iE
Present value of lease liabilities HEBENHAE 104,212 29,353 104,212 29,353
Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : 121& B A 2| £
within 12 months (shown BENSE
under current liabilities) B EREEaR) (11,686) (7,093)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 2 18 2| 815 & &
12 month 8 92,526 22,260

At 30 June 2021, the effective borrowing rates are ranging from
4.5% to 11.89% (2020: 4.5% - 11%). Interest rates are fixed
at the contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value

interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REMBHRRMEEE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 A FE2021F6A30H IFFE

36. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 36. ELEHEER

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

RiFE P BRARER ZBEERBARRE
ZHAKBDERERNZEBMT

Revaluation  Revaluation  Revaluation
of Investment of land and  of intangible
properties building assets Total
EMRENE EfIwREF EHEVEE k)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M FET FHET FETL FET
At 1 July 2019 120195718 4,631 14,670 2,584 21,885
Exchange realignment 0 i, & - (557) (75) (632)
Arising on acquisition of a IR I B 1 RIS E A
subsidiary - - 4,738 4,738
Credited to consolidated FAGEERREMZA
statement of profit or loss and ~ WE &K
other comprehensive income (4,477) (228) (494) (5,199)
At 30 June 2020 20206 A30H 154 13,885 6,753 20,792
Exchange realignment I - 2,106 336 2,442
Arising on acquisition of R B R RREE
subsidiaries 39 - - 16 16
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B AR 41 - (15,743) (4,341) (20,084)
Credited to consolidated AAGABEREMEE
statement of profit or loss and W& &K
other comprehensive income (154) (248) (187) (589)
At 30 June 2021 202156 H30H - - 2,577 2,577

At 30 June 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$807,787,000 (2020: approximately
HK$743,699,000) available for off-set against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, Birmingham City
Stadium Ltd, a subsidiary which holds the stadium located
in Birmingham, was disposed and the deferred tax liabilities
relating to the stadium was derecognised during the year ended
30 June 2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, Power Super Group
which engaged in provision of System Service Solutions
business, were also disposed and the deferred tax liabilities
relating to their intangible assets were derecognised during the
year ended 30 June 2021.

145

R2021F6A30H » NEBEH RB A
1A &5 18 #9807,787,0007% JT (20204 :
#9743,699,0007% 7T) A] FA VB # 45 K 2k
pinl i Bﬂﬁ@*%?ﬁ?’ﬁ”fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ‘w
ERA AR EBEEREERIBEE

ﬁ@%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁw

AR

RE ZE2021F6 4308 It F E -
Birmingham City Stadium Ltd (55 iz
REFEABAHZ BB ZHBAR)E
HE - WREE2021E6 30ILFEER

iﬁﬁwu\ﬁ%aiﬂ—iﬁ %RIEE\1

o

RE E20219F6 A30H L FZ © Power
Superk B (H SRH R G RBB AT
RER)NEHE  XREZE20214F6
Hsoaﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬂﬁwﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ/é

EZELERBRE



BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

e BRI )

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
37. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 37. BRAEARREE
Number of shares Amount
BAEE &8
Notes HK$'000
Hriz FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREECOIB T EEMK
Authorised: EE
At 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2021 202046 A30H 202146 A30H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRER:
At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020 and R2019E7H1H * 202066 A308 &
1 July 2020 2020%7H1H 17,710,022,508 177,100
Issue of shares upon share placing & 17 B & B 34T AR 1 0] 516,400,000 5,164
Issue of shares upon share subscriptions R RERETRG (ii) 1,062,576,000 10,626
At 30 June 2021 R2021%£6830H 19,288,998,508 192,890
Notes: Biat -

(0

(i)

(i)

On 22 December 2020, the Company completed a placing
of new shares pursuant to which 516,400,000 shares were
placed at the placing price of HK$0.135 per share, raising
HK$69,714,000 before expenses. Out of the total net
proceeds, approximately HK$5,164,000 was credited to the
share capital account and approximately HK$63,320,000
was credited to the share premium account. The related
transaction costs amounting to approximately HK$1,230,000
have been recorded in the share premium account. Details
of the Placing were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 8 December 2020 and 22 December 2020.

On 15 January 2021, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreements with Global Mineral and Join
Surplus, pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed
to issue 541,000,000 new shares to Global Mineral and
521,576,000 new shares to Join Surplus at the subscription
price of HK$0.13175 per share to set off against the
outstanding loan due to the respective parties in aggregate
of approximately HK$140,000,000. The completion of the
Subscription took place on 21 January 2021. Details of the
Subscription were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 15 January 2021 and 21 January 2021.

All shares of the Company issued during the year ended 30
June 2021 rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all
respects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
37. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(@) The Group

(i)

(i

(i)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium - the application of the share
premium account is governed by applicable
regulations of the Cayman Islands.

Capital reserve — capital reserve represents the waiver
of amounts due to a shareholder.

Translation reserve — translation reserve is arising
from the translation of foreign currencies in overseas
subsidiaries from the functional currency to the
Group’s presentation currency.

Share options reserve — the share options reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to
directors and employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

e BRI )

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
37. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 37. RERREE(Z)
(b) The Company (b) &XAF
Share
Contributed Share Capital options  Accumulated
surplus premium reserve reserve losses Total
PN:T Rt aE EAfE BRERE ZitER 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&L FET FA TET FET TA7
At 1 July 2019 H2019%7A1H 22,201 1,663,733 6,510 4,398 (1,356,710) 240,132
Recognition of equity-settled BAUREEE RO AER 2
share-based payments expense SES - - - 2,761 - 2,761
Total comprehensive expense for ~ AEE2ERTEE
the year - - - - (101,984) (101,984)
At30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 202064308 [2020%7F1H 22,201 1,663,733 6,510 7,159 (1,458,694) 140,909
Recognition of equity-settled share- RN RELENRHEER 2
based payments expense REZH - - - 2,315 - 2,315
Issue of shares upon share placing k(AR EBZTRA - 64,550 - - = 64,550
Transaction costs attributable to KAREZRFMA
share placing - (1,230) - - - (1,230)
Issue of shares upon share RHREREETRA
subscriptions - 156,198 - - - 156,198
Transaction costs attributableto ~ RAZEZRSFHA
shares subscriptions - (151) - - - (151)
Total comprehensive expense for ~ AFE2ARXEE
the year - - - - (153,045) (153,045)
At 30 June 2021 R2021%6A30A 22,201 1,783,100 6,510 9474 (1,611,739) 209,546
Notes: Mt -
(i)  Contributed surplus — the contributed surplus represents i) BARB-BARKBIERESE

the excess of the fair value of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation over the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange
therefor. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the contributed surplus account is distributable
to the shareholders of the Company under certain
circumstances.

(i)  Capital reserve — capital reserve represents the waiver of
amounts due to a shareholder.
(i) Share options reserve — the share options reserve

represents the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to
directors and employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

R RS AR M R ()

# 5202146 A30H 1FF/F
38. WBRMESHE

The existing share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 December
2016.

On 6 December 2018, the Company granted share options to
eligible persons to subscribe for a total of 300,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise price of the share options granted was HK$0.1084
per share and the share options granted were exercisable in
three tranches. The first tranche amounted to one third of the
share options granted can be exercised beginning on the date
of grant and exercisable within a period of five years thereafter.
The second tranche amounted to one third of the share options
granted shall be vested on the first anniversary of the date
of grant and exercisable within the period of four years after
being vested. The remaining tranche amounted to one third
of the share options granted shall be vested on the second
anniversary of the date of grant and exercisable within the
period of three years after being vested.

On 23 April 2019, the Company completed the rights issue in
which 5,903,340,836 new shares on the basis of one rights
share for every two shares were allotted and issued at the
subscription price of HK$0.05 per rights share. The number
of share of the Company that can be issued upon exercise of
the outstanding share options and the exercise price of the
outstanding share options were adjusted in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme and the supplementary guidance
regarding adjustment of share options under Rule 17.03(13) of
the Listing Rules. The exercise price per share was adjusted to
HK$0.09736.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year

ended 30 June 2021

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

e BRI )

2 F2021F6 H30H IFF/E

38.

4

KRRt & (F)

Details of movements in the number of share options during the HZE2021F6A30H It FE - BT
year ended 30 June 2021 under the Share Option Scheme are ZIETEREZ2EBZESHMAT
as follows:
Adjusted
exercise price Qutstanding
per share due Exercised/ at Exercised/
Narme or to Rights Issue cancelled/lapsed 30 June 2020  cancelled/lapsed
category of (Note () ~ Outstandingat  during the year ~ and 1 July2020  during the year  Outstanding at
participants Exercisable period Bxercise  RURAAEL 1July 2019 Eh 20208 B 30June 2021
SHEEES Date of grant  (noth dates inclusive) price SROEE 019578 BAE/ 6ANARANE BT/ M0ESANA
S5 RiiRE k8 (BEERRR) ik (hdp)  1BWATE  BEE/KN TAIRMAGE  BEE/AN BATR
HKS HKS
AT AT
Directors:
g2
Mr. Zhao Wenqing 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to § December 2023 0.1084 0.09736 20,268,042 = 22,268,042 = 20,268,042
BNERE N1BE12A68 018F12A6AZABE1A5A
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.09736 2,268,041 - 22,268,041 - 22,268,041
N19E12A6AZNBE 12450
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.09736 20,208,041 - 22,268,041 - 22,268,041
N0E12A6RZNBE1A5A
Mr. Huang Dongfeng 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to § December 2023 0.1084 0.09736 20,268,042 - 22,268,042 = 22,268,042
ERERE N18%12A68 018512 A6AZA3% 125
6 December 2019 o 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.09736 22,268,041 - 22,268,041 - 20,268,041
N19E12A6AZNBE12A5A
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.09736 22,268,041 - 22,268 041 - 22,268,041
N0E12A6RZNBE12A5A
133,608,248 - 133,608,248 - 183,608,248
Employees 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.00736 66,804,123 - 66,804,123 - 66,804,123
B2 W18E12A68  2018E1276A 2202351258
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 66,804,124 - 66,804,124 - 66,804,124
019512368 220235 12A5H
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 66,804,123 - 66,804,123 - 66,804,123
2020512768 220235 12A5H
200412370 - 200412370 - 200,412,310
334,020,618 - 334,020,618 - 334,020,618
Notes: Hiar
(i)  As a result of the rights issue which was completed on () HBRHERKRE R2019F4H23H 5%

(i)

(il)

23 April 2019, the exercise price of the share options was
adjusted from HK$0.1084 to HK$0.09736 under the Share
Option Scheme and the supplementary guidance regarding
adjustment of share options under Rule 17.03(13) of the
Listing Rules. The number of shares of the Company that
will fall to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding share
options were also adjusted accordingly.

The closing price per share quoted on the Stock Exchange on
the trading date immediate before the date on which the share
options were granted on 6 December 2018 was HK$0.111.

During the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, no share

options had been granted, exercised or lapsed under the
Share Option Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
The binomial option pricing model was used to estimate the

fair value of the share options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R RS AR M R ()

2 F2021F6H30H IFF/E

38.

WA A ()

— AR AR (R B PR 3R
ZATE  HEBBE AT EAA 22
8RBT ERB T SR @2 &b

on the independent professional valuer’s best estimate. The
value of a share option varies with different variables and certain
subjective assumptions. The estimated fair value of the share

options on their respective grant dates are as follows:

Exercisable period

b5t - BREZEESRENRNZE
ETEIERRMED - BRERSTBEZ
RHEB#MZEFRFEAT

Fair value on

(both dates inclusive) grant date
Share option type  Grant date 1TfEH REHBEZ
BREER & B (BFEEEWA) ATE
HK$
BT
Directors 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.03398
5% 2018%F12A6H 201812 A6H £2023F 12 A5H
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.03585
201912 A6 H £2023F 12 A5H
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.08727
2020%12 A6 H £2023%12A5H
Employees 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.02380
(=] 201812 A6H 201812 A6 H £2023F12A5H
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.02931
2019912 A6H £2023F1285H
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.03339

2020912 A6 H £2023%F1255H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

38.

39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The inputs into the model in respect of the share options
granted were as follows:

e BRI )

2 F2021F6 H30H IFF/E

38.

BRRERE (E)

ZERGE R D BRERA 2280
T~

Share option type

BREER
Directors Employees
B=x E8
Share price on grant date R B2 RE HK$0.104 HK$0.104
0.104% 7T 0.104% 7T
Exercise price on grant date RIFLEHEBZITEE $0.1084 $0.1084
0.1084/% 7T 0.1084/& 7T
Volatility 8 41.529% 41.529%
Expected life TE T 8 5 years 5 years
55 5%
Risk-free rate 45 a1 [ FI| = 2.150% 2.150%

Volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
comparable companies with business natures and operations
similar to the Company over the previous five years.

Out of 334,020,618 (2020: 334,020,618) outstanding share
options, 334,020,618 (2020: 222,680,413) share were
exercisable at the end of the year. The weighted average
exercise price per share is HK$0.09736 (2020: HK$0.09736).

The Group recognised share-based payments expense of
approximately HK$2,315,000 during the year ended 30 June
2021 (2020: HK$2,761,000) in relation to the share options
granted by the Company.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 30 June 2021

On 31 July 2020, the Group has, through the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital in two limited liability companies
established in Japan, acquired their medical services business
in Japan. The medical services business principally comprises
of medical consultation and healthcare and wellness referral
related services in Japan. Customers are mainly from oversea
countries seeking medical services such as health checks,
medical diagnosis and treatments in Japan.

ez

39.

HEDRBEHEE R L ERAATS
B2 ATE LB A ARBETE N2 EL
B TR o

M334,020,6180% (20204 :
334,020,6188%) A AR 17 BE AR #E
334,020,6180% (20204 : 22,680,413
BR) REE A FIT1E - MEFHTIRT
{8 50.0973678 7t (20204 : 0.09736
BIT) e

HZE2021F6A30H I FE M - A%
& 5L AN R 5 BT 5 2 B PR A i R A AR
1D AER 2 45 1 #92,315,0000% 7T
(20204 : 2,761,000 7T ) °

sz B B B8 A F

B E2021F6530H I FE
20207 A31H » REEE BIEMR
RRBAKZZBREFRTZEHE
BITRAWERENB A BERBGE
1% o BEREESEZREN A ARE
BRI RREREREENHER
% BRPEERAWINER  REARE
KigERE  BE2H KRS BER
i% °



£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED mEMBHmERME )
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE2021F6H30H IFF/E
39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. WEKIEAR (&)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 (Continued) B E2021F6 H30H 1E F & ()
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities assumed and RGFAER S EERBBZATE
gain on bargain purchase arising from the transaction are as RFTE4A 2 ZBR=ETIWT :
follows:
Fair value
at date of
acquisition
RUEE B
AN |
Notes HK$’000
ks F&ET
Intangible assets mEEE 21 348
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 178
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEBEEEB 2,094
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b e U RIA 351
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E AR FRIA (346)
Lease liabilities HE&E (178)
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIBEEE 36 (16)
Borrowings BX (1,475)
Net identifiable assets assumed FrAYE ] R & B &R 956
Gain on bargain purchase #E MR 11 (15)
941
HK$’000
FHET
Satisfied by: B TS AT
Cash consideration HeRE (941)
Less: o
Cash and cash equivalents RehREEBEEEB 2,094
Net cash inflow BemAFRE 1,153
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

e BRI )

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E
39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. WEEKIEB AR (&)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 (Continued)

The fair value of the trade and other receivables acquired is
approximately HK$351,000. The gross amount due under the
contracts is approximately HK$351,000.

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
approximately HK$15,000 in the business combination. The
gain is included in other gains and losses, net.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 July 2020, total
Group revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$165,033,000 and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$111,999,000. The proforma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
the revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 July 2020, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

Healthcare and medical related business contributed
approximately HK$5,917,000 and HK$4,016,000 to the Group’s
revenue and loss for the year respectively for the period
between the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting
period.
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B FE2021F6H30H 1 FEZ ()
FriEAZE S REMEKRFEBZ AFE
#9/351,000/ 7T ° IRIEA LN 2 4
% %5 #49/5351,000/ 7T °

AEBES S HRERZEWE 2 ke
#715,000% 7T ° A RWa T A K Ab iz
Mg - FEE o

HUWE EEE R202067A18 %
KA AEEAFERRBREBOA
165,033,000/ 7T * AF EEEFL B
111,999,000/ 7 - B ZE AR EHH
BAZ THr—TEXRREKREEER
202067 A1H B « AN & B & K 8%
BB REEEER  NEBERKRNK
¥ETEA -

BUE B R EREER RERERE
HEAEB DR AAEERN S R AFE
E548 B Bf 495,917,000/ 7T % 4,016,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

R RS AR M R ()

2 F2021F6H30H IFF/E
40. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT 40. HEM B N TR 3 A4 I 1R A

LOSS OF CONTROL

On 9 October 2020, the Company and Oriental Rainbow
entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the
disposal of 21.64% of the total issued capital of Birmingham
City PLC, 25% of the total issued capital of Birmingham City
Stadium Ltd, and the assignment of approximately 21.64% of
the loan as outstanding and owing by BCP to the Company
to Oriental Rainbow as at completion. Oriental Rainbow is
beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Vong Pech, a substantial
Shareholder and hence a connected person of the Company,
and the transactions contemplated under the sale and purchase
agreement constitute connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The sale and purchase agreement was
approved by the independent Shareholders on 8 December
2020 and the disposal was completed on 31 December 2020.

Upon completion, the Group’s equity interest in BCP decreased
from 96.64% to 75% and the Group’s equity interest in BCSL
decreased from 100% to 75%. BCP and BCSL remain as
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and their
financial results and financial position will continue to be
consolidated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Therefore, the Group accounted for this transaction as equity
transaction, recognising the addition of non-controlling
interests (“NCI”) at the NCI’s proportionate share of the net
liabilities of BCP and BCSL of approximately HK$180,286,000.
The excess of approximately HK$13,871,000 between the
consideration of HK$56,200,000 received and the addition of
NCI of HK$180,286,000 and amount of the loan assignment
approximately HK$222,615,000 was recognised in reserves.

The effect on the equity attributable to the Shareholders during
the reporting period is summarised as follows:

12020910898 * A AREREET
B & s 0 WA AR T &Birmingham
City PLCE /TR A B 82 21.64% -
Birmingham City Stadium Ltd& 217 k%
IRABER 2 25% LA R A TT K e B8 ;B BCP AR
BERERERRNT ZERZH21.64%
FRE - REHEEREVong Pechit
E2BEERER Bt AERRRZBE
AL RIBEETARE - EEHRET#
BT RGBRARNRZEBERS - B
SRR EER2020F12 A8 AL EE B 1
% o m & BIBEE R2020512A31H
FERK ©

R SER &+ 7N 5% B ABCP 2 A% # #5 /&
96.64% V> E75% * A% EHRBCSL
ZIREAS B100% R E75% © A It -
BCPEBCSLEMEARRAIZEEE
MEBAR MEEZMBEEE R
MR GEEHAREE 2R E T T53R
xoBAW AKEBFLIEBER S ER#
wmR 5 WikIEERE = ([FEE IR
%5 ) ABCPXBCSL% & & 2 fE 1k k. I
T 3R FE 155 A% 4 25 4 N 49180,286,000%
7T ° B WA (B56,200,00078 7T L2 I %
#E 25 1% 1180,286,000/8 T 2 B 2 =58
#913,871,0008 T R EREELBL
222,615,000/ JLE R EE R RER -

R 17 2 R SR (5 s 2 B
mF -

HK$’000

FET

Consideration received from NCI e FE1E AR i s AR Y R (B 56,200

Recognition of NCI TR IR = 180,286

Loan assignment EREE (222,615)
Excess of consideration received recognised MR ANERH D WK BB IS

within equity 18,871
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B 22021F6H30H IFFE
40. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT 40. HEKMB ARSI FFEFEE)

LOSS OF CONTROL (Continued)

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement, Oriental Rainbow
undertook to the Company that, in the event that the football
club segment, which principally consists of the BCP Group
and BCSL, incurs a loss after taxation (the “Loss”) for any of
the three financial years ending 30 June 2021, 30 June 2022
and 30 June 2023, respectively in which the Club does not
compete in the English Premier League (“EPL”), as reviewed
by the auditors engaged by the Company (the “Reviewed
Accounts”), Oriental Rainbow shall pay the compensation to the
Company in cash in an amount equivalent to the Company’s
share of the Loss (i.e. 75% of the Loss) in full within 30 days
after the Company issues a payment notice upon the issue of
the relevant Reviewed Accounts in the relevant financial year(s)
in which the football club segment incurs the Loss.

On the other hand, the Company agrees that, in the event that
the Club is promoted to and competes in the EPL in any of the
2021-2022 EPL Season, 2022-2023 EPL Season or 2023-2024
EPL Season, it shall pay Oriental Rainbow an annual bonus
equivalent to 75% of the Company’s share of the net profit
of the football club segment (based on the Company’s 75%
equity interest in the BCP Group upon completion) for each
of the financial years in which the Club participates in the EPL
competitions up to the financial year ending 30 June 2024 as
shown in the relevant Reviewed Accounts within 30 days after
Oriental Rainbow issues a payment notice upon the issue of the
relevant Reviewed Account (the “Bonus Due Date”), provided
that the Company shall only pay the bonus out of the cash that
it receives from BCP or BCSL in the form of, including, but
not limited to, repayments of shareholder’s loans or dividend
payments (if any).

For the year ended 30 June 2021, no compensation receivable/

received from Oriental Rainbow by the Company pursuant to
the above arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

41.

(a)

Disposal of BCSL

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R RS AR M R ()

B Z22021F6H30H IFFE
41. HEHB AT
(a) HEBCSL

On 31 March 2021, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Achiever Global Group Limited,
an independent third party, to dispose of its 75% interests
in BCSL and the total amount of loan outstanding and
owing by BCSL to the Company at a consideration of
approximately HK$116,000,000. BCSL is the owner of St.
Andrew’s Trillion Trophy Stadium in the UK. The disposal

was completed on 7 June 2021.

The assets and liabilities of BCSL on the date of disposal

were as follows:

MR202163A31H * AR 7 H 15
VEZHBERKEBEGRAF
SN EE W 0 UHEERBCSL
ZT75%HE z5 LA BCSLA B E &
BERARRIZERBE  REY
116,000,000/ JT - BCSLA #
Bl BB 77 1= & HT Bk 35(St. Andrew’s
Trillion Trophy Stadium)Z 2= -
HEZEDN2021E6 A7H 7K ©

BCSLRLERMZEENBEH
FIEAR

Notes HK$’000
HraE FET
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BEMEE 19 154,204

Deposits, prepayments and & -  BARIEREAm
other receivables FEURIR 1
Other payables and accruals Hth i {5 SRIA M FE T 5RIB (45)
Amount due to the Company FERT AN A B FRIR (118,593)
Amount due to group companies FEREE R RRIE (65,921)
Amount due to related parties JE {5 RE B 5 3RIB (39,631)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIERE 36 (15,743)
Deferred capital grants RIEE AN (14,876)
(100,504)
Non-controlling interests PR A 25,126
Release of translation reserve % b B 5 (R 1 8,378
Gain on disposal o 11 64,407
(2,593)

Satisfied by: KT F A

Cash consideration received BReNRE 116,000
Less: Loan assignment o B E (118,593)
(2,593)
Cash consideration received R E 116,000
Bank balances and cash disposed BHERITEBEIAS -
Net cash inflow WRERAFE 116,000
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41.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

e BRI )

B 22021F6H30H IFFE
4. HEMBLATE (&)

(b) Disposal of Power Super (b) HHEPower Super
On 4 June 2021, the Company entered into a sale and R2021F6H48 + AR A E—F
purchase agreement with an independent third party to BYFE=FFIMNEEWZH UH
dispose of its entire interests in Power Super Group and & E R Power Superf B 2 T & #E
the total amount of loan outstanding and owing by Power z= A Power Superz 8 & & &
Super to the Company at a consideration of approximately RERRIZEFBRE  RELHA
HK$4,600,000. Power Super Group was engaged in 4,600,000/% 7T ° Power Superf
provision of System Service Solutions. The disposal was ERERERBRBEEATR -
completed on 18 June 2021. & EHEE R202156A18H 58
B o
The consolidated assets and liabilities of Power Super Power Super(e @R HE B 2 47
Group on the date of disposal were as follows: SEERBEHIOT :
Notes HK$’000
M &t FET
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR 19 253
Intangible assets EBEEE 21 17,364
Goodwill EES 22 1,417
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,355
Derivative financial instruments MEemITA 20,705
Deposits, prepayments and e BAREBEREA
other receivables & U SR IE 2,518
Bank balances and cash RITEHR IR 320
Borrowings B (18,239)
Consideration payable AR E (21,944)
Other payables and accruals H b B < 3R I8 R FEET RIE (3,155)
Amount due to holding company FESHE IR A R FIAE (2,795)
Lease liabilities HEBE (2,469)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE & 36 (4,341)
(8,011)
Gain on disposal & Wz 11 9,816
1,805
Satisfied by: KT F XA
Cash consideration received 2R E 4,600
Less: Loan assignment W B E (2,795)
1,805
Cash consideration received R NKE 4,600
Bank balances and cash disposed BHERITEBKIAS (320)
Net cash inflow e MAFE 4,280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

42. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

As detailed in note 37 (i) of the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 30 June 2021 the
Company issued 1,062,576,000 new shares to settle loans
in aggregate of approximately HK$140,000,000 borrowed
from Global Mineral and Join Surplus.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

£ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R RS AR M R ()

B Z22021F6H30H IFFE
42, REBRESRERHE

(a)

(b)

TEFRERS

WA ER G B TS ¥R 5K MY SES7 (1) BT R
i AN R B R B E2021F6 430
H IEF Z 2 171,062,576,0008%
f% 5 » LAME iE B Global Mineral &
A E A £49140,000,000% 7T
ZER -

METDRELEBEZHER

TRAMASEEREADAEL
ZABEESY ERES kIR
B -BMETHMELEZEEE
ERABERAKELGRARER
EXRDERBMEZMEHRER
ENREREARKRERE -

Amount
due to
a related
party Lease Interest
FE{tEE® Borrowings liabilities  payables Total
FRE BX HESE EMAFE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
At 1 July 2019 20197 A1H - 214,516 - 7,942 222,458
Changes in cash flows Rensg = 277,820 (4,206) (22,999) 250,615
Effect on adoption of EMNEBUBHRE
HKFRS 16 A2 BI| 51655 #9
%4 = (4,636) 14,670 - 10,034
Non-cash changes FHEEF
Increase in lease liabilities 4 AT & HE
from entering into new  MIEMEFAE
leases during the year aE - - 19,268 - 19,268
Interest expenses BT H - - - 33,187 33,187
Exchange Difference EHER - (258) (379) - (637)
At 30 June 2020 and 720206 A30H
1 July 2020 K2020%7A18 - 487,442 29,353 18,130 534,925
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

42. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

e BRI )

HZE2021F6 H30H IFF/E

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

(b)

42. GERERBRWEE(F)

MEZDRELRAZHRA)

Amount
due to
a related
party Lease Interest
FE{tBA% Borrowings liabilities  payables Total
FHE B HEAE ERFE #et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FETT FHET
At 30 June 2020 and 1202096 A30H
1 July 2020 }2020%7A18 487,442 29,353 18,130 534,925
Changes in cash flows ReERERE 24,805 (46,912) (6,570) (32,940) (61,617)
Non-cash changes FREE -
Repayment of loan by BEBRHABEE
share subscriptions B - (139,281) - - (139,281)
Payment of interest BBKROBEI
payables by share SN
subscriptions - - - (713) (713)
Termination of lease mIETHERZE
agreement - - (116) - (116)
Acquisition of W B A A
subsidiaries - 1,475 178 - 1,653
Disposal of subsidiaries &K B A Al (39,531) (18,239) (2,469) - (60,239)
Disposal of subsidiaries & E A 7
without loss of control s T‘*%M 222615 - - - 222,615
New lease entered HETHE = - 79,174 - 79,174
Interest expenses MEZH - - 30,675 30,675
Exchange Difference EHERE 5,470 9,275 4,662 312 19,719
At 30 June 2021 1202166 A30H 213,359 293,760 104,212 15,464 626,795
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

43.

44.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2021, certain bank credit facilities made available
to BCFC were secured by a fixed charge over a specific bank
deposit account of BCFC held with the bank. The balance on
this bank deposit account was GBP800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,600,000) (2020: GBP800,000 which was
equivalent to approximately HK$7,634,0000). In addition, the
Group’s transfer fee receivables from other football clubs with a
carrying amount of approximately GBP15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$161,250,000) (2020: nil) as at 30 June 2021
were pledged to secure bank borrowing of the Group.

COMMITMENTS
Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessor

The Group leases its investment properties. At the end of
reporting period, the future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable leases are receivables as follows:
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R RS AR M R ()

HZ22021F6H30H 1FF/F

43. EEZH
2021465308 ' BCFCZ & T iR 17
RAZHZ T LABCFCREB1TH 4 E 4R 1T
IR F R EERCIEREE - ZRTT
17 7% BR P #4258 /5800,0003 88 (FZE R
#98,600,000/% 7T ) (20204 : 800,000
EHE (HE R 47,634,000 70))
BN s AREBIBTERTUAREBER
202166 A30H Z FEYLE th B BBk & 88
€ & 7 IR {E15,000,0005 £ (A5 1
#9161,250,000/%& JT) (20204 : 4&) {E
AR -

44. EE
TERER
KEBERHHAA
REERSEBREME - RBEHKR
TR A4S & TR ADTE T 2 FE YUK SR & AR
A TREREOT -

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 28,181 28,181
After one year but within five years —FRERFR 56,362 -
84,543 28,181

Operating lease income represents rental receivables by the
Group for its investment properties. Leases are negotiated for
a term of three years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms
and do not include contingent rentals.
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e BRI )

2 F2021F6 H30H IFF/E
45. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 45. RARBRIETE

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are
calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,500 per employee
and vest fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

In addition to participating in national insurance contribution
for employees in the UK, the Group also participates in a
defined contribution scheme for the benefits of its employees.
All the contributions are based on a certain percentage of the
employee’s salary and are charged to the income statement
as incurred and have no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions made.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary established in the
PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. This subsidiary is required to
contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of this subsidiary. The only obligation of this
subsidiary with respect to the central pension scheme is to
meet the required contributions under the scheme.

The Group’s subsidiary established in Japan participates in
public pension managed by the government or relevant public
entity and provide additional benefits to the basic pension
plan for income as a form of social security. This subsidiary is
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the public pension scheme to fund
the retirement benefits.

No forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to
reduce the existing level of contribution for the abovementioned
retirement benefit schemes.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group made
contributions to the retirement benefits schemes amounting
to approximately HK$38,621,000 (2020: approximately
HK$34,162,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

47.

Player transfer costs

As at 30 June 2021, under the terms of certain contracts with
other football clubs in respect of player transfers, additional
player transfer cost would become payable if certain specific
conditions are met. The maximum amount not provided that
could be payable in respect of the transfers up to 30 June 2021
was approximately HK$82,782,000 (equivalent to approximately
GBP7,701,000) (2020: approximately HK$59,476,000,
equivalent to approximately GBP6,233,000).

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group had the following transactions and balances with
related parties during the year:

(i)

)

(i)

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the
Group entered into a master lease agreement
with Ever Depot, a substantial Shareholder.
Rental income charged for the year amount to
approximately HK$28,179,000 (2020: approximately
HK$24,811,000);

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group
incurred interest expenses of approximately
HK$2,720,000 (2020: approximately HK$2,987,000)
to Trillion Trophy;

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group
incurred interest expenses of approximately
HK$663,000 (2020: nil) to Oriental Rainbow;

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group
incurred interest expenses of approximately
HK$462,000 (2020: approximately HK$464,000) to
GRED;

As at 30 June 2021, the outstanding principal
amount and interest payable to Trillion Trophy were
approximately HK$49,200,000 (2020: approximately
HK$66,197,000) and approximately HK$485,000
(2020: approximately HK$6,877,000) respectively;
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46. HAREE
HEESE

47.

#20214F6 4300 « BRI EHE R
Hfp R BTS2 ETEHBK

(CESR=E

THREGM - AIRNERINRE

e B o HZE2021F6H30H Al fEFLEE
SRMmMEATREGBZEZRSED
82,782,000/ T (#8 & 1 497,701,000
FEE) (20204 : #959,476,00078 7T (7
£ 71 496,233,000 8% ) ) ©

RMEL X5 K EER

(a) KA
M E R 5 KBRS

REMBRREMEDMH

REBMNF

WNERRE AT HATR S RAEH

(i)

(ii)

#H E2021%F6 A30H Ik F
B AEBBEKE (xZ
BE)FTLRHEHS -
FR -WBMZ2ASBALD
28,179,000/ 7t (20207 :
#924,811,000/87T)

#H E20214F6 300 I F
E AEBAEAXZHFE
S H #92,720,0005 T F
Trillion Trophy (20204 : #J
2,987,000/ 7T)

H E=20214F6A30H Ik F
B ASEAXNHEXH
#9663,00078 7T T 3 % (2020
F o mE)

H Z£2021%F6 A308 I F
B AREAXNREX T
#9462,000/% 7T (20204 : 47
464,000/ 7T) TGRED :

R2021F6 A30H * fE
Trillion TrophyZ R{EEARE
X % B 5 Bl 949,200,000/
7t (20204 : 4966,197,000
B IT) & #49485,000%8 T
(20204 : 496,877,000/
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

47. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(Continued)

48.

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(vili)

(ix)

As at 30 June 2021, the lease liability to GRED
was approximately HK$4,625,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$593,000) (2020: approximately
HK$4,632,000, equivalent to approximately
US$594,000);

As at 30 June 2021, the interest payable to GRED
was approximately HK$274,000 (2020: approximately
HK$275,000);

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company
and Oriental Rainbow entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to sell partial interests of BCP
and BCSL and amount of loan as shall be outstanding
and owing by BCP to the Company assigned to
Oriental Rainbow at the aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$56,200,000; and

As at 30 June 2021, the amount due to Oriental
Rainbow was approximately HK$213,359,000 (2020:
nil).

Key management compensation

Members of key management personnel during the year
comprised only of the Directors whose remuneration is set
out in note 15.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had the following significant event subsequent to the
end of the reporting period and up to the date of this report:

In July 2021, a subsidiary of the Group lodged a claim for losses
arising on business interruption caused by COVID-19. In August
2021, the insurer confirmed that the Group shall be entitled
a compensation of approximately HK$26,875,000 (equivalent
to approximately GBP2,500,000) in relation to such business
interruption.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

50.

AS AT 30 JUNE

2 F2021F6H30H IFF/E

49, AR T)N6A30E 2B BRI E

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHTB AR ZRE - 1
Total non-current assets EMEEEBTE - 1
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other Be  BNZEREMmEKRIE
receivables 716 728
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG ] 485,251 829,751
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 18,860 10,848
Total current assets MBEERE 504,827 841,327
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FE ST RIE K L FE S 5B 2,863 20,207
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET KT B A R F I8 50,328 29,208
Borrowings B 49,200 473,904
Total current liabilities mENE ERE 102,391 523,319
Net current assets REBEERSE 402,436 318,008
NET ASSETS EEFH 402,436 318,009
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital LN 192,890 177,100
Reserves G 209,546 140,909
TOTAL EQUITY EEEE 402,436 318,009
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 50. LEBEF
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform ETHREFECEFTOE  UFEARFE

to current year’s presentation.

BZ257AR -
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EFEMBEHE

For the year ended 30 June

HBZ6A30BLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Results ES | 20215 2020%F 2019F 20184 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETL FET FET FET

Revenue e 165,023 231,529 210,437 208,013 172,950

Loss before taxation BRI (112,418) (271,683) (363,050) (437,968) (207,106)

Income tax credit/(expense) FEHER,/ (Xd) 589 5,199 (1,640) 266 24,528

Loss for the year AEEEE (111,829) (266,484) (364,690) (437,702) (182,578)
Loss for the year attributable to: [EIEARFEEIE:

Owners of the Company ARRIHEEA (74,232) (260,484) (360,927 (425,027) (177,712)

Non-controlling interests IR R (37,597) (6,000) (3,763) (12,675) (4,866)

(111,829) (266,484) (364,690) (437,702) (182,578)

At 30 June
R6A30H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Assets and liabilities EEREE 20215 2020%F 2019F 2018%F 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETL FET FET FET

Total assets BELE 1,076,761 1,061,515 1,034,515 949,815 525,699

Total liabilities BEEE (771,947) (761,286) (459,006) (383,805) (229,593)

Net assets BEFE 304,814 300,229 575,509 566,010 296,106

Equity attributable to: Bl

Owners of the Company ARAHEEA 535,301 326,747 596,941 583,235 300,774

Non-controlling interests FEiEiRiER (230,487 (26,518) (21,432) (17,225) (4,668)

Total equity EnAE 304,814 300,229 575,509 566,010 296,106
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FEYEM X

The following table sets forth the Group’s major properties as at 30 & FI AN EBER2021E6 4308 2 EEY)

June 2021: ==
PROPERTIES IN CAMBODIA RIBEYE
Properties held for investment FEREYE
Category of The Group’s
Location Usage the lease term interest
b B Ag HEER AEE TG ER
Phom Penh City Center No. 58, Street R8, @ Commercial Long-term 100%
Sangkat Srah Chak, Khan Doun Penh, Phnom  pZ KA
Penh, Cambodia
RiBELEMNSETH D No. 58, Street RS,
Sangkat Srah Chak, Khan Doun Penh
Units 501, 502, 508, 503A, 505, 506, 507, Residential/ Freehold 100%
508, 601, 602, 603, 603A, 605, 606, 607, Commercial KA ERE

608, 701, 702, 703, 703A, 705, 706, 707, {k= H*%
708, 801, 802, 803, 803A, 805, 806, 807,
808, 901, 902, 903, 903A, 905, 906, 907,
908, 1001, 1002, 1003, 1003A, 1005, 10086,
1007, 1008, 1101, 1102, 1103, 1103A, 1105,
1106, 1107, 1108, 1201, 1202, 1203, 1203A,
1205, 1206, 1207, 1208 and portion of the
2-storey commercial podium adjacent to the
main building, Block C of One Park, Phnom
Penh City Center, No. 58, Street R8, Sangkat
Srah Chak, Khan Doun Penh, Phnom Penh,
Cambodia

RFBESEMSETH O No. 58, Street RS,
Sangkat Srah Chak, Khan Doun Penh, £#%
5% C FEZE 501, 502, 503, 503A, 505, 506, 507,
508, 601, 602, 603, 603A, 605, 606, 607,
608, 701, 702, 703, 703A, 705, 706, 707,
708, 801, 802, 803, 803A, 805, 806, 807,
808, 901, 902, 903, 903A, 905, 906, 907,
908, 1001, 1002, 1003, 1003A, 1005, 1006,
1007, 1008, 1101, 1102, 1103, 1103A, 1105,
1106, 1107, 1108, 1201, 1202, 1203, 1203A,
1205, 1206, 1207, 1208 = K EEZH#M 2 [E
=R FBEBH
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BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED A8 5= R EMR A A

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FEYER TR @)
(Continued)
Category of The Group’s
Location Usage the lease term interest
I Bh A% AR AEB bR
Units 301, 302, 303, 303A, 305, 306, 307, 308, Residential/ Long-term 100%
1501, 1502, 1503, 1503A, 1505, 1506, 1507, Commercial KA

1508, 1601, 1602, 1603, 1603A, 1605, 1606, {f=2, %
1607, 1608, 1701, 1702, 1703, 1703A, 1705,
1706, 1707, 1708 and portion of the podium
and corridor connected to the main building,
Block C of One Park, Phnom Penh City Center,
No. 58, Street R8, Sangkat Srah Chak, Khan
Doun Penh, Phnom Penh, Cambodia

HELBEMNEETH L No. 58, Street RS,
Sangkat Srah Chak, Khan Doun Penh, £#&%
%% C FEZE 301, 302, 303, 303A, 305, 306, 307,
308, 1501, 1502, 1503, 1503A, 1505, 15086,
1507, 1508, 1601, 1602, 1603, 1603A, 1605,
1606, 1607, 1608, 1701, 1702, 1703, 1703A,
1705, 1706, 1707, 1708 = & B EAB#F A1

& RE R &R
G/F and M/F, Block C of One Park, Phnom  Commercial Long-term 100%
Penh City Center, No. 58, Street R8, Sangkat  pf3 K EA
Srah Chak, Khan Doun Penh, Phnom Penh,
Cambodia

RIBESEMHEETH O No. 58, Street RS,
Sangkat Srah Chak, Khan Doun Penh, ©i&%
5% C BB N R E
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Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited
HHBRBEERERAT

31/F., Vertical Sq, No. 28 Heung Yip Road,
Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong
BREMNEEE28REHE31E

Tel &E: (852) 2548 2928

Fax EH: (852) 2548 2782

Website &5 www.bshl.com.hk
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